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Minmetals Land Limited is a subsidiary and the Hong Kong-listed real estate flagship of China
Minmetals Corporation. It principally engages in real estate development and specialised
construction businesses. Currently, its real estate development business covers the Pan
Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta, Central China, Pearl River Delta and Hong Kong regions;
while the specialised construction business that based in Shanghai and Hong Kong has
coverage over fifty cities in the country.
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Financial

Highlights
B =

REVENUE
LN
(HK$'000) (F7&7L)

For the year ended
31 December

11,576,345

T 5,905,854
- 4,306,454 7,253,266
5,983,634
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
TOTAL ASSETS PROFIT FOR
EEEE 40862081  IEYEAR 997,179
(HK$'000) (F387E) 1004, FEERH
As at 31 December (HK$'000) (F3B7T)
W+=ZA=+—H il 39,621,377 For the year ended 575 796
33,175,633 31 December !
BE+-—A=+—~ 429,508 435,929
IHEFE
17,515,814
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
NAV PER SHARE BASIC EARNINGS
(Exclude PER SHARE
non-controlling S 15.31
interests) EXEF
BREEFE (HK cents) (7l
( 1:[] @#jﬁﬂa For the year ended
31 December
B ) BE+-A=+-8
(HK$) GB7T) HEFE
As at 31 December
Rt—A=+—n 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEEE Percentage
2016 2015 change (%)
—E—R"E —ET—hF A EE (%)
Revenue (HK$ million) BA(EEET) 11,576 7,253 59.60%
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIRERE AEMN
of the Company (HK$ million) wmA(EBEBIT) 512 278 84.17%
Basic earnings per share for profit attributable RARREFAEARERT 2
to equity holders of the Company (HK cents) FREARRBF (B 15.31 8.32 84.01%
Dividend per share (HK cents) RS G 4.0 2.0 100.00%
Dividend payout (%) A% 8 3 5 % (%) 26.13% 24.04% 2.09%*
Total assets (HK$ million) AELH(EHER) 40,862 39,621 3.13%
Net debt (HK$ million) RIEFE(EHEET) 5,941 1,612 268.55%
Net gearing ratio (%)* B E LR (%) 69.48% 13.84% 55.64%*
* Change in percentage points BEDYNES
# Net gearing ratio = (Total borrowings — Cash and bank deposits) / Total equity FEELER = wra e RIRITER) RS EsE

LEWEBRAA
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2016
Events

Acquisition of a residential land in Yau Tong, Hong
Kong, marking the Company’s debut in the local
I I ket
Highligh mar ,
g g ts TEMERSEBMBEETTH  EXNEER
= — /\ﬂz T 35

RERE

Minmetals Land entered into entrusted
management service agreement with China
Minmetals, entrusting Minmetals Land with the
management of non-listed assets of the real estate
development and construction business of China

Minmetals Acquisition of two residential lands in Jiangning
TEMERFELBERIEEZ TR GE & District, Nanjing, strengthening the brand name
EREETELBEUMERERRGIFLMEAE “Minmetals Land” in Nanjing market
hEMERGERTIERNEEEHM -
March 3 H fl T 0 2 | @ 815 7 2R 00 T 453 0t 7

August 8 H
® o

@
June 6 A

f ) B &SR

LU LIMITED

The Company changed its Chinese name
to "R EBR QA" reinforcing the
Company'’s position as the sole listed real
estate platform of China Minmetals

AEFREL A AEBESRAR] - Mirjmetals Land succels.sfully. restructured HK$6
@t NS ahE ARG —EME b||||9n term .Ioan facility with fourteen banks
TEL W T leading by Wing Lung Bank

TR ERNEKERTERNTHORETE
601 B TTIRE &R

Minmetals Land successfully entered into HK$1.8
billion facility agreement with Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited

R EXIEPERT (FE)ARAIFZEKRNS

BETERAEHZE
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Mr. He Jianbo, Deputy Chairman &
Managing Director, attended the China

Real Estate Finance Annual Forum Minmetals Land acquired a
Minmetals Land achieved o] 1 8% E'JIF%%%%?@ KIBHFEHRED residential land at Lu Jing Dong
record high contracted HETHTFEFERL Road, Foshan
sales amounting over R ERSHBILTHE SRR
RMB10 billion EEAM
T EE ER A SH SRR SR I
10018 T A R ¥

September 9 A
o

November 11 H
@

@
October 104

Minmetals Land acquired a
residential land at Nancaotong
Village, Nancun County, Panyu
District, Guangzhou
TEMERGEMNESEEN
HEEENEEAN

Opening ceremony of “Class for the 80's”
a comprehensive training programme for the
future leaders of Minmetals Land
[(AEMESOM | BITHITER 2 A UEE
NAIRKOBEAS

Mr. He Jianbo, Deputy Chairman & Managing Director,

was elected as a Vice President of the China Real Estate

Chamber of Commerce

T"JA\J/Rimllif“iﬁ%%%%,ﬁ& PEEHIHEEMER
& ‘:'|J AE
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Honours

and Awards
24 2R B HE T

Real Estate Development

FHERR

Specialised Construction

BEXESR

Property Management

NEEE

Minmetals Land Limited

ARBERRAT

Condo Shanghai
mf LB

China Minmetals Tower

PEARKE

Huizhou Gracehome

BB EAE

Nanjing Gracehome

ARHEAT

Nanjing Sello Royale
ARAES

Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2016

Minmetals Land was awarded “2016 The Best Value
Listed Property Enterprises”
hiEH EER2016F R EEEE Ehd %]

Minmetals Land was awarded “2016 China Financial
Market — The Best of Investment Value Listed Company”
EEMERER06FHERME FTARAE — KA
REEBER]

Condo Shanghai was awarded “2016 Shanghai
Excellent Curtain Wall Construction Enterprises” and the
participation in Wan Jing Caizhizhongxin was awarded
“Hunan Province Quality Construction”

Infl EBRER016F L BETEFEERRBEIERIR
SEERUEPOREHHEEES IR

China Minmetals Tower was awarded “Triple Star Managed
Property”
FEABAEREZEREERYELE]

Huizhou Gracehome was awarded “Quality Service” and “The
Best” of Golden Key Alliance Award
BMREAGIREE R R MR R [HBERE
R sE |

Nanjing Gracehome was awarded “Advanced Corporate
Award”
MR ERARREIEERBE]

Nanjing Sello Royale was awarded “2016 Nanjing Property
Management Demonstration Project”
MRNBERBAREIRMYEER TH B E]



Five-Year
Financial

Summary
LEHBHRE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—EB—RE —_T—IF —T—WHF _T—=F ZT—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TERT FET FET FHET FHET

Results E 4
Revenue A 11,576,345 7,253,266 5,983,634 5,905,854 4,306,454
Operating profit RN 1,823,934 1,051,661 691,224 1,014,809 909,637
Finance income 81 75 Uk A 241,362 162,809 78,858 62,404 91,271
Finance costs 51 7% 5K AR (55,669) (57,511) (65,845) (107,213)  (186,460)
Share of results DA N A

of associates E (12,135) 16,442 183,936 55,262 (28,008)
Profit before tax B 7 B & A 1,997,492 1,173,401 888,173 1,025,262 786,440
Income tax expense TS fi X (1,000,313) (553,794)  (452,244)  (449,466) (356,932)
Profit for the year AN E A 997,179 619,607 435,929 575,796 429,508
Profit attributable to: mFEEE R

Equity holders of the ZANYNCIN &

Company BB A 512,058 278,156 425,171 476,832 273,804

Non-controlling interests FEER IR R AE = 485,121 341,451 10,758 98,964 155,704
Assets and liabilities EEREBE
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,156,994 4,096,367 3,705,549 3,050,867 2,904,977
Current assets MENE E 36,705,087 35,525,010 29,470,084 26,358,005 14,610,837
Total assets B EMEE 40,862,081 39,621,377 33,175,633 29,408,872 17,515,814
Capital and reserves RATIRERAA

attributable to equity e 2 BEAR R

holders of the Company & 6,582,124 7,357,221 8,002,783 7,737,531 7,005,111
Non-controlling interests FETE IR AR SR A 1,967,748 4,289,672 4,017,680 3,606,661 896,143
Total equity W MER 8,549,872 11,646,893 12,020,463 11,344,192 7,901,254
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 11,446,325 8,222,962 11,646,039 8,837,741 3,212,095
Current liabilities mEaE 20,865,884 19,751,522 9,509,131 9,226,939 6,402,465
Total liabilities BEEE 32,312,209 27,974,484 21,155,170 18,064,680 9,614,560

Total equity and liabilities — ##z K B fE 2% 40,862,081 39,621,377 33,175,633 29,408,872 17,515,814
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Chairman'’s
Statement

EFERE

Dear Shareholders,

Global politics and economy in 2016 were shaped and deeply shaken
by a series of unexpected events. We witnessed Britain voting to
leave the European Union in a referendum, Donald Trump winning the
United States presidential election, the United States Federal Reserve
further raising interest rate, and the commencement of Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect where all of them shall have a long-lasting
impact on the capital market. Amidst the long-standing impact of
these historical events, the pace of United States interest rate hike,
the uncertainty faced by Renminbi devaluation and the possible
inclusion of China’s A-Shares into MSCI Emerging Markets Index will
also continue to play pivotal roles this year.

2016 is the first year of China's “Thirteenth Five” as well as the
Group's integration and reforming year. At the beginning of 2016, we
put forward a policy of “the return to the nature of operation and
management, deepen management of change, to accelerate inventory
turnover, innovation and development model, and create an integrated
development”. In this context, we have made breakthroughs in areas
such as reform and consolidation, revenue growth and entry into new
cities. Our PRC real estate development business achieved a record
in pre-sales and floor area delivered to buyers whilst specialised
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construction business in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC posted
significant business growth and expansion. In terms of strategic
positioning, the Company changed its Chinese name to " i fE b =
BRAA"

Minmetals’ real estate development and construction division. In this

and was entrusted to manage non-listed assets of China

connection, the division’s business operation platform is integrated
and thus, eliminating internal competition and solving the problems of
business overlapping and decentralisation of management resources.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

From the Central Economic Work Conference to the local and national
two sessions (NPC and CPPCC), real estate inventory destocking
became one of the five economic tasks of China in 2016. Since
February last year, the Central Bank and the China Banking Regulatory
Commission announced a more relaxed mortgage policy. More than
150 cities introduced inventory destocking policies that included
lowering down payment, loosening housing provident fund, imposing
tax cuts and encouraging migrant workers to buy properties. Coupled
with the effects of financial leverage over down payment, property
prices rose in most areas of the country with significant price hikes
in certain regions. Under such circumstances, some cities introduced
housing purchase restrictions (“HPR”) in the third quarter of the year.
However, the introduction of various HPR failed to cool down the
property market but rather acted as market stimulus unexpectedly
that intensified the situation in certain regions and even caused “panic
buying” in some cities. The Beijing Municipal Government imposed
new control measures such as raising down payment for second
home purchase to 50% on 30 September 2016 and subsequently a
total of 21 cities issued stricter property market regulatory measures
in October 2016. More than a dozen of cities including Hangzhou,
Wuhan and Shenzhen further tightened their property market policies
and raised the home buyer eligibility threshold as well as the loan
threshold. From then on, intensive control policies gradually reversed
real estate market expectations such that the market cooled down
quickly and price eventually stabilised.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFHRBE

Even though housing policy underwent rapid and substantial
adjustments throughout the year, under the backdrop of inventory
destocking, nationwide property market still recorded sales growth
in both price and volume in 2016. Meanwhile, land supply continued
to shrink resulting in the decline of land area sold for the third
consecutive year. High total land price, high average land price and
high land premium were observed in key cities and regional land price
frequently achieved record high. Soaring land prices not only motivated
property developers to slow down sales schedules but also made
industry players exposed to significant cost and operational risks and
pressure.

In this context, we took a prudent but positive attitude towards land
bidding exercise and adopted the strategy of “high participation for
higher success rate” where we took part in numerous land auctions
during the year. Given vigorous market competition, we successfully
acquired five parcels of land which were of reasonable prices. Based
on the maximum plot ratio, the total developable gross floor area for
these land parcels amounted to approximately 500,000 square metres.
It was the first time that we entered into the Guangzhou and Foshan
markets in accordance with our strategic layout to expand in core cities
of southern China. Moreover, we made a significant breakthrough in
overseas investment. By seizing the opportunity of market adjustment
in Hong Kong, we won the public tender of a residential site in Yau
Tong, Hong Kong. These new projects will start to generate sales
revenue from 2018 which will greatly enhance the Group’s capacity
for sustainable development. As at the end of 2016, the land bank
of the Group was approximately 3.22 million square meters in which
66% (in terms of value) is situated in Tier 1 and core Tier 2 cities.

During the year under review, with a reformative and innovative
mindset, all the staff of the Group were persistent and driven and
successfully accomplished various business objectives and tasks. The
annual contracted sales amounted to RMB11.7 billion, up 34% YoY
and has exceeded the annual contracted sales target of RMB9.0
billion by 30%. This is the first time that the Group’s contracted
sales had exceeded the threshold of RMB10 billion. The Group’s 2016
consolidated revenue increased by 59.6% to HK$11,576.3 million
while the gross profit margin recorded a slight decline to 19.5%.
Profit for the year increased by 60.9% to HK$997.2 million. Net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company jumped by 84.1% to
HK$512.1 million. The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK4.0
cents (2015: HK2.0 cents) per Share for the year of 2016.
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PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

Policy and Industry Outlook

The Central Economic Work Conference held in mid-December 2016
set a clear direction for the development of real estate market for
2017, stressing to promote steady and healthy development of the
sector. Through the regulatory measures in the aspects of financial,
land, taxation, investment and legislation, the government aimed for
the establishment of a long term mechanism that would be suitable
for the PRC real estate market. Such a system would help to restrain
real estate pricing bubble and prevent turbulent price swings. The
Conference also made clear the positioning of China’s real estate
market and advocated for the first time “the inhibition of the real
estate bubble” and “giving back real estate its functional nature”. It
indicated that recent surge in urban housing price was beyond the
“political red line.” The rationale behind the formulation of real estate
policy has shifted from a simple goal-oriented controlling measure to a
systemic framework and transitional reform arrangements. It involves a
packaged framework reform in respect of land supply, real estate tax
and property financing. As such, it is expected that “the controlling
measures will not stop until the property price stabilises” in 2017
which is consistent with the prevention and control of financial risk
under macro measures.

From a funding perspective, corporations enjoyed a relatively low
financing cost in the PRC in 2016. However, we believe that the
period of such abundant liquidity is gradually fading. Although most
corporations achieved an outstanding sales and cash collection record
in 2016 which provided ample funds for business growth in the
coming year, the funding chain may get tightened and debt repayment
pressure may increase as a result of increasing funding cost and the
slowing down of the overall sales in the property market. Certain
industry players with the mode of “repaying existing debt by issuing
new debt” may face significant challenges in this respect. From the
purchaser’s perspective, the proportion and monetary sum of personal
housing mortgage loan grew significantly amongst the total new loans
granted in 2016 and accordingly, household leverage surged. The
Central Bank has advocated a differentiated policy for 2017 where
housing credit policy will vary from cities to cities.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFHRBE

However, we expect investment demand in Tier 1 and core Tier
2 cities will be hard to curb completely notwithstanding that the
government has strictly adopted differentiated land supply strategy
and implemented differentiated housing credit policy and there was a
lack of alternatives for investment asset and capital outflow. The low
inventory and relatively inelastic supply serve as the key elements for
stabilizing property prices for those Tier 1 and core Tier 2 cities which
are of historic low inventory and destocking rate. As population drain
is common in Tier 3 and Tier 4 cities, property pricing in those cities
will be largely policy-driven. Looking forward, the overheated market
conditions are unlikely to continue from both the policy and market
perspectives and property sector adjustments are highly probable from
a nation-wide point of view.

Business Prospects

With regard to investment and land bank, we will continue to focus
on development in Tier 1 cities and Tier 2 cities that have potential
growth in dynamic sector and population and will turn to those Tier
3 cities that have structural opportunities arising from spillover effect
of Tier 1 cities. Meanwhile, we will broaden our perspectives to
explore other means of expanding land bank and continue to increase
overseas business development. On the operation side, we will be
proactive in product innovation and thus, maximising the value of
our projects. In terms of financial management, we will continue to
adhere to prudent financial management, minimise foreign exchange
risk exposure, expedite cash collection and closely monitor gearing as
well as costs and expenses. Moreover, we will closely monitor both
onshore and offshore capital markets and explore new financing
channels to secure ample funding for future business development.
Efforts will be consistently made to improve the rate of return on asset
turnover and the rate of return on equity. We strive to increase our
presence in market financing activities and make use of our fundraising
capability on the listing platform. Furthermore, we will actively procure
opportunities for asset injection from our controlling shareholder to
enlarge and enrich the Group’s assets portfolio. It is believed that the
consolidation of non-listed real estate development business under
the entrusted management arrangement and the Group's real estate
development projects across the country would promote synergy as
well as economy of scale in design management, cost control and
contract procurement which would eventually enhance the brand
competitiveness of “Minmetals Land".
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CONCLUSION

I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to the backup of
our controlling shareholder, to our Shareholders and business partners
for their support and trust in us, to all the staff for their hard work
over the past year. | would also like to express my sincere gratitude
to the Directors for their contributions. Though the road ahead is
full of challenges, we firmly believe that, having the foundation,
potential, sense of responsibility and dedication, we are confident that
endogenous growth would be achieved through consolidation and
innovation. Whilst we strive to create value for our Shareholders and
investors, we also aim to attain a harmonious and win-win situation
that is mutually beneficial to the Company, Shareholders, employees,
stakeholders and the community.

Zhang Yuanrong
Chairman
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's consolidated revenue for 2016 was HK$11,576.3 million,
representing an increase of 59.6% compared to HK$7,253.3 million
of last year. Real estate development segment recorded a revenue
growth of 62.4% to HK$10,557.0 million (2015: HK$6,501.5 million).
Specialised construction segment recorded a revenue growth of 40.0%
to HK$954.8 million (2015: HK$681.9 million) whilst revenue from
property investment segment reduced 7.7% to HK$64.5 million (2015:
HK$69.9 million).

Segment Revenue

¥ FOE
REBRZ_ZE-~AFHNHEABKAAR
11,576,300,000% 7T - WA F R BRI & E& WA
7,253,300,00078 7T _E F459.6% o H - FBih = 5%
RA&E D2 WA £ F62.4%%10,557,000,000
BT (T — A4 :6,501,500,0008 7T)  HER
H o a2 WA K40.0% £ 954,800,000
TT(ZZ—HF : 681,900,000870) : MELEL
B E 2z WA R 47.7% £64,500,0008 T (— =
— R 169,900,000 ) °

SER M A

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_-_A=+—HLEE

2016 2015 Year-on-year

—B—RE e S change

HK$ million HK$ million HEEE

BEEBET % BEETT % %

Real estate development B b = B R 10,557.0 91.2 6,501.5  89.6 62.4
Specialised construction EEEE 954.8 8.2 681.9 9.4 40.0
Property investment MERE 64.5 0.6 69.9 1.0 -7.7
Securities investment BHEKE — — — — —
Total @st 11,576.3  100.0 7,253.3  100.0 59.6

Segment Results TERELE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-BLEE

2016 2015 Year-on-year

—E—-R%E —T—AF change

HK$ million HK$ million REEE

BEEET % BEET % %

Real estate development B EER 1,746.1 87.6 953.6 76.8 83.1
Specialised construction BEREE 48.2 2.4 2.7 0.2 1,685.2
Property investment MERE 180.5 9.1 259.5 209 -30.4
Securities investment BEIRE 18.4 0.9 26.5 2.1 -30.6
Total @t 1,993.2 100.0 1,242.3  100.0 60.4
AWMEARAR —T—AFEFEHR | 15
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Boosted by a strong surge in higher amount of developable floor area
delivered to buyers in 2016, the real estate development segment’s
revenue grew by 62.4% to HK$10,557.0 million (2015: HK$6,501.5
million). The growth in revenue in specialised construction segment of
40.0% to HK$954.8 million (2015: HK$681.9 million) was attributed
to satisfactory results generated by projects in Hong Kong and
Macau. Due to the change in product mix of property sold and
delivered, overall gross profit margin decreased from 21.9% to 19.5%.
Fair value gain on investment properties decreased by 36.6% to
HK$124.0 million as the growth in property valuation slowed down,
given a challenging operating environment currently faced by Hong
Kong retail and leasing operators. The Group’s selling and marketing
costs decreased 25.1% to HK$218.1 million (2015: HK$291.2 million)
as the Group tightly compressed selling expenses during the vyear.
Administrative and other expenses dropped 17.1% to HK$423.9 million
(2015: HK$511.6 million) as the impairment of inventories and provision
of bad debts recorded a significant decrease, however, excluding this
item for 2016 would record a slight increment.

During the year under review, finance income increased 48.2% to
HK$241.4 million (2015: HK$162.8 million) mainly attributable to the
increase of loan interest from a non-controlling shareholder of Beijing
Fortune Garden and bank deposit interest. Finance costs charged
to the profit or loss for the year 2016 dropped 3.1% to HK$55.7
million (2015: HK$57.5 million) due to a decrease in total amounts of
borrowings. Due to project completion and delivery by an associate
with descending profit, share of results of associates recorded a loss
of HK$12.1 million (2015: profit of HK$16.4 million). Profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company surged 84.1% to HK$512.1 million
from HK$278.2 million of last year, representing a basic earnings per
Share of HK15.31 cents (2015: HK8.32 cents) for the year.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's total assets grew 3.1% to
HK$40,862.1 million (2015: HK$39,621.4 million) whilst total equity
decreased 26.6% to HK$8,549.9 million (2015: HK$11,646.9 million),
which is primarily due to Renminbi depreciation and the decline
in non-controlling interests from the acquisition of non-controlling
interest in Nanjing and Huizhou projects by the Group during the year.
The financial position of the Group remained healthy. The Group's
net gearing ratio was 69.5% and its net current assets rose 0.4% to
HK$15,839.2 million (2015: HK$15,773.5 million). Deferred revenue,
which mainly represents contracted sales carried forward and will
subsequently be recognised as the Group’s revenue when presold
properties are completed and delivered to buyers, rose 28.0% to
HK$12,419.6 million (2015: HK$9,705.4 million).
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RZZE—RNF ERXNTFERZAERERR
EREEENNTS T EHEERLED I
U A £62.4% %=10,557,000,0005 T (= & —
A% :6,501,500,0008 ) MEZERE B R
B THEEERIMNESLS FEEELEED
#B Uz A 1% Hhn40.0% F954,800,000/8 L (=& —
A 681,900,000 L) c AR BEHE R R
EXNEHEMEFRPAHRE - ZIS%@%%%%
FEHMEH219% N EEI95% - EREBZ

MABERBAAMEYRENCEIRE %%
HEAZRE SBREDELABRT R D
36.6% £124,000,000/8 7 - AEBRF A E
EREEERY  SHEHEREHEX A T425.1%
%£218,100,000/% JT (= & — A 4 : 291,200,000
B miIT B R EMEXT K% E
423,900,000 7T (= & — F £ : 511,600,000
L) NEEAREERERERBEEEZHD
Frig HHREBEEREZ  —T—REZ2THK
HMMASESR AN -

REEFR  FAREEFNEIEE —&IEER
Rz ERF B RIRITFERFABIEI - L8
U A 18 N48.2% F 241,400,000 L (—E— 1
F 1 162,800,000/8 L) o MHAREREBE KD -
RZZE—RFHABER W BK TR L3.1%
%55,700,000/%8 L (= & — A 4 : 57,500,000/
JL) ° fﬂﬁA—%“M‘ﬂlﬁa&I& T ER
HIRTHEMFE - D E QR EERL S
12,100,000 W B8 (ZF —H 4 : 16,400,000
BILmH) e ARAFRIREFBAEBMGEENABAE
F 2278,200,0007% 7T+ 784.1% £ 512,100,000
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8.32/81l) -
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S 4126.6% %8,549,900,000/% (= T —
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REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT

Contracted Sales*

In 2016, the Group's total contracted sales rose 34.0% to RMB11,702
million (2015: RMB8&,730 million) and the gross floor area contracted
for sale rose 42.5% to 602,000 square metres (2015: 423,000 square
metres). Total number of units sold during the year rose 26.5%
to 5,895 units and the average selling price decreased 6.3% to
approximately RMB19,400 (2015: RMB20,700) per square metre. The
majority of the contracted sales was derived from Tier 1 and 2 cities.

The table below provides an analysis of contracted sales by project

for years 2015 and 2016:

B EER
EHHEHER
RZE—RF AEBZEOHERLTB LA
34.0% % 11,702,000,000 T A R (ZZ — R :
8,730,000,000T A RM)  ZEHNHERIEEE
& 18 MN42.5% £602,000°F FK(ZE — RF:

423,000?7?)1%) $H & B 2B IN26.5% =
5,895 « FHEBRITH63%ETFHKY

19,4007C A R#E(ZZF — R F : & F 5 £20,700
TARE) - REBENHEERZTERE—HEX
W FHERRIER o

—E-hFk-
ElPNz0Ps $ﬁi§§|JZZDT

—ANFZENHEEEIRIEAER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
Contracted Contracted Contracted  Contracted
amount GFA ASP amount GFA ASP
Egokok ] =4 EHER EHeH ¥ FHEE
(RMB million) ##E@E#E (RMB/sq.m.) (RMB million) ##ME®EME (RMB/sq.m.)
(NR# (sq.m.) (BEH K (AR® (sq.m.) (B F7HK
Project IEH HEIT) (EHK) AR BEIT) (F7K) AR
Beijing Fortune Garden R E 3,136 41,947 74,761 2,774 50,227 55,238
Yingkou Platinum Bay EORNEeHEE 101 20,121 5,000 50 9,540 5,255
Langfang Minmetals Vanke BB B R & RN

City 807 82,179 9,818 551 70,970 7,767
Tianjin Minmetals International ~ K)3EFHEREEHEAE 101 9,320 10,791 228 21,186 10,785
Nanjing Laguna Bay R R J7 e 5 E — — — 54 1,593 33,612
Nanjing Riviera Royale FRAREe HIEHN 12 154 76,703 36 958 37,971
Nanjing Sello Royale FARAFNEAR 464 26,504 17,526 328 19,617 16,726
Nanjing Academic Royale PRI 22U 2,751 80,140 34,323 3,101 120,067 25,829
Nanjing Yan Shan Ju ﬁ?%m% 2,564 72,949 35,149 1,029 37,633 27,334
Changsha LOHAS International & T 7% » 82 /& B &

Community P 875 168,241 5,198 324 60,062 5,390
Changsha Scotland Town RO/ 6 1,098 5,050 2 771 2,576
Changsha Kaifu Project DR l & W 503 63,520 7,920 152 19,251 7,905
Huizhou Hallstatt See BN TR « W e B 382 36,006 10,596 101 10,679 9,482
Total st 11,702 602,179 19,433 8,730 422,554 20,663

*  “Contracted Sales”

means sales contracts entered into between the Group and

purchasers pursuant to the Administrative Measures on the Sales of Commodity
Buildings promulgated by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-rural Development on 4
April 2001 and implemented on 1 June 2001. Sales of commodity buildings included
both pre-completion sales (pre-sale) and post-completion sales.

* [BHNEEREIRASEEFRRREE B MK E R
R-ZEZ-—FUNANAABRER-_ZEZ-—FA—HAE
MzEmEHEERRERT CHESR ARFHE
BREEERRTRZHE -
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Project Profiles IEH H# 5

GFA held
Estimated GFA GFA under for future
Attributable GFA  completed development development
interest to the Site Area 2] =5 BRTY HEABRRZ
Group HWBEE “ETEE CREEE 2 2CEEEE® mEEEE
. NCH (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
Location/Project e THE Pk (EHXK) (EHK) (EHXK) (EHK) (EHXK)
Pan Bohai Rim BRHEBHE
1. Beijing Fortune Garden RN E 51% 139,000 414,000 308,000 106,000 —
2 Yingkou Platinum Bay BOAEe A 100% 396,000 521,000 147,000 11,500 362,500
3. Langfang Minmetals Vanke City 8 %5 1 5% & R 50% 433,000 704,000 131,000 284,000 289,000
4 Tianjin Minmetals International ~ KEFBEAREEHAE 100% 21,000 183,000 183,000 — —
Yangtze River Delta REABE
5. Nanjing Sello Royale MRAB NEAR 100% 179,000 270,000 263,000 7,000 —
6. Nanjing Academic Royale FARAE RN EW 100% 136,000 482,000 320,000 162,000 —
7. Nanjing Yan Shan Ju HRELE 100% 91,000 203,000 99,000 104,000 —
8. Nanjing (Land No. G55)* 7 R (G555 1 48) * 100% 95,000 179,000 — — 179,000
9. Nanjing (Land No. G57)* B R (G575 ) * 100% 68,000 98,000 — — 98,000
Central China FEhih[E
10. Changsha LOHAS International ROBBEeoRE
Community Bl R 4t [ 100% 643,000 1,084,000 924,000 158,000 2,000
1. Changsha Scotland Town R HEHE /R 100% 333,000 442,000 442,000 — —
12. Changsha Kaifu Project ROATILE M 100% 150,000 534,000 128,000 55,000 351,000
Pearl River Delta K=AE
13. Huizhou Hallstatt See BINETE « R R 100% 984,000 1,003,000 194,000 55,000 754,000
14. Hong Kong Yau Tong Project* BB MEER* 100% 10,500 53,000 — — 53,000
15. Foshan Project* A= 100% 42,500 150,000 — — 150,000
16. Guangzhou Project* BEMmEE* 100% 30,600 17,500 — — 17,500

*

new projects acquired in 2016

18 Minmetals Land Limited
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Beijing Fortune Garden

Fortune Garden is a residential development project located at
Xibeiwang Town, Haidian District, Beijing. It occupies an aggregate site
area of approximately 139,000 square metres and has an aggregate
planned gross floor area of approximately 414,000 square metres.
The project received the “International Award” granted by the British
Association of Landscape Industries in recognition of its outstanding
landscape design. The project is comprised of two phases. Whilst Phase
| of the project was completed and delivered, Phase Il is scheduled
to deliver to buyers by 2018. In 2016, a contracted sales of around

41,947 square metres were recorded under this project.

Project
HEAM

Location
i B

Usage
A&
Site area

I A% T A5

Gross floor area

AR E A

Group's interest

AN ER [E P 4G 2
Construction completion date

BETRTKAH

tRNE
dEMEAMNRIER S EEAILEEZFER
RIAE @ BHEEELA139,000F 5K - B
S| 48 42 T E T8 4 B414,000F 5K o BB H
EHSBRTEREBRRENGEE SR
Bl ZBEESMBAME F—HEEAER
RER: E-HEARZE—\EFRXMER - B
ZT-RXF - ZEEHRSENHEERELN,947
FHK e

Fortune Garden

dtRmE

Xibeiwang Town, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC
R B b OB R = 7 L B 3R

Residential

=

Approximately 139,000 square metres
#7139,000F 75 K

Approximately 414,000 square metres
#)414,000F 75 2K

51%

1Q 2018
ZEN\EE-F
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Yingkou Platinum Bay

Platinum Bay is a residential development project comprises villas and
apartments. Located at Liaoning (Yingkou) Coastal Industrial Base,
Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the project occupies an aggregate site
area of approximately 396,000 square metres and has an aggregate
planned gross floor area of approximately 521,000 square metres.
The project is comprised of six phases. Development of Phases | and
Il was completed in December 2012. Part | of Phase Ill of the project
commenced delivery at the end of 2015 and the pre-sale of Part Il of
it was launched in November 2016. The remaining three phases are
currently under planning. In 2016, a contracted sales of around 20,121
square metres were recorded under this project.

Project

THE &AM

Location

bk

Usage
A&

Site area
AL T AR

Gross floor area
RIEEEE
Group's interest

N6 B P4k R =

Construction completion date

BETREKAS

20 Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2016

ZOHTR 15 E

TiEHEBERBBHNERABEM 2 FEH
RER UREBEERLEOMEE(ER)LEE
EEM  BMBEIELR396,000F75K - ER
Z R EEEA /521,000 75K - ZIEEHS
NIRRT EF-HEE_HMER_T-_F+
“ARIT BE=H-RER-_ZE-HFFEMA
RNER MZBRAR-Z—-REF+-—AREHM
BE HRT=HEMEEREER - R-2F—X
FRABHRGRNEEMMEL20,121F 77K o

Platinum Bay

Ak e 0B HE

Liaoning (Yingkou) Coastal Industrial Base,
Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the PRC
PEEEALEAMEE(EA)GSEXREN
Residential

T=

Approximately 396,000 square metres
#)396,000°F 77 5K

Approximately 521,000 square metres
#9521,000F 75 K

100%

Phase Il in 4Q 2015
E-H ——_T-RFFENE



Langfang Minmetals Vanke City

Minmetals Vanke City is a residential development project comprises
villas and high-rise units. Located in Jingxintun Town, Xianghe County,
Langfang City, Hebei Province, the project occupies an aggregate site area
of approximately 433,000 square metres and has an aggregate planned
gross floor area of approximately 704,000 square metres. Construction
of the project commenced in October 2014 and pre-sale was launched
in December 2014. A portion of the high-rise units commenced delivery
from October 2016 and is scheduled to complete by the end of 2017,
Additional land in the size of approximately 113,000 square metres is
scheduled to be acquired this year while the development of the raw
land currently under resettlement in the size of approximately 265,000
square metres is currently under planning. In 2016, a contracted sales
of around 82,179 square metres were recorded under this project.

Project
BB &8
Location

b

Usage

A&

Site area

Hh 42 T &

Gross floor area

RIEEEE

Group's interest

REEMEEE

Expected construction completion date

TR ETRE KA

Tianjin Minmetals International

Minmetals International is a completed mixed commercial and
residential development project located at the east of Yingbin Main
Road and south of Tuochang Road, Tanggu District, Tianjin. The project
is comprised of office space, apartments, retail stores as well as car-
parking spaces. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
21,000 square metres and has an aggregate gross floor area of
approximately 183,000 square metres. So far, 97% of the gross
saleable floor area was sold. In 2016, a contracted sales of around
9,320 square metres were recorded under this project.

BE Y AR S R
ABEERMBAREHNERSBEN ZEERRE
BHE U ERT MBS ErTE &
Ho AR T A 40 /4433,000F 5K - EREIREmME
FE4)A704,000F K - ZTHBER - —WFE+
AE8T RAE+-_ARHABE  BraEBEMR
TE-RETAABRNER BIRZE—t
FERET - ZBEHTE RS FIEHE%113,000
FEHAK M o BAT - % IEE IE 3£ 49265,000F 75
K2 THETEBRLBETIE - RZZE—RF
ZIEBHEENHEEMEBELNS2,179F F K -

Minmetals Vanke City
ARE R

Jingxintun Town, Xianghe County, Langfang City,
Hebei Province, the PRC

Hh AT b & BB U T & A 5K % <F T A

Residential

*=

Approximately 433,000 square metres
#)433,000F 75 2K

Approximately 704,000 square metres
#)704,000F 75 K

50%

4Q 2017
—T—+FENF

XESPHABEEBEXE
FRABEEAEABENAE 2B Bk
FESZERTITEHEMARRER AR KE
RO E RENRNICHEBENR QbR E
&4 521,000F 52K - 418 HE E &4 A183,000
EHK S ZBRACEHIT%ANEERT
HiE - R-ZZT—R"F - ZEABEEYHEER
& 499,320 F 5K o

Project Minmetals International

BREME PEAFEEBEXE

Location At east of Yingbin Main Road and south of Tuochang Road,

i B Tanggu District, Tianjin, the PRC
RERZEERDERNB AR RIS E AR

Usage Commercial and residential

A& [HEPSEERS

Site area Approximately 21,000 square metres

3 48 H 15 #921,000F 75K

Gross floor area Approximately 183,000 square metres

42 TH E 18 #7183,000F 75 3K

Group's interest 100%

REBMEEE

Construction completion date 2011

EEIRTKEH —E——F
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Nanjing Sello Royale

Sello Royale is a residential development project located at the south
of Hongjing Road, Science Park, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province. The project is comprised of villas and low-rise apartments.
It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 179,000 square
metres and has an aggregate gross floor area of approximately
270,000 square metres. The project was awarded the “Best Residential
Development in 2014 (East & Central China)” at the first China
Property Awards held by Ensign Media. Majority of the development
works of the project has completed. So far, 99% of the gross saleable
floor area was sold. In 2016, a contracted sales of around 26,504
square metres were recorded under this project.

AMRAE -NES
AENBEANNIHEAE IZERESE
ShRANENEAZEEHRIER  BEEHRE
KoNis BB AL - 483 88 T 18 4) 179,000°F 75
Koo M TE E B4 5270,000F 5 K © #EEnsign
Media = ¥} 2 28 — [& China Property Awards -
ZEBRERDROUFEPHERLEPME K
FEETHEE] - ZBHEREIREELRTK &
S ZBEEHDELHO%LENELEERE - K=
T —NF - ZIBEHGHELESEIEL26,504
FHK e

Project Sello Royale

BEAEW AfE-hESR

Location At south of Hongjing Road, Science Park, Jiangning District,

B Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HEI#HERE R IEENSRELRKNENAE

Usage Residential

A& =

Site area Approximately 179,000 square metres

I A8 T A5 #7179,000°F 75 2K

Gross floor area Approximately 270,000 square metres

RIEEEE #9270,000F 75 K

Group's interest 100%

RNEBE I EE

Construction completion date : 2014

BETRETKBEH —E-F
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Nanjing Academic Royale

Academic Royale is a residential development project located at Tian
He Road, southern part of Hexi, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province. It is approximately 5 kilometres from the Nanjing Olympic
Sports Centre, the main stadium for the Nanjing 2014 Summer Youth
Olympic Games. The project is situated in the Nanjing Hexi New City
Zone, a district of key future development with a construction plan
of becoming a comfortable living Eco-City. The project is designed
as a high-quality residential community with low density. It occupies
an aggregate site area of approximately 136,000 square metres and
has an aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately 482,000
square metres. The project is comprised of four phases. Development
of Phase | and Phase Il was completed in 2015 and 2016 respectively.
Development of Phase Ill that commenced in January 2015 with presale
in November 2015 is scheduled to complete with full refurbishment in
the fourth quarter of 2017. Development of Phase IV that commenced
in April 2016 is scheduled to complete with full refurbishment in the
fourth quarter of 2018. The entire project is expected to complete
by the fourth quarter of 2018. In 2016, a contracted sales of around
80,140 square metres were recorded under this project.

Project

HE &

Location

I B

Usage
B#&

Site area

3 A% T 15

Gross floor area
PIEEER
Group's interest

N SRR

Expected construction completion date

TAHIRETIZ KA Y

ARAE RX &

SN &M ANRNI&HEE R E2E @A
EEBRIBCAETERELR  BEBRER_-F
—NFEFEFRESIHE — HREMNE
REERONARE - ZIBEFTE A A
& AErlmEHAEERE  BRAERALE
RREFEHF - % BB LM BREEL A136,000F
oK BREBEMMEIEL A482,000F 5K -
REAEZRESREEE - ZBEHEXH WA
B E-HEE_HESNIR_ZE—RAFER=F
—RNEBT F=HN_Z—AF—A8HIT [
F+—RAEE BiR-E—tLFENEZK
BE FENPNR-_T—"FONAHHTI  EiN=
T-N\FENFTTEHESR - ZEEBEBHEFR
ZE-)\FEWNFERT - R=ZFT—F ' %EE
RIS F A EME480,140F 5K o

Academic Royale

Alke EHX LW

At Tian He Road, southern part of Hexi,
Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
BT & A R R A RO 78 (R R D RO BR
Residential

T=

Approximately 136,000 square metres
#)136,000F 5 2K

Approximately 482,000 square metres
#7482,000°F 75 K

100%

4Q 2018
—E-N\FEEE
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Nanjing Yan Shan Ju

Yan Shan Ju is a residential development project located in the
established prime residential area at the southeast of Zijin Mountains
in Nanjing Xuanwu District where land supply is limited. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 91,000 square metres and has an
aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately 203,000 square
metres. There are well developed transportation facilities and the
project is in close proximity to the Ninghang Expressway and Subway
Line No.2. In addition, it enjoys excellent surrounding environment and
neighbours a number of educational and research institutions. The
project is designed as a high-end low-density residential community
comprising low-rise apartments for first-time home buyers and
upgraders from the local district and Nanjing City. It is comprised
of two phases. Development of Phase | that commenced in the first
quarter of 2015 with pre-sale in July 2015 is expected to complete
with full refurbishment in the second quarter of 2017. Development
of Phase Il that commenced in the third quarter of 2015 with pre-
sale in the first quarter of 2016 is expected to complete with full
refurbishment in the fourth quarter of 2017 and commence delivery
in the second quarter of 2018. In 2016, a contracted sales of around
72,949 square metres were recorded under this project.

Project
BEAW

Location

I

Usage

A&

Site area

i 48 [ A&

Gross floor area
RIEEMEE
Group's interest

NS R R

Expected construction completion date

BHIEETEKAN
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ZUERMAERZEABESLEREAMNE
ERREE UEEH I HEESEROELSL
SEEER - B8 EELA91,0005F 5K -
BB BIEMMEELA203,000F 5K - ZEE
BRI EM AR ERGR  XBEMN &g

REEE RERETE METIOHBFEER
e RABRRARES/SBELNSKIE
ZEEFER BEREPRAZEMBERTHNEE
REREF ZBABHEIMBRA®E: F-—HR
“T-RFE-FHPI RAFLAEE - ES
RIZ—EFE_FEXNBE E_HRN_-_F
—RFEE=FHIT R_T—"FE—FHEE -
BAR-_E—tFFOFTERERE  XAIR=
Z-\FFE_FHBEXNER - R-FT—RF
ZABBBROEEMELNT2,949F 7K -

Yan Shan Ju Project

2WE

At Zhong Ling Jie, Xuan Wu District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEIAEE R R EEEY
Residential
F=E

Approximately 91,000 square metres
#191,000F 75 K

Approximately 203,000 square metres
#7203,000F 753K

100%

4Q 2017
—ELEFFNF



Changsha LOHAS International Community

LOHAS International Community is a large-scale residential development
project with ancillary facilities, such as clubhouse, shops, car-parking
lots, schools and landscaped garden. Located at Gaoyun Road, Muyun
Town, Changsha County, Hunan Province, the project occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 643,000 square metres, including
a private lake of 30,000 square metres, and has an aggregate planned
gross floor area of approximately 1,084,000 square metres. The
project is comprised of five phases. Whilst development of Phase |
to Phase IV was completed during the years from 2010 to 2014, the
development of Part | of Phase V was completed in the fourth quarter
of 2015. Development of Part Il of Phase V has commenced in 2016
and is expected to complete in the fourth quarter of 2018. In 2016, a
contracted sales of around 168,241 square metres were recorded under

ROVATR -EEBRHE

Fige EEBBEHEANEFTEREEE FH
M M B EREEMIEESZFZIEL
EXRE URHBREARPGEZERER 4
A& T FE 4 /643,000 F 5K (B #30,000F /53K
BFEABR) - BREBEMAEL A1,084,000
FHK o ZBEERAS AL E—HEFE M
T FE_T-NFHARIT:FAH—E

REZE—RAFFNERT: FREAER=Z—
NEBHT BHARZE—\FEOFRT - K=
T—NF - ZEEHESEOEE®ELN168,241

this project.
Project LOHAS International Community
HE AW Atk EEBEIRHE
Location At Gaoyun Road, Muyun Town, Changsha County,
i B Hunan Province, the PRC

HEAEERSGETES ER

Usage Residential
A& =
Site area Approximately 643,000 square metres
3 A% T A& #7643,000F 75 K
Gross floor area Approximately 1,084,000 square metres
RIEEER #1,084,000F 75 oK
Group's interest 100%
NE B PTG R
Expected construction completion date 4Q 2018

EHRETREEKEH

—E-\FEmF

ot
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Changsha Scotland Town

Scotland Town is a completed residential development project located
at Yuntang Village and Yuetang Village, Muyun Town, Changsha
County, Hunan Province and is adjacent to LOHAS International
Community. The project occupies an aggregate site area of
approximately 333,000 square metres and has an aggregate gross floor
area of approximately 442,000 square metres. Development of Phase
| and Phase Il was completed in 2011 and 2013 respectively. So far,
96% of the gross saleable floor area was sold. In 2016, a contracted
sales of around 1,098 square metres were recorded under this project.

RVEBEW/E
BENEBNNPEERLPBEZEEZENK
RENZERTIFTERRIEE MM AE B
EE PR - 42 M AR TE AR 4948333,000°F 750K
ARBTH A& 4 442,000 F 5K - BB S —H
REZHANRE——FRZT—=FKIT-
25 ZEBCEHG% AR EEEmAE - B
ZERF - ZEAHEENHE@mELN,098
FITK o

Project : Scotland Town

HEAWE BN E

Location : At Yuntang Village and Yuetang Village, Muyun Town,

i B Changsha County, Hunan Province, the PRC
PEHEERPEEEEEEN R AEN

Usage : Residential

A& F=

Site area : Approximately 333,000 square metres

I 8% [ 18 #333,000F 752K

Gross floor area : Approximately 442,000 square metres

REMEE #9442,000F 75 K

Group's interest : 100%

A& H (G R =

Construction completion date : 2013

FEETIRTKAH —E—=F
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Changsha Kaifu Project

Kaifu Project is a residential and commercial development project located
at Fu Yuan West Road, Kaifu District, Changsha County, Hunan Province
which is within a comfortable living Eco-City zone under planning,
with close proximity to the Kaifu District Administration Centre. The
project occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 150,000 square
metres and has an aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately
534,000 square metres, of which approximately 331,000 square metres
is designated for residential development, approximately 113,000 square
metres for commercial development, approximately 5,000 square metres
for public ancillary facility development, and approximately 71,000
square metres for car-parking and civil air defense development. Whilst
the residential portion of the project will be developed into a quality
residential community for first-time home buyers and upgraders, the
commercial portion will be developed as an entertainment complex
with a studio in the center of the development surrounded by office
buildings, hotel, shopping malls, and food and beverage facilities. The
residential part of the project is comprised of three phases. Development
of Phase | which is comprised of villas and selected high-rise units was
completed in the fourth quarter of 2016. Phase Il and Phase Il will
commence construction in 2017. In 2016, a contracted sales of around
63,520 square metres were recorded under this project.

Project

HHE &

Location

I

Usage

A&

Site area
A% T A&

Gross floor area
REmMEE
Group's interest

N5 [ P 4k R =

Expected construction completion date
TR BAEE SE T2 55 X B B

RGARE B £
hfELESBANNPRERDBHAERERR
THABRZEERBERRERE  UWERNFER
ShmEEERER - BABAERTEREERD -
48 4 42 T 78 49 5150,000F 52K - DR El4EH
M 7& 49 5534,000F 5k - HFEEEHH 4 1h
331,000 F 5K + EEE 5D 4915113,000F 75K -
e E N E 55,000 52K - 2EIH K AR
#91571,000F 5K - ZTEHEEEBOBER B
NEE BXREFPAFNSE=AERE - m%
HoBERABRLHEREEAE  EFREELR
ZERARBPRNEEW  URAEZHQE
BE  ESRBEREE ZBENEEERE
DR E AN ERERSERE
il BERZE—ARFENFRT FE-_HRE=
R —tFHBS T RZZT—RF -
ZIBEHRGHEOIEEEELNG3520F K -

Kaifu Project

ALK o b B &

Fu Yuan West Road, Kaifu District,
Changsha County, Hunan Province, the PRC
B R & R 5 R AR R AR T B
Residential and commercial
EERE%E

Approximately 150,000 square metres
#7150,000°F 75 2K

Approximately 534,000 square metres
#9534,000F 75 K

100%

4Q 2019
—ENFERF
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Huizhou Hallstatt See

Hallstatt See is a large-scale residential development project located at
Mai Tian Ling, Boluo County, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province and is
in close proximity to many amenities including golf course. Surrounded
by hills and a 20-acre lake, the project occupies an aggregate site
area of approximately 984,000 square metres and has an aggregate
planned gross floor area of approximately 1,003,000 square metres.
The project received 4A tourist attraction rating by China National
Tourism Administration in 2015, and was given an award for its
innovative cultural and resort real estate model in the 10th Annual
Real Estate Billboard event hosted by China Commercial Real Estate
Commission. It is comprised of seven phases. Development of Phase |
and part of Phase Il was completed and delivered in 2013 and 2014
respectively. Construction of the majority of Phase Il and Phase lll was
completed in November 2015. In 2016, a contracted sales of around
36,006 square metres were recorded under this project.

Project
BHEHE

Location

I B

Usage

A&

Site area

3, 4% [ 15

Gross floor area
BIEEEE
Group's interest

REE 5

Expected construction completion date

TAHEETZ K AY
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e ERANNEREEMNMIEEZE
MEaErz XEFEREEE  MORZUEBE
S ECMERME - AL R20EE 2 AR
B MM BRTEIEA A984,000F K B EIE
TETE B & 49 451,003,000 52K - 2 HEEFEH
BRikERHTELSBFIARIKESRE TR E
EIRBEEERSR RIS+ EMEREZE
FERItEREERLEERAIFAE] -
ZBEEEStHER - F—HURE_HIEY
IRDPRZZE—=ZFR_T—HFREIER
NEFR F_HhFE-HFETEBEETEEN =
T—RAF+—ABRIT - R-ZT—A~F ZHEEH
BHRYEEMIEL36,006F 5K o

o

Hallstatt See

LK « 13 T 15 4

Mai Tian Ling, Boluo County, Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
PEEREBMNMEERERSE
Residential

F=

Approximately 984,000 square metres
#7984,000°F 75 oK

Approximately 1,003,000 square metres
#71,003,000F 75 K

100%

4Q 2019
—T-AFEmE



Land Bank

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a land bank developable in
gross floor area of approximately 3.22 million square metres across
16 real estate development projects in 10 cities located in Beijing,
Yingkou, Langfang, Tianjin, Nanjing, Changsha, Huizhou, Hong Kong,
Foshan and Guangzhou.

Land Bank Composition

Throughout 2016, the Group has added five new projects to its real
estate development portfolio and thus the developable gross floor
area of land bank increased by approximately 497,500 square metres.
The total cost and average cost for the newly acquired land amounted
to approximately RMB10.27 billion and approximately RMB20,651 per
square metre respectively. Amongst these project locations, Hong
Kong records a healthy land price to sales price ratio with sustainable
long-term supply-demand fundamental and enjoys a thicker buffer
against adverse market development. Moreover, it marks the first
step taken by the Group to the execution of its overseas investment
strategy. The debut entry into the markets of Foshan and Guangzhou,
which are core regional cities of high importance in the country,
strengthens the Group’s strategic positioning in southern China. The
acquisition of two parcels of land in Nanjing, where the Group has
established a solid footing, further consolidates the Group’s brand
building in the local market.

Tt e

RZTB—XF+ZA=+—8 AE@EET+X
BEMEZFREBEEMMRILR - &0 - B -
XE-BR KD BN -BEF BLUERENM
S+@Em™T - AHRTHELHFEERERRE
#9 /43,220,000 ;5 K -

I ib {5 5 4B B

RZE—RNF AEBrEHEBRRMAS G
THEBE  THHEEZAIEEEEEREAM
EINAI497,500F 5K o I8 T R B A
10,270,000,0007t A R# - M FEHK AL A EF
75 K20,651 T AR o IRz ST IE B FTTE i
BR - UEBZ THERSEEESLERA
BE BEREUFECHKERNEGHE  —8
MESETEREENET 55 HEEEB
NREREASENNEARGIINEEREHE—
ol AEBMEESRBILUEEMNTS
MEYMBERNREREE 2R 0EREHET - G5
AREFENAEETREZEBEMAD - ERE R
MEAE AEEERIBEER  MAFRA
FrilE o miE i i — S RELRERETE
TG 2 Mg ER -

Estimated
GFA
Attributable  Site area #]4 Total cost Average land cost
interest to HWEEE LEEEHE BABE 4 bR A
Location/Project Property type the Group (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB per sq.m.)
#25 TEH MEESH AREFG#ER (FFHK) (FHK) (ARBEERT) (BEIRXKAR®)
1. Nanjing (Land No. G55) Residential 100% 95,000 179,000 3,420 19,100
78 A (G555 3% ) T=E
2. Nanjing (Land No. G57) Residential 100% 68,000 98,000 1,610 16,400
3 7 (G575 1 52) T=E
3. Hong Kong Yau Tong Project Residential 100% 10,500 53,000 3,424 64,600
R MIEIER =
4. Foshan Project Residential 100% 42,500 150,000 1,490 9,900
#ILIER T
5. Guangzhou Project Residential 100% 30,600 17,500 330 18,900
B NE A F=E

AWWEARAR —T—AFFER | 2



Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEET R RS

SPECIALISED CONSTRUCTION

The Group is engaged in the business of specialised construction
mainly encompassing the services of design, production and
installation of curtain walls system and associated metal works via
Condo Shanghai for the PRC market, Condo Hong Kong for the Hong
Kong market and Condo Macau for the Macau market. In 2016,
revenue derived from this operating segment showed an increase
of 40.0% and its operating results, net of intra-group transactions,

showed an operating profit of HK$48.2 million (2015: HK$2.7 million).

Condo Hong Kong is actively participating in projects of both
private developers as well as public sector. Condo Hong Kong has
completed a number of large iconic projects in recent years which
have subsequently received positive market recognition. However,
competition intensifies as small and large size curtain wall construction
companies from Mainland China try to squeeze into the Hong Kong
market. In view of the shortage of skilled labour, rising human
resources and processing costs, Condo Hong Kong implemented
a relatively conservative bidding strategy and took sufficient risk
management measures. Condo Hong Kong has secured new tenders
amounting to approximately HK$300 million in 2016 with projects on
hand amounting to approximately HK$1 billion as at 31 December
2016.

In 2016, Condo Macau has worked relentlessly on its debut project in
Macau in accordance with project schedule and budget. The successful
project implementation has earned itself positive recognition from the
main contractor and the employer, deepening its market presence in
Macau and neighbouring areas.

As the local construction industry have seen a slowdown both in
terms of project number and contract size, Condo Shanghai has
been very selective in undertaking new tenders and has prioritised
risk management in its operation. As at 31 December 2016, Condo
Shanghai has projects on hand amounting to approximately RMB120
million.
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group’s investment property portfolio in Hong Kong comprises
two commercial office buildings, namely China Minmetals Tower in
Tsimshatsui and LKF 29 in Central, together with four residential units,
all of which are located in Hong Kong with a total gross floor area of
15,826 square metres. As retail sales plummeted in 2016, districts that
target travelers including Central and Tsimshatsui have seen waves of
early surrenders. Occupancy rate in the said districts has dropped to
a new low level in recent years with significant downward revision in
rental rate. However, based on solid relationship with tenants and real
estate agents over the years, coupled with good foresight on rental
trend and strategy implementation, the Group successfully extended
all existing rental agreements at a higher rental rate except for those
tenants in winding-up situations, which compressed commission and
administrative expenses to a minimum. In addition, the introduction of
short-term tenants in filling up vacant periods also makes up losses from
vacancy. In 2016, in view of such challenging market condition, revenue
from this operating segment decreased 7.7% to HK$64.5 million (2015:
HK$69.9 million). As at 31 December 2016, the occupancy rate of LKF
29 was 82.0% (31 December 2015: 92.0%) while China Minmetals
Tower was 97.3% occupied (31 December 2015: 100%).

MERSE

REBREBZIREMEMRSE  BEMREY
WA E A KRE RFIR 2 LKF 29/ i@ 7 % K
E-UERMNEMARESZEEYE  RIEEE
A H15826F T K c AR ZZTE—RFEEZ
EHEBRZE TN PREADESHPIIREH
EmEHRERY EHEXEREREHE

MOERBZFREBLZEEZBEFE - ML
HeBLmERRIRTHERE KEEXY
HPBERAP(ERGEEREZHPRINURS
ZHSEBEN FAREESRTERAIEBERE &
RAKTFE o fboh - REBFEBSIACHERPNE
OEMTENZEEZBRBR RZT—AF -
MARMERE  MERBELED IFZWAR D
7.7% % 64,500,007 7t (ZZ — % : 69,900,000
BIL) e RZE—XRNF+ZA=+—8 " LKF 29
ZHEERAE82.0% (ZE—hFE+_A=1+—08:
92.0%) + M El 7&K E A HHE XA &973%
—E—FAF+-A=1+—H:100%) °

Building China Minmetals Tower Building LKF 29
ANEEBE hE R AR ANEEBE LKF 29
Location No. 79 Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui, Location No. 29 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong
H Bh Kowloon, Hong Kong b 2 Kong
BENERDPERABEE L TR BEEPREREF = TNR
Usage Commercial Usage Commercial
A& [HES A& [HES
Lease term Medium term Lease term Long term
HEHR H HEBHR RH

ENTRUSTED ASSET MANAGEMENT

In March 2016, the Group announced the entrusted management of
China Minmetals’ non-listed real estate and construction assets whereby
China Minmetals entrusted the Company with the management of all
non-listed assets within its real estate development and construction
division, for a term of 2 years for an annual fixed fee of RMB30 million.
The said entrusted assets include 25 real estate development and
management projects in Beijing, Tianjin, Shenyang, Liaoning, Shandong,
Qinghai, Jiangsu, Hunan and Guangdong. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group has recorded RMB24.5 million in management fees according to
the entrusted management service agreement.

EREEEE

RZE—ARF=ZA AEESESHREREARE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year of 2016, the Group’s operations were financed mainly
by cash flows generated internally from business operations as well
as borrowings.

As at 31 December 2016, cash and bank deposits (excluding restricted
cash and bank deposits) of the Group amounted to HK$5,431.5 million
(2015: HK$10,672.9 million), of which 89.5%, 9.1%, 0.7% and 0.7%
(2015: 91.3%, 7.3%, 1.2% and 0.2%) were denominated in Renminbi,
Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar and Macau Pataca respectively.

The Group had utilised financing to supplement internal resources
to finance the acquisition of new projects and the development of
existing projects. Total borrowings of the Group stood at HK$11,614.4
million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$12,578.5 million), which
mainly comprised borrowings from banks and bond issuance. The net
gearing ratio (net debt to total equity) of the Group as at 31 December
2016 was 69.5% (2015: 13.8%).

The weighted average borrowing costs of the Group was maintained
at a low level of around 3.87% (2015: 3.69%).

Maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

1 %5 @ R

nBEERUBHER
RoF—AFR AEEEEECIEREG
EHEERERZRERRER

E N

RZZE—XF+_A=Z+—H A&EEBEZ
RERBROTERATLEIRHE S KR
17 1¥ %) /35,431,500,000/8 T (= FT — A F:
10,672,900,0008 7T) * H#189.5% * 9.1% * 0.7%
F07% (ZZF — A F:913% *73% * 1.2% &
02%) D RIAARE - BT ETRBFEST]
{E °

AEEEHAREERRNTERAKEFHIEE
RERBEBERHEES - AEER-Z—X
FTZA=1T—BZEREFER11,614,400,000
BT (ZZF—FHF 12,578,500,00008 L) * =&
PREBRITERRESFET RZIT—RF+=
A=+—HB AEE2FEEX (BB FHEEE
HAAE) B695% (Z T —FF :13.8%) °

AEBZNEFHEER ANRE EH3.87%
ZZE—FF :3.69%) 2K KF o

AEBZERBNBBERAT

As at 31 December

R+-—HA=+-—H
2016 2015
—B—RE —E—hF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEERT % BEBT %
Within one year —F R 299.6 2.6 4,452.0 35.4
In the second year B 5,902.9 50.8 994.3 7.9
In the third to fifth year E=ZFZFNF 4,452.0 38.3 6,174.3 49.1
Beyond five years HELAE 959.9 8.3 957.9 7.6
Total st 11,614.4 100.0 12,578.5 100.0
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The currency profile of the Group's borrowings is as follows: REBZEREENT:

As at 31 December

m+=-—H=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEET % BBET %
Renminbi AR 299.6 2.6 860.6 6.8
Hong Kong dollar BT 8,618.4 74.2 9,027.2 71.8
United States dollar ETT 2,696.4 23.2 2,690.7 214
Total st 11,614.4 100.0 12,578.5 100.0

Finance costs charged to the profit or loss for 2016 amounted
to HK$55.7 million (2015: HK$57.5 million) after capitalisation of
HK$407.2 million (2015: HK$453.1
development. The unutilised banking facilities of the Group as at 31
December 2016 amounted to HK$3,464.6 million (2015: HK$336.9
million).

million) into properties under

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES

The Group is exposed to exchange rate risk on transactions that
are denominated in a currency other than Hong Kong dollar, the
reporting and functional currency of the Company. The Group has
been closely monitoring the fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate and
will adopt necessary measures to minimise the impact arising from
adverse currency fluctuation including adjustment to the proportion
of borrowings in foreign currency and utilisation of foreign exchange
hedging instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts or
capped forward contracts when considered appropriate.

The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk resulting from
fluctuation in interest rates. Most of the borrowings of the Group was
on a floating rate basis and therefore, an increase in interest rate would
raise the Group’s interest cost. In order to mitigate the interest rate
risk, the Group entered into interest rate swaps in which the Group
would receive interest of one-month HIBOR and pay monthly interest
at a fixed rate based on the notional amount of HK$3.6 billion. As
at 31 December 2016, approximately 54.2% (2015: 21.4%) of the
Group's borrowings was on a fixed rate basis after hedging with the
remainder on a floating rate basis.

RZZE—RNF EHBRUAEARLHFRABEA
2% B B ¥ 407,200,000 T(Z & — A F:
453,100,000 7T) % - RIBERZNER 2 ¥ % K
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Group did
not hold any financial instruments either for hedging or speculative
purposes.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, certain assets of the Group were pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group and mortgage
loan facilities to purchasers of the Group’s properties, and these
pledged assets of the Group included:

i inventories with carrying amounts of HK$Nil (2015: HK$1,388.7
million); and

ii. 100% equity interest in a subsidiary.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2016, guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties
amounted to HK$13,688.8 million (2015: HK$7,742.4 million). Such
guarantees will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of the
property ownership certificate which will generally be available within
one year after the purchasers taken the possession of the relevant
properties; or (ii) the repayment of mortgaged loans by the purchasers.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group
is entitled to take the possession of the related properties upon default
in mortgage payments by such purchasers. Under such circumstances,
the Group is able to retain the property sales proceeds previously
received from such purchasers and sell the property to recover any
amounts paid by the Group to the banks. Therefore, after taking into
account the creditworthiness of the purchasers, the Directors consider
that no provision is required in the consolidated financial statements
for the guarantees.
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EMPLOYEES

Total number of staff of the Group, including the Directors, dropped
17.5% to 746 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 904). The Group will
continue to adopt a remuneration policy in line with local market
practice and standards. Total remuneration and benefits for the
Directors and staff of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 were approximately HK$254.7 million (2015: HK$276.3 million).

He Jianbo
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
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Corporate
Governance

Report

ERERME

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
and responsible for the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices. The Board has put in place a corporate governance structure
for the Company which is principally responsible for setting directions,
formulating strategies, monitoring performance and managing risks of
the Group. The respective Board committees oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs and perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2016, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except
for the following deviation:

1. Code provision A.4.2 requires that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy in listed companies be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
Every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Instead of having elected at the first general meeting, Directors
appointed by the Company to fill a casual vacancy are subject
to election at the first annual general meeting after their
appointment. Besides, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in the manner as set out in the said code provision save
for the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company
where they are not required to do so pursuant to the private
company act 1991 by which the Company was incorporated.

2. Code provision E.1.2 requires that the chairman of the Board and
the chairman of all the board committees of listed companies
to attend and answer questions at the annual general meeting.
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Mr. Zhang Yuanrong, the Chairman of the Board and of the
Nomination Committee, was not available for the Company’s
annual general meeting for 2016 due to ad hoc business
commitment. Accordingly, Mr. He Jianbo, the Deputy Chairman,
Managing Director and a member of the Nomination Committee,
took the chair of the said meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company, however, are delegated to the
management of the Company.

The Board comprises nine members as at the date of this report, the
composition of which is set out below:
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RABRERS BEESmNLEEAR  H15
B T

Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Name of Director Designation Committee Committee Committee Committee
Exgtz B YiTERE EBHZEEE FWZEEE ReZEE
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong Chairman & Non-executive Director M C
RILRAE IRRFNTES
Mr. He Jianbo Deputy Chairman, Managing Director & Executive Director C M M
Al RI% £ £ BIEf EEREBRUTES
Mr. Yin Liang Senior Deputy Managing Director & Executive Director M
FREE EXRHBALARYTES
Ms. He Xiaoli Deputy Managing Director & Executive Director M
flNERT EZRBNERNTES
Mr. Liu Zeping Deputy Managing Director & Executive Director M
ZIRTEE EZRBLBERITES
Mr. Cui Hushan Non-executive Director
ERILEE HNTES
Mr. Selwyn Mar Independent Non-executive Director C M M
et ik BUFHTES
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria Independent Non-executive Director M C M
BERXL BUFHITESR
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy Independent Non-executive Director M M M
G 5 BUFHITESR

C: Chairman £/F M: Member X 8
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Biographical details of Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” in this Annual Report.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships amongst members of
the Board.

All Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of three
years. Save for the case of Mr. Zhang Yuanrong as disclosed in the
previous paragraph headed “Corporate Governance Code”, the Non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has met the requirements of the Listing Rules to have at
least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third members of the Board and with at least one Independent
Non-executive Director possessing appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise and professional qualifications.

The Company received written confirmations from all Independent
Non-executive Directors confirming their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

The Directors acknowledge that they have a duty to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company and commit themselves to
spend sufficient time to perform their duties. They are also aware of
their collective and individual responsibilities to Shareholders. As such,
they have taken active interest in the Company’s affairs and obtain
thorough understanding of the business of the Company.

The Company enables the Directors, upon request, to seek advice from
independent professional advisors at the Company’s expense in the
process of discharging their duties. The Company has also arranged for
appropriate liability insurance to indemnify Directors for their liabilities
arising from corporate activities.
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During the year, a total of four physical Board meetings and one
general meeting were held. Notice of not less than fourteen days is
given for regular Board meetings. The attendance of the Directors is
as follows:

ARBRFRABTTHREFEEHZ L AR
RARg-E=xgrHeszBNE HREa
RBITAPMTORERERBES - FEFNE
dgFE2HFEBERMAT:

Number of meetings attended/held

BIT/HEEZXRY
Board Meeting General Meeting
Name of Director EENA EEg BERXE
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong ok JT &R B A 1/4 0/1
Mr. He Jianbo fa] & K 5¢ & 4/4 1/1
Mr. Yin Liang FrmEA 4/4 0/1
Ms. He Xiaoli /N2 £ 4/4 171
Mr. Liu Zeping 281 F 5 &£
(re-designated as Executive (R=—ZE—XR"E=A+/\H
Director on 18 March 2016) FAERITESE) 4/4 0N
Mr. Cui Hushan BRIl E
(appointed on 25 August 2016) (R=ZZE—REFENA-+HEHEZMT) 2/2 0/0
Mr. Selwyn Mar BHRETE 4/4 1/
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria BmEKLL 4/4 171
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy MR AR B 5T A 4/4 1/
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR EERESFHEE

Mr. Zhang Yuanrong is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. He Jianbo
is the Managing Director of the Company. This segregation of roles
ensures that there is a clear distinction between the broad strategic
direction of the Group and the management of the Board by the
Chairman and the strategic planning and day-to-day management of
the Group’s business by the Managing Director.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has established a set of guidelines as its own “Rules and
Procedures for Directors and Relevant Employees in respect of Dealings
in Securities of the Company” (the “Rules for Securities Transactions”)
on terms no less exacting than those contained in the Model Code
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors, they had confirmed
in writing that they had complied with the Rules for Securities
Transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a comprehensive
induction package and training covering the Company’s constitutional
documents, internal policies and procedures as well as the general,
statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that
he/she is thoroughly aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and other relevant regulations.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other
regulatory regime. The Company provides monthly reports to Directors
which contain updates on the business development and financial
information of the Group.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development.
The individual training record of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

EEZRHRERIRER
ERECMAEFER  SEFBRINE
AR R RS R B AL A R
RBEERRFARERERE K  ARR
EERT LMARTREZEN  UBRAR
SEBERETRARLMABEERII T2
B

E=ETEHMEFNLTRA - CEXELRRAH
RPN ZAEFT IR » Britt 25 - RAR &
AEMEERHAERARESHEHHRE LM
BERZHE -

MEEEVE2EBETERR NBE-Z
—ANF+TZA=+T—HLFE SEFZH
fLERIT

Briefings
& updates
on business Attending
Paying visits operations & expert
to Company’s  compliance briefings,
projects & matters seminars &
subsidiaries BAHZEH conferences
REAXAT BER HE
IEBR ZERBEEHZ SHEHEE-
Name of Directors EENE MBAT BHRREEN HAtERAE
Non-Executive Directors: ERITESE:
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong SRIT R A& v v v
Mr. Cui Hushan ERILEE v v v
Executive Directors: WITES:
Mr. He Jianbo o] &1 55 & 4 v 4
Mr. Yin Liang FomEE v v v
Ms. He Xiaoli fA/NBZ+ v v v
Mr. Liu Zeping 21 Bl S 5 A v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIEHITES:
Mr. Selwyn Mar BaEEE 4 4 4
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria EEIKLZLT v v v
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy R SR A v v v
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and its results and cash flows for the relevant
financial period. The Directors are also responsible for the timely
publication of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Directors confirmed that the consolidated
financial statements had been prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable, and
the consolidated financial statements had been prepared on a going

concern basis.

The Directors confirm that, having made all reasonable enquiries, that
to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement made by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the independent
auditor of the Company, about their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” in

this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities to establish and maintain
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
through the Audit Committee, to
effectiveness of such systems so as to protect Shareholders’ interest

systems and, review the
and to safeguard the Group’s assets. The Board has authorised the
management to design, implement and maintain its risk management
and internal control systems by clearly defined responsibilities,
authority and accountability. Under the guidance of the Audit
Committee, the Internal Audit Department of the Company monitors
the risk management and internal control systems by conducting
independent reviews.
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The Board acknowledges that the risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than to eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

A. Risk Management Framework
The Board has adopted its risk management and internal
control manual in December 2015 to ensure sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems for CG Code
compliance are in place. The Internal Audit Department adopts
a “Top-down” and “Bottom-up” approach whereby the Audit
Committee, the Internal Audit Department, management and
individual business units join hands to oversee, identify, assess
and carry out actions to mitigate risks at all the corporate,
operation and functional levels.

The Audit Committee together with the Internal Audit
Department and management regularly monitor and update the
Group's risk profile. By reviewing business and operation reports
of Internal Audit Department and management (including action
plans to address the identified risks and the progress thereof),
the Audit Committee oversees the scope and effectiveness of
ongoing monitoring works taken by the management on risk
management and internal control systems.

Directed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Audit Department
furnishes annual internal audit plan and carry out independent
reviews to ensure that the risk management and internal
control systems are functioning as intended. The Internal Audit
Department follows a risk-oriented approach where different
audit areas are assigned risk ratings and an audit plan is
formulated in a risk-weighted manner so that priorities and
appropriate audit frequency are given to areas with higher risks.
The principle task of Internal Audit Department during the year
included audit reviews of operations, controlling mechanism,
legal compliance and compliance of internal rules and regulations
emphasizing on those with significant risks or changes. The
scope of audit work covered monitoring of risk management
policies and procedures.
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Internal audit reports are presented at the Audit Committee
meetings. Major findings and recommendation are followed up
and updated to the Audit Committee on a regular basis. Minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled at Board meetings
to report the Committee’s findings on risk management and
internal control issues and the recommendation or opinion on
management'’s response thereto.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information in accordance with its “Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information” to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until disclosure and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.

Significant Risks and Control Measures

Significant risks have been identified through the process of
risk identification and assessment. A summary of the significant
risks of the Group together with the relevant internal control
measures during the year is listed below.

a. Working capital and debt risk

Working capital and debt risk remains the key challenge
of the Group. The Group has adopted a principle of
minimizing working capital risk in order to maintain
liquidity. The working capital risk has decreased due to the
completion of major financing and re-financing activities
and the increase in contracted sales. Management has
closely monitored the financial performance and associated
market risk factors (such as cash flow, foreign exchange
risk and interest rate risk) at both the Group’s and
operating group’s levels on a quarterly and monthly basis.
Periodic reports have been provided to the Board to assess
the Group’s performance and financial position.

b. Inventory risk
Inventory risk is another significant risk identified and
managed by the Group. The change in selling price and the
progress of sales of properties are subject to a number of
risk factors distinctive to real estate development, property
investment and real estate development related business.
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Management has closely monitoring the Group’s inventory
risk. We have established an operating management
structure with defined lines of responsibility and
appropriate delegation of authority to exercise controls
over operating activities. During the year, the inventory risk
has been reduced due to the increase in the contracted
sales and different controlling measures have been made
to suit different operating units.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
The Board shall, through the Audit Committee, review
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee instructs
the Internal Audit Department to carry out independent
reviews to assess the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The management of the business units annually review and
update their risk registers, provide assurance that effective
controls are embedded. They also conduct self-assessment
on internal control and confirm that appropriate internal
control policies and procedures have been established and
properly complied with. In consideration of the Group’s
risk appetite (i.e. the extent of risk the Group is willing to
bear in pursuit of its strategic and business objectives), the
Audit Committee reviews the following with reference to
the assessment made by the management and the Internal
Audit Department to assess the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems:

a. the provision of timely and comprehensive
information to the Audit Committee and the Board
to enable effective assessment of the monitoring
measures within the Group in areas such as the
reliability of financial reporting, the compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations and the
effectiveness of risk management;

b. the efficiency in rectifying internal control
deficiencies and implementing recommendation of
the Internal Audit Department; and

C. the actions taken in response to changes in
the Group’s business as well as in the external
environment.
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The Audit Committee directs independent investigations on material
internal control defects as delegated by the Board or on its own, and
reviews the findings thereof and the management’s feedbacks.

Based on the review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems performed during the year, the Board considers
such systems effective and adequate.

Based on the assessments made by the management and the Internal
Audit Department and taking into account the audit work of the
independent auditor, the Board and the Audit Committee considered
that no significant areas of concern in respect of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems were identified during the
year of 2016.
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BOARD COMMITTEES EEZEETE
A.  Audit Committee A BEZEEE
All the members of the Audit Committee are Independent ERZEENEYRELIFNTES - F
Non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is principally REZEe s T EBERERS ()A&H
responsible for reviewing (i) the effectiveness of the financial < B % I R AR A K R B B TR RN A B B
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internal audit reports as well as management feedback to such WREBEER -
reports.
The Audit Committee held three meetings in 2016. The BEREZEERN_T—RFETT=ZRE
attendance of the members of the Audit Committee is as FOBKEBEEEERZBRAET
follows:
Attendance
Members of the Audit Committee EREEERE R
Mr. Selwyn Mar — Chairman BHRELRE — R 3/3
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria BEKLL 3/3
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy MR AR B ST A 3/3
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The major tasks accomplished by the Audit Committee during
the year are as follows:

a. reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
independent auditor’s letter to the management and the
annual results announcement, and made recommendation
to the Board for approval;

b. reviewed the interim financial information of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and the interim
results announcement, and made recommendation to the
Board for approval;

C. reviewed the management recommendation furnished
by the independent auditor and the response from the
management;

d. reviewed the audit strategy provided by the independent
auditor and made recommendation to the Board for the
independent auditor’'s appointment, remuneration and
terms of engagement on audit services for the year ended
31 December 2016;

e. reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
independent auditor for non-audit services;

f. reviewed with the management the accounting practices
and principles adopted by the Group;

g. oversaw the development and implementation of the
Group's risk management framework and assisted the
Board in conducting independent evaluation of the
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting procedures
and risk management and internal control systems;

h.  ensured that the management has fulfilled its duty to
establish and maintain effective risk management and
internal control systems including adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff working in the
Group's accounting and financial reporting function;
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i. reviewed the top tier risks of the Group and recommended
mitigating actions therefor;

j- furnished opinions to the management on risk associated
with significant matters of the Group;

k. reviewed internal audit reports prepared by the Internal
Audit Department and directed the department in its
approaches to audit planning and reports and ensured that
the internal audit function was supported by adequate
resources and is effective; and

reviewed the changes (where applicable) to the
procedure in monitoring connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions and the mechanism of
whistleblowing.

The Board agrees with the proposal of the Audit Committee
regarding the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the Company’s independent auditor for the year ending 31
December 2017. The Company will put forward a resolution
in respect of the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the Company’s independent auditor for the year ending 31
December 2017 for approval by Shareholders at the AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of the Chairman of the
Board, the Managing Director and all the Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for the review of the remuneration mechanism and incentive
scheme of the Directors and senior management, and the
establishment and maintenance of a reasonable and competitive
remuneration level in order to attract and retain Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee was authorised by the Board to
determine the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and
senior management and make recommendation to the Board for
the remuneration of Non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2016. The
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee is

FWEEER_E—RFETT—RE
Eﬁé' mﬁjzé\ﬂjrauﬁz/‘ﬁﬁp[l?:

as follows:

Attendance
Members of the Remuneration Committee FNEEERE HERE
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria — Chairman BERLLE — F 11
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong SRIT R A& 0/1
Mr. He Jianbo o] ®0% %5 A& 1/
Mr. Selwyn Mar BHRETE 1/1
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy MR AR B S A 1/1

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
approved the 2015 annual bonus proposal, 2016 annual salary
adjustment proposal, the salary for an Executive Director and a
deputy general manager appointed during the year.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairman of the
Board, the Managing Director and all the Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
formulating the policy for nomination of Directors and to lead
the process of identifying and nominating candidates suitably
qualified to become Board members. It reviews the Board
structure, size and composition and makes recommendation
to the Board on re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for the Chairman and the chief executive of the
Company. It also reviews the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the equality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which
include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, integrity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee has the
primary responsibility for the implementation of such policy and
will annually review its effectiveness.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2016. The
attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee is as

REZEGN_ZE—RFRTIT-REZ
EXRBHEGRZBERET:

follows:

Attendance
Members of the Nomination Committee REEEEHE HERE
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong — Chairman SRITEREE — EE 0/1
Mr. He Jianbo fa] |0 % & 11
Mr. Selwyn Mar BHRELE 1/
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria EEIRZ T 11
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy MR B S A 1/

During the vyear, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the Board
Diversity Policy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for determining the policy
for corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties including the development and
review of the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
Directors, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and
monitor the Company’s code of conduct and to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the position on the
compliance with the CG Code and approved the Corporate
Governance Report contained in the Company’s 2015 Annual
Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
independent auditor of the Group, received approximately HK$3.78
million (2015: HK$3.7 million) for audit services, and approximately
HK$1.2 million (2015: HK$1.9 million) for non-audit services which
include the review of the 2016 interim report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chung Wing Yee has been acting as Company Secretary of the
Company since August 2006. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Chung has participated
professional training activities for more than 15 hours in 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

A. Convening of special general meeting on requisition
and putting forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up share capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company have the right to
requisite the Directors to convene a special general meeting of
the Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist and deposited
at the registered office of the Company.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a special general meeting of the Company.

B. Enquiries from Shareholders
The Company’s website provides email address, postal address,
fax number and telephone number by which enquiries may be
put to the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

AND INVESTMENT COMMUNITY

The Company attaches great importance to communications with
Shareholders and the investment community (which refers to the
Company’s potential investors and research analysts reporting and
analysing the Company’s status and performance).

Corporate information will be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community by way of the Company’s announcements,
websites, meetings with shareholders and general investor relations
activities.

It is believed that effective communication with investors is
essential for promoting their understanding of the Group’s business
development. The Company releases property sales update by way of
announcement and press release on a regular basis.

A. Announcements and corporate website

The Company maintains its corporate website at
www.minmetalsland.com where announcements, financial
reports, press releases and update information on the Group are
available. It serves as a key channel for Shareholders and the
investment community to access reliable and timely information
about the Company. Shareholders would raise enquiries or
provide feedbacks via the designated section on the Company’s
corporate website.

The following corporate information, which has been released
by the Company to the Stock Exchange, is also posted on the
Company’s website immediately thereafter:

— announcements, notices and circulars

— annual reports and interim reports

—  Bye-laws

— list of Directors

—  terms of reference of all the committees of the Board
—  procedure for nomination of Directors by Shareholders
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General meetings of Shareholders

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the meetings. They are welcome to raise
questions and comments at general meetings where members
of the Board and independent auditor of the Company are
delighted to answer.

Shareholders are informed of the voting procedure of general
meetings by the Chairman of the general meeting. The Company
also provides Shareholders with sufficient and timely information
concerning the date, location and agenda of general meetings
and other information regarding issues to be decided at general
meetings.

The Company ensures votes cast are properly counted and
recorded. Independent scrutineers are appointed to count
the number of votes cast at general meetings. The Company
announces and publishes, on the same day of the general
meeting, the poll voting results on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange.

Investor relations activities

We believe that, to enhance corporate governance, regular
and effective communication with investors is essential and in
particular, for their understanding of the Company’s business
development. We endeavour to maintain regular meetings and
frequent dialogues with the investment community through
participation in investor conferences, analyst and media briefings,
non-deal road shows and investors’ and shareholders’ visits.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents (i.e.

the Bye-laws) during the year.
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The Board is pleased to present the environmental, social and

governance report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

REPORT SCOPE

This report details the Group’s environmental, social and governance
theories as well as practices for the year 2016. The contents of the
report pay particular attention to the real estate development and
property management business of the Group at the Hong Kong and
Beijing offices.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

In order to let stakeholders to have a better understanding of the Group’s
core values, operation philosophy, business performance, development
strategy and the environmental, social and governance practices, we
maintain good communication with our stakeholders through interviews,
telephone conferencing, e-mails so as to get known to their opinions and
to address their concerns. The Group also takes the initiative to release
corporation information through the corporate websites, press release,
announcements, circulars, company journals and reports. Stakeholders
can obtain more information about the Company by browsing our

website at http:/www.minmetalsland.com.
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Environment

It has become a major issue worldwide to solve the problem
of climate change and to combat the increase of global
temperature. A total of 195 signatory states unanimously agreed

to the entering into of the “Paris Agreement” at the 21st
meeting of the Conference of Parties of the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) held in
Paris, France in 2015. It aims at reducing greenhouse emissions
and slowing down global warming and seeks to combat global
warming by limiting global temperature increase to well below
2 degrees celsius by 2100.

To achieve this end, the Group is strictly committed to the
compliance of environmental protection laws and regulations
of places where it has operations. It has also formulated
administrative measures to conserve energy and water as
well as to reduce waste in daily operations. During the year
under review, there was neither prosecution for violations of
environmental protection laws and regulations against the Group
nor has the Group received any complaints in this respect.
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1.1 Energy Saving and Emissions Reduction

Electricity Consumption The Group sets up target to
improve energy efficiency in the planning and design stage
of its real estate development projects and in the course of
performing property management services. To illustrate, the
Group carried out a thorough evaluation on lighting system
soon after it has taken over the project management duties of
Minmetals International in Tianjin. After evaluation, a range of
measures to reduce excessive lighting (including using energy-
saving fluorescent lights and adjusting lighting times) have been
implemented. This resulted in the savings of approximately
RMB200,000 in electricity expenses for such project for the year.

The key business units sign, at the beginning of each year,
undertakings on energy saving and emission reduction to the
Real Estate Development Department of the Company. With
an aim to achieving gradual reduction of waste, each of these
business units is assigned with a clearly specified and quantitative
target each year. A monthly progress report is required to be
submitted by these business units for monitoring purpose.

The Group is devoted to improving energy efficiency in its daily
operations. The Beijing and Hong Kong offices have accordingly
adopted the following measures:

o Replacing electrical appliances with more energy-efficient
models

o Maintaining indoor temperature at 25.5°C

o Either switching off electrical equipments or enabling

energy-saving mode during lunch breaks and idle periods

o Turning off electrical equipments such as fax machines,
photocopiers, air conditioners, lights, computers and other
office equipments during out-of-work hours and vacation
periods

o Arranging regular cleaning and maintenance works
for electrical equipments so as to improve operational
efficiency and to reduce malfunction

o Installing heat-dissipating double-net curtains and growing
vegetation

Monitoring actions are frequently taken to ensure energy saving

measures are strictly adhered to. In the event of non-compliance,
in-house reminders will be posted.
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"Use Less, Waste Less” The Group collaborates with
contractors and suppliers in the treatment of construction waste,
wastewater and other industrial wastes arising from construction
and project management activities in order to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations of places in which the Group has
operations. Under the principle of efficient use of resources,
we have implemented policies for reduction of waste. As such,
the staff are asked to use electronic storage rather than paper
storage and to avoid printing unnecessary copies of documents.
They are encouraged to reuse printed papers and to use both
sides of papers for printing and copying. In-house reminders
about efficient paper use are posted near printers and copying
machines. Adequate recycling bins are provided for collection
of waste papers and other non-recycled materials, and waste
haulers and recyclers are arranged to pick up these materials.

Business Trips The advancement in technology brings
about new development in fast, convenient and reliable
telecommunications systems. By means of audio conferencing
and telephone conferencing, we save costs and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions arising from traffic and transportation
of business trips. Prior approval is required for all applications
for business trips under the Group’s administrative policy.

In order to raise staff’s awareness of environmental protection,
the Group has carried out a series of policies and measures to
promote energy efficiency and reduction of wastes. It is hoped
that this would not only bring about changes in the daily lives
of individual staff but also extend it to the society as a whole
to nurture a cleaner, greener and better lifestyle.
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1.2 Usage of Natural Resources

It is inevitable that the Group would, during its course of
business, consume natural resources which are scarcity in nature.
We have kept on looking for the most efficient way of use of
natural resources such as construction materials, drinking water
and papers to avoid wastage of resources. In this connection,
we have acted in accordance with the following well-established
regulations:
Construction Materials The Group has a firm attitude
towards efficient use of resources. We work closely with
construction contractors and suppliers for methods to increase
efficiency of supply and application of construction materials.
It is observed that higher efficiency of use of resources is
attributable to sophisticated design of real estate development
projects and stringent monitoring of construction works and
application of construction materials. Meanwhile, we are
working on the feasibility study on the use of environmental
friendly building materials.
Water Management The Group adopts the practice of
consuming water in accordance with its needs, whether in
construction sites or in daily activities. Notices are posted to
remind staff and visitors that they should always conserve water.
Saving Paper We acknowledge the environmental
protection concept of “use less, waste less”, and actively
promote “digital office” at work. Staff are asked not to print
out unnecessary copies of documents and to use both sides
of the sheet of paper, whether for copying or printing. Guests
will be served with drinks in glasses instead of paper cups and
employees should use their own cups at meetings. Recycled
papers will be used for bulk print copies of annual reports and
company journals.
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1.3 Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is devoted to maintaining the balance between its
core business of real estate development and the ecological
environment and striving for the opportunities for green
development in overcoming environmental challenges to achieve
sustainability. The Group promotes the concept of “returning to
nature” in its project planning and design and adopts the notion
of green design “according to local pre-requisites, resources
conservation and comprehensive utilization” in order to enhance
the applicability of buildings and to enlarge their life span. On
the construction side, the Group reinforces its management over
construction sites and strictly adheres to the “four conservations
and one protection” policy concerning land, water, raw materials
and energy conservation, as well as the reduction of hazardous
effect of dust, wastewater, construction waste and noise to the
neighbouring residents and the environment.

Employee Participation The Group promotes the
idea of “four conservations and one protection” and other
environmental protection ideas by e-mails, notices and meetings
in a timely manner. We have organized various working meetings
for energy conservation and theme trainings for environmental
application. Through educational promotion, environmental
awareness of our staff will be enhanced gradually, and effectively

applied to their works and daily lives.

Supplier Cooperation
regional strategic cooperative suppliers and priority will be given

The Group has shortlisted its

to those suppliers that are in close proximity to the project
concerned.

The Workplace

The Group actively builds and maintains safe, healthy, fair,
discrimination-free and harassment-free workplaces so as to
develop harmonious employment relations. During the vyear
under review, the Company has had no prosecution relating
to violations of relevant employment laws and regulations nor
has it received other cases of complaint related to employment
relations.
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2.1

2.2

Remuneration Package

The Group has adopted a well-established remuneration system
based on employees’ work performance and experience, the
remuneration policies of places where it has operations, the
Group's business performance and operational results as well as
the industry practice and standards in order to strike a balance
internally and externally and to offer attractive remuneration
package.

The Group provides employees with reasonable remuneration,
comprising wages, different kinds of allowances and bonuses,
and insurance and retirement protection plans in accordance with
the legal requirements.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Inclusion

The Group is committed to providing employees with equal
opportunities in the spheres of employment, promotion,
remuneration and benefits, continuous development and
training. We adhere to the principle of equal employment
opportunity with no discrimination in regard to gender, age,
marital status, physical disability, ethnicity or otherwise, offering
equality in employment opportunity. The Group will only
terminate employment relations only under circumstances that
it is reasonable and legal. All remuneration and compensation
will be provided based on and in accordance with legal and

regulatory requirements.

With a robust recruitment system in place, we effectively verify
an applicant’s age, putting an end to the employment of child
labour. In addition, we strictly prohibit any form of forced
labour or forced working, guaranteeing that employees work
voluntarily.

Annual appraisal of work performance is a key part of the
Group's assessment system. It is used to review employee’s
work performance throughout the year and to plan future
development goals. The Group consistently uses an employee’s
work ability, work quality and performance as the basis of
promotion.
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2.3 Work-Life Balance

The Group acknowledges that a balance between life and work
will help employees exhibit better performance. Apart from
providing basic employee benefits as required by the relevant
laws and regulations, the Group also provides paid annual leave,
sick leave, marriage and funeral leave so that an employee
can effectively manage both work and life. Further, the Group
provides medical insurance, life insurance and accident insurance
and staff would enjoy less expensive medical services. In the
event that an employee deceased or permanently lost their
ability to work, their family members would be provided with
compensation as financial assistance. On the other hand, the
Group also provides employees with body checks annually, which
can allow the employees to observe their own health conditions.

In order to strengthen team cohesion, the Group has arranged
various leisure activities throughout the year including Spring
Dinner, Women'’s Day Luncheon, hiking, boat cruise and bowling
fun day.
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2.4 Occupational Health

and Safety

The Group attaches
great importance to
occupational health and
safety of its employees.
The Group strictly
adheres to the safety
laws and regulations of
each operating location,
with an aim to achieve a record of zero injuries and deaths. In
this connection, there is in place appropriate and responsible
management to create a safe working condition and ensure
all employees a healthy, safety and comfortable environment.
During the year, there was no recorded case of occupational
death or injury. Besides, there was neither prosecution for
violations of occupational health and safety laws or regulations
against the Group, nor has it received any complaints in this
regard.

Health and Safety Supervision The Group’s Beijing office
has established occupational health and safety regulations
that, provide a solid foundation for related supervision. With
regard to personal development, the Group has formulated
“Production Responsibility Management Regulation” and
“Education and Training Management Regulation”, which clarify
safety supervision duties and strengthen safety awareness. In
respect to crisis management of work safety accidents, we act in
accordance with the “Work Safety Accident Hazard Identification
and Control Management Regulation” and the “Work Safety
Accident and Violation Reporting Management Regulation”,
which regulate management tasks before and after. In addition,
there are well-established reporting and monitoring systems. We
strictly comply with the “Work Safety Accident and Violation
Reporting Management Regulation” and “Work Supervision and
Monitoring Management Rules”, as well as the “Contractor Safe
Working Management Regulation”, to strengthen production
safety supervision in the course of a contractor's production
operations. It also regulates the behaviour of both the employer
and the contractor in safety management and clearly stipulates
the responsibilities of the parties to avoid the occurrence of
accidents at work as far as possible.
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With regard to office management, we have adopted a series of
measures to improve occupational health and safety, including:

o Provision of sufficient sanitary equipment

o Ensuring adequate lighting

o Ensuring the circulation of fresh air

° Carrying out regular safety inspections

o Provision of sufficient personal protective equipment, such

as protective masks, antibacterial liquid hand soap and
alcohol based antibacterial tissues

o Regular cleaning of carpets, water dispensers and air-
conditioning systems

o Regular pest control arrangements to prevent pest
infestation

o Implementing emergency preparedness

o Holding health and safety seminars on a regular basis

° Provision of influenza vaccinations

Emergency Plans Emergency plans can mitigate injuries and
deaths in an accident. As such, the Group has implemented risk

management and precautionary measures, including:

o Conspicuous placement of emergency escape route
diagrams in offices

o Provision of sufficient and appropriate firefighting
equipments

o Regular inspection of firefighting equipments to ensure
that they are in good state

o Holding annual fire drill

o Provision of sufficient first aid facilities

Trust and Communication By establishing mutual trust and
sincere communication with employees, the Group strives to
improving health and safety level in both the construction sites
and the offices, promoting positive, safe and healthy culture
at work, encouraging employees to raise concerns on health
and safety matters and all of which will be followed up by
designated staff members to enhance improvement. By means of
case studies, we hope that staff awareness of health and hazard
at work would be raised, which can improve the occupational
safety and health management of the Group.
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2.5 Employee Training and Development

The Group, adhering to the philosophy of “innovating new
mechanisms, inspiring vision, focusing on talent, focusing on
usage, facing the future and the forging of teams”, unearths
outstanding talent and nurtures talent echelons in order to
achieve the mission of long-term and sustainable development.
Talented Echelon Program The Group develops
outstanding working teams by means of unearthing competent
graduates in conjunction with comprehensive training programs.
We also arrange for existing key officers to lead those are newly
appointed, pairing the old with the new, with the former guiding
the latter, achieving the goal of perpetuating work and cultural
traditions.

“Class 80"
training program in 2016. With the theme of

The Group began the “Class 80" strategic

“inspiring a shared
vision and marching into the future”, it focuses on training of
the Group's young and enlighten staff in the hope that they
will treasure the valuable opportunity to obtain practicable
experience, develop team spirit, enhance innovative thinking,
broaden vision, enhance inner qualities and forging competence.
These participants will become the Group's leaders in the future
to shoulder the responsibility for the Group’s future development
and corporate image building. They will also help to establish
the system of “pursuing achievement, advocating innovation,
scrupulous honesty and willingness to collaborate” and promote
the understanding of the intrinsic logic and connotations of
“cherishing limited resources, pursuing boundless development”

as well as “never delaying and never slacking”.
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3.2

The Group will keep on reviewing the needs of training and
development for employees, assisting employees in their career
development and encouraging employees to participate in
lectures and training programs to improve their ability to cope
with all kinds of challenges.

The Market

Business Partners

The Group's real estate development and property management
businesses involve contractors and suppliers in various aspects.
We advocate the establishment of mutual communication,
mutually-cooperative relationships and growth with our
business partners. One of the Groups selection criteria
is that whether a contractor or supplier has established
environmental management systems and occupational health
and safety supervision systems, that would enhance continuous
improvement. We endeavour to work with green enterprises. For
example, we select the printing systems service provider that has
obtained ISO 14001 environmental management certificate and
assisted us to recycle all old printers and consumables. We will
annually review the performance of our contractors and suppliers

so as to seeking room for improvement.

Product Liability

“Building the best, Creating a legend” is our corporate mission
and we are devoted to developing into an innovative and
sustainable real estate development enterprise.

Real Estate Development The Group will act in accordance
with the product and service quality guarantee policies and the
requirements of regional laws and regulations to promote its
products in a fair and equitable manner, safeguarding consumer
rights to know, right to choose, and right to fair trade. In terms
of quality control, we carry out inspections according to the
Group's “Real Estate Project Quality Survey and Measurement
Operational Guidelines”. Through customer service management
systems, we have standardised work contents and workflow of
after-sales service, establishing service standards and specifying
service quality, guaranteeing a customer’s after-sales rights and
interests.
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4.1

Property Management The Group has implemented a
comprehensive vocational training system. We hope that the
training regarding work practices and quality and, occupational
health and operational safety will facilitate employees to provide
true and accurate information to customers. Besides, such kind
of training would provide employees knowledge to handle
unexpected incidents. We maintain close communication with
our service providers and review each month their property
management service quality to ensure constant improvement of
their service. Our professional customer service team listen to
the opinions of customers and responds to their queries in a
sincere and respectful manner, and provide supporting services.
During the year, Hong Kong's property management business
was awarded the Triple Star Managed Property Award in the
Kowloon West “Best Security Services Awards”.

The Group strictly adheres to all relevant product liability laws.
During the year, there were no prosecution for violations of
product liability or privacy-related legislation against the Group.

Society
We share the social responsibility and devote efforts to promote

long-term sustainable development in communities. We regard
“caring for the needs of the community, responding to the
concerns of interested parties, maintaining social and business
order” as our mission for social development.

Community Development

The Group actively participates in public service activities and
shows concerns for vulnerable groups. The Group takes an active
role in fundraising and voluntary activities of local social welfare
institutions with an aim to breed a culture of mutual care and
support.
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Compassionate Rides to Examinations and Free Rice
Dumplings The National College Entrance Examination is
one of the country’s important examinations. This year, the
Changsha Kaifu project company joined hands with Changsha
FM105 Radio as well as Changsha Public Security Bureau
Traffic Police Detachment to launch the “Compassionate Rides
to Examinations, We're on the Way"” event. A total of 480
“compassionate rides to examinations”, 10,000 rice dumplings
and the “Big Four Compassionate Examination Assistance
Activities” sent out best wishes to students sitting the National
College Entrance Examinations.

Traditional Chinese Medicine Health Assessment and
Consultation Event The Group’s projects such as Riviera
Royale, Laguna Bay, Sello Royale, Academic Royale, Yan Shan
Ju, organised a series of Traditional Chinese Medicine (“TCM")
Health Assessment activities. Nanjing’s provincial and city-wide
TCM doctors were invited to attend and perform the four
diagnostic methods of TCM — inspection, listening and smelling,
inquiry and palpation for the owners of these projects. Directed
at different groups of people, the secrets of year-round health
were explained and they were provided with scientific health
maintenance and recuperation methods. At the same time,
owners who came to the event were given on-the-spot personal
healthcare services such as the ‘gua sha’ technique, cupping
therapy, laser treatment and others. This TCM community
healthcare event attracted more than 300 owners and received
exceptional recognition by the community.
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Juvenile Swimming Gala In response to the country’s
“National Fitness Day” to promote sports activities, the Group
held the “Juvenile Swimming Gala” for four consecutive years.
The activity was supported by more than 40 owners of Nanjing
Laguna Bay, Sello Royale, Riviera Royale and Academic Royale.
This 50-metre swimming competition by age group and ranked
by timings, became a remarkable event in the Laguna Bay and

Riviera Royale clubhouses.
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Mid-autumn Festival Art and Literature Joint
Performance During the year, the Group has arranged four
Mid-autumn Festival Arts and Literature Joint Performances for
residents of Nanjing’s Laguna Bay, Riviera Royale, Sello Royale
and Academic Royale. The theme of the event is “Because of
you, Everything is wonderful”. Apart from performances by
professional performers, 118 owners were invited to perform on
stage. It has attracted more than 3,000 audience to enjoy the

festive celebrations.
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4.2 Ethics and Integrity

The Group publicises and advocates honest business operations
and fair competition so as to maintain a fair and honest society.
Members of the board from different sectors jointly oversee the
Company's corporate governance. A total of four committees
of the Board, namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee have been
set up to oversee particular aspects of affairs of the Group.

The Group has adopted a set of “Employee’s Conduct and
Business Ethics Standards”, and the contracts of employment
signed with employees also stipulate the requirements of
employees’ ethics and personal integrity. Upon taking up
the position in the Company, an employee must first declare
his interest to the Human Resources Department. Employee
who violates relevant laws and regulations will be subject
to disciplinary and pecuniary actions. The Group has also
formulated a set of “Rules and Procedures for Directors and
Relevant Employees of the Company in respect of Dealings in
Securities of the Company”, which provide guidelines to the
Directors and relevant employees in dealings of Company’s
securities. It aims at preventing those concerned from exploiting
inside information about the Group for their own benefit or for
the benefit of others. The Group has established a “Policy on
Disclosure of Inside Information” that sets out the rules for the
management and the release of inside information in accordance
with regulatory disclosure requirements.

The Group has whistle-blowing channels that encourage
employees to report potential fraud and other ethical issues.
Reports concerning domestic issues can be sent directly to
the Disciplinary and Inspection Department at the Beijing
headquarters, whilst in Hong Kong, the Audit Committee and
the Internal Audit Department are responsible for the follow-
ups, investigation works and they take measures.
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All kinds of procurement activities must be carried out according
to the Group’s established tendering policies, with bids invited
under an open-tender system. The Group’s Tender Supervisory
Committee and the Tender Supervision Group will conduct
reviews of all purchasing and tendering matters in each
region, city and project company from time to time. Contracts
signed with construction units and material suppliers contain
the “Integrity Warranty” clause to prohibit either party from
engaging in any form of corruption or bribery.

Each year, the Group employs an independent auditor to conduct
an independent audit to ensure that accounts are impartial
and complete. The Group strictly adheres to all anti-corruption
legislation. During the year, there was no prosecution relating
to violations of relevant legislation against the Group.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yuanrong, aged 61, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company in March 2015. He
graduated from the School of International Communications of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1980 with a Bachelors
Degree and is a Senior International Business Engineer in the PRC.
Mr. Zhang joined China Minmetals in 1985 and has been serving
various departments of China Minmetals group for investment, trading,
mineral resources and financial services businesses. Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in real estate development, strategic investment,
financial services and corporate management.

Mr. He Jianbo, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Managing Director of the Company in December 2007. He was
appointed to the position of Deputy Chairman of the Company in April
2013. Mr. He is responsible for the operation of and strategic planning
for the Company. Mr. He is a Senior International Business Engineer in
the PRC. He is also a Council Member of the Chinese Association for
International Understanding, a Vice President of the Liaoning Province
Youth Federation and a Vice President of China Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce. He graduated from the Peking University in 1992 with
a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and obtained a Master’s Degree in
International Finance from Peking University and a Master's Degree in
Business Administration from Saint Mary's University of Canada. Mr.
He joined China Minmetals in 1992 and had served the positions of
director of general administrative office, director of strategic planning
division and a member of the strategic planning committee of China
Minmetals. Mr. He has over 20 years of experience in corporate
management, strategic planning and investment.

Mr. Yin Liang, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director and
a Deputy Managing Director of the Company in December 2006. He
is now an Executive Director and the Senior Deputy Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Yin graduated from the University of International
Business and Economics of China in 1991 with a Bachelor of Law
Degree and obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Saint Mary’s University of Canada and a Master’s Degree in Law
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yin joined China Minmetals in
1991 and has been serving various departments of China Minmetals
group for investment, corporate management, capital market, legal
affairs and trading. Mr. Yin has extensive experience in real estate
development, investment, capital market and corporate management.
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Ms. He Xiaoli, aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in February 2002. She is now an Executive Director and a
Deputy Managing Director of the Company. Ms. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Accounting from North China University of Technology
and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the University
of South Australia. She is a qualified PRC Senior Accountant and a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior
to joining the Company, Ms. He was the head of business division and
the deputy minister of accounting information division of the finance
department of the previous China National Nonferrous Metals Industry
Corporation. Ms. He has extensive experience in financial management
of enterprises.

Mr. Liu Zeping, aged 48, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in June 2010. He is now an Executive Director
and a Deputy Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Liu holds
a Bachelor’'s Degree from Military Academy of Engineering and an
Executive Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua
University. He is a Qualified Senior Engineer in the PRC. Mr. Liu
joined China Minmetals in 1992 and is a director and the President
of 23rd Metallurgical. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in real estate
development and construction business.

Mr. Cui Hushan, aged 59, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in August 2016. He holds a Master's Degree in
Law from the Renmin University of China and a Master's Degree
in Business Administration from the University of Texas at Arlington
in the U.S.A. and is a Senior International Business Engineer in the
PRC. Mr. Cui joined China Minmetals in 1988 and has been serving
various departments and subsidiaries of China Minmetals group for
investment, trading and corporate management businesses. He has
also worked for the National Committee of Economic Systems Reform
for macro management affairs of large enterprise groups. Mr. Cui has
extensive experience in strategic investment, international business,
and corporate planning and management.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

ESEREEEBRAS[MT

Mr. Selwyn Mar, aged 81, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2002. Mr. Mar
graduated from the London School of Economics, University of
London. He is a Chartered Accountant, a director of Nexia Charles
Mar Fan Limited and the Managing Director of Marfan & Associates
Limited. Mr. Mar was the President of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 1991, a member of the Appeals Panel
of Securities & Futures Commission and a member of the Board of
Governors of Chinese International School. Mr. Mar has been actively
involved in commercial and industrial undertakings in Hong Kong and
the PRC in the past 39 years. Presently, he sits on the board of three
other Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. Mar is an Honorary Fellow of
the Lingnan University.

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 1997. Ms. Tam holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from the University of London and has
been a practising barrister since 1972. Ms. Tam is currently involved
in numerous community services, which include the Deputy of the
National People’s Congress of the PRC, a member of the Basic Law
Committee of the HKSAR and the Bar Association, as well as the
Chairman of the Operations Review Committee, a member of the
Witness Protection Review Board and the Ex-officio member of the
Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption. Ms. Tam is a Justice of Peace since 1982. She was
awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Government of the HKSAR
in 2013.

Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy, aged 69, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2015. Mr. Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1970.
He also held a Master’s Degree in Science of Management from the
Stanford Graduate School of Business of the U.S.A. He joined the Hong
Kong Government as Administrative Officer in 1970 and had worked
in areas like housing, environmental protection, land administration,
procurement, financial services, infrastructural development and mega
projects. He has served as the head of the New Airport Projects
Coordination Office, the Airport Authority, and the Urban Renewal
Authority. Currently, he is a member of the Lantau Development
Advisory Committee, the Country Marine Parks Board, and a court
member of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam was
awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and the Golden Bauhinia Star Medals
by the Government of the HKSAR in 2002 and 2008 respectively and
has also been a Justice of Peace since 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Lu, aged 59, joined the Company as the General Manager
of the Real Estate Development Department in May 2007. Mr.
Yang is now a Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Yang
graduated from Chongging (Jianzhu) Architectural & Engineering
University (now known as Chongging University) in 1982 with a
Bachelor of Engineering Degree. He also holds a Grade One Project
Manager Certificate issued by the PRC’s Ministry of Construction
and is a member of the Chartered Institute of Building, U.K. He was
previously employed to managerial positions in various companies
of China Overseas Holdings Limited with exposure to a variety of
domestic and overseas engineering projects. He was also the general
manager of a PRC real estate development company of China Overseas
Holdings Limited. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in development,
operation and management of construction contracting and real estate
development business.

Mr. Yang Shangping, aged 43, joined the Company as the General
Manager of a real estate development company of the Company
in Nanjing in May 2007. He is now a Deputy General Manager of
the Company. Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Structural
Engineering from Tongji University and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Fudan University. He had participated in project
works for China Overseas Holdings Ltd. and Shanghai Vanke Co.,
Ltd. for over 10 years. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in project
management as well as sales and marketing and costing management.

Mr. Tang Ying Kit, Edward, aged 43, joined the Company as the
Financial Controller in April 2013. He is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tang holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration in Finance (Honours)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Tang worked in listed company and state-
owned enterprise in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang has extensive experience
in corporate finance, financial and general management.
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The Board would like to submit the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS

OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are real estate development,
specialised construction, property investment and securities
investment. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
and geographical segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 108.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0
cents (2015: HK2.0 cents) per Share payable in cash to Shareholders
whose names appearing on the register of members of the Company
on Monday, 12 June 2017.

The dividend cheques will be distributed to Shareholders on or about
Friday, 23 June 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in the
“Chairman’s Statement” as well as the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 13 and pages 14 to 35 of this Annual Report

respectively.

The financial risk factors and management of the Group are set out
in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 31 December 2016.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the “Financial Highlights”
on page 3 of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group strives to maintain balance between its core real estate
development business and the ecological environment, looking for
green development opportunities from environmental challenges
in order to promote sustainable development. The Group actively
practices environmental protection actions covering the whole building
life cycle through integration of resources and scientific management
of the industry chain, aiming to create a harmonious environment
between man and nature communion. The Group also promote the
“return to nature” concept in its project planning and design. The
real estate development projects of the Group adopt the notion of
green design “according to local conditions, resource conservation
and comprehensive utilization” in order to increase their applicability
and life, and maximise the integration between projects and natural
environment. On the construction side, the Group continued to
strengthen its construction management, by strict implementation of
the “four conservations one protection” measure on land, water, raw
materials and energy savings, and environmental protection so as to
reduce the hazardous effect of dust, waste water, construction waste
and noise to neighbouring residents and the environment.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. During the year under review, the Group complied with
the requirements under the Companies Act of Bermuda, Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules, the
SFO (Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant rules
and regulations of places which it has operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
The Group's success depends on the support from key stakeholders,
such as employees, customers and Shareholders.

Employees

Employees are important and valuable assets of the Group. The Group
rewards and recognises performing staff by providing competitive
remuneration package and implementing standardize performance
appraisal system with incentives. The Group has thorough career
development program to promote career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing opportunities within the Group
for career advancement.
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Customers

The Group’s principal customers are buyers of its real estate
development projects. The Group has established its own property
management subsidiaries in Nanjing, Changsha, Yingkou, Huizhou and
Tianjin to provide quality property management services to buyers of
its projects. They are also eligible to join our M-Land Club to enjoy
benefits from the promotions, functions, and other value-added
services provided.

Shareholders

The Group strives to enhance corporate value to Shareholders. The
Group is poised to foster business development for achieving the
sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding Shareholders by stable
dividend payouts taking into account capital adequacy levels, liquidity
positions and business expansion needs of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 27 and Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

PROPERTIES
Particulars of the major properties held for investment and properties
under development of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 31.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2016,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$608,885,000 (2015: HK$761,433,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7.
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SHARE OPTION

2003 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The 2003 Share Option Scheme, which was adopted by the Company
on 29 May 2003, expired on 28 May 2013. However, share options
granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme prior to its expiration

shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with their

terms of issue.

HE B HE
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Details of the movements of share options granted under the 2003 ¥ _-_ZTE=FEREFEEH ZBRE  RE
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016 are Z_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HItFE &8
as follows: (= U
Number of share options
BikEHE
As at  Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
1 January during the during the  during 31 December
Category of Date of Exercisable Exercise 2016 year year the year 2016
participants grant period price RZF—RE REEE REEE REEFE RIF-—RE
SEEE REBEH T TEE —HA—H Bl i %% +t—A=+—-8
HK$
BT
(i) Directors
EE
Mr. He Jianbo 30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 2,900,000 = - - 2,900,000
fa] 8K % & 30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Fff 7 2)
Mr. Yin Liang 30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 2,200,000 — - - 2,200,000
FrELE 30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Fff 7 2)
Ms. He Xiaoli 30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 2,100,000 = = = 2,100,000
fA/NEBr L 30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Ff 7 2)
Mr. Liu Zeping 30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 1,470,000 = = = 1,470,000
218 F L4 30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Ff 7 2)
(ii) Employees and others  1.12.2008 1.12.2010 to 30.11.2018 (Note 1) 0.45 4,386,002 - 158,670 113,333 4,113,999
EEREM 1.12.2008 1.12.2010%30.11.2018 (Fff 7 1)
30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20 38,200,000 — — 1,100,000 37,100,000
30.11.2012 30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Fff 7 2)
Total 485t 51,256,002 = 158,670 1,213,333 49,883,999
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Notes:

These share options are exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage of
share options of each tranche exercisable within the periods commencing from 1
December 2010 to 30 November 2018, from 1 December 2011 to 30 November
2018 and from 1 December 2012 to 30 November 2018 are 30%, 30% and 40%

respectively.

These share options are exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage
of share options of each tranche exercisable within the periods commencing
from 30 November 2014 to 29 November 2022, from 30 November 2015 to 29
November 2022 and from 30 November 2016 to 29 November 2022 are 30%,
30% and 40% respectively.

Save as disclosed above, no share options in respect of the 2003 Share

Option Scheme were granted, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

2013 SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company adopted the 2013 Share Option Scheme on 7 June 2013
to recognise and acknowledge eligible persons for their contribution

or potential contribution to the Group.

No share options have yet been granted by the Company pursuant to
the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

The principal terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme are set out as

follows:

1

2

80

Participants

Any directors or any employees of any company of the Group
and any advisers of, consultants of, contractors to any company
of the Group or any person who has any relationship (whether
business or otherwise) with any company of the Group or any
person whom the Directors consider, in their sole discretion, has
contributed or will contribute or can contribute to the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the
2013 Share Option Scheme is 333,785,270,
approximately 9.98% of the issued share capital of the Company

representing

as at the date of this report.
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®)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No share options under the 2013 Share Option Scheme may be
granted to any eligible person, which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options already granted or to be
granted to such eligible person under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such new grant exceeding 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of such new grant. Any grant
of further share options above this limit shall be subject to the
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up under a
share option

The Directors may in their absolute discretion determine the
period during which a share option may be exercised and notify
each grantee, save that such period shall not be later than 10
years from the date on which the Directors make an offer of
the share option subject to the provisions for early termination
as stipulated in the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance of the
share option

The offer of a share option made in accordance with the 2013
Share Option Scheme must be accepted within 28 business days
from the date on which the offer is made and the amount
payable on acceptance of the share option is HK$10.

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board at the
time of grant of the relevant share option and shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price per Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant share option; (ii) the amount equivalent to the
average closing price per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant share option; or (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life
The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid until 6 June 2023.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong
Mr. Cui Hushan (appointed on 25 August 2016)

Executive Directors

Mr. He Jianbo

Mr. Yin Liang

Ms. He Xiaoli

Mr. Liu Zeping (re-designated on 18 March 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Selwyn Mar

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria

Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy

Mr. Liu Zeping and Mr. Cui Hushan will retire from the offices of
Director at the AGM in accordance with Bye-law 111(A) and Bye-law
102 of the Bye-Laws respectively and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company and any
of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as
follows:

Changes in Director's emoluments during the year are set out in Note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The interests of Directors in competing businesses that were required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules as informed
by the relevant Directors are as follows:

Mr. He Jianbo, being the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and
an Executive Director of the Company, is also a director of Yingkou
Industrial Park and Minmetals Real Estate.

Mr. Liu Zeping, being an Executive Director and a Deputy Managing
Director of the Company, is also a director and the president of 23rd
Metallurgical, and a director of Yingkou Industrial Park and Minmetals
Real Estate.

Yingkou Industrial Park, Minmetals Real Estate and 23rd Metallurgical
are companies established under the laws of the PRC. Yingkou
Industrial Park is engaged in the development of Minmetals (Yingkou)
Industrial Park. Minmetals Real Estate is engaged in real estate
development and operation, construction, property management, real
estate agency, real estate advertising and exhibition and other real
estate related business. 23rd Metallurgical is engaged in construction
engineering, mining development and operations, real estate and

related industries business.

In case the Board decides that there are any issues of conflict between
the Group and the aforementioned companies, conflicting Directors
will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had any competing interests in
a business which competes or is likely to compete with the business
of the Group (as would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules if each of them were a controlling shareholder).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO), which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they

EERFETBASRIRG - HE
BRHEREHFHER ZEm R R

RZTE-—RETZA=+—H REAQFE
EELRBEGIE"ART _HKRZIREFEZ
BrfMas EFNEARFAZEEZTHRAER
ARA S EEMBEEEGREZ P E KD
ZEBIZBOEABEROFTHREERBESFR
HEGRAFTEARELRENDF(BERR

are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or & & F M B ERMIIGXHES KB RIEERZ

pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, or as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant

BEFRB)HRIE LT RS+ 2
FETRAMANGANRA MBI zEm KRR

to section 352 of the SFO, were as follows: =P8 UNE
Long Position in Shares REHhzEFE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued Shares
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held EEBRTRMDEE
EENA EanE FiaZBRMmEE ZEBHESE
Mr. He Jianbo Personal 2,040,000 0.06%
fa] 1) 388 55 £ N
Mr. Yin Liang Personal 1,360,000 0.04%
FREE & A
Ms. He Xiaoli Personal 1,163,333 0.03%
A/ NB 2t &l A

Note: Details of Directors’ interests in share options of the Company are disclosed in

the section headed “Share Option” above.

Pt ] — &R e
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) as at
31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age,
was granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any equity or
debt securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) during the year ended 31 December
2016.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option” and
“Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, the Company had
no other outstanding options, convertible securities, warrants or other

similar rights as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there was no repurchase or exercise of options
and convertible securities during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the laws of Bermuda.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, according to the register of interests kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the following entities
had interests in the Shares and underlying Shares which fall to be

EFERR
R=F-AE+=A=+—R REFAAEL

BARARBERMIE=A=
%E%ﬁpaﬂﬁuaﬁ THEER
ERBESRBEGAE T

= R

T 1%2%ﬁm7(‘az
AN B R% D
HE_KE=H
&

disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the il
SFO: EHARARNEEE 2w kK
Long Position in Shares REBRZEFE
Approximate
percentage of
total issued Shares
Interest in Shares EEBTRKEH
Name of Shareholder BERZE NEHhhz#ER ZHBBESt
China Minmetals R AR 2,071,095,506 61.93%
CMCL Gkl gh) 2,071,095,506 61.93%
CMNH hiEBEER 2,071,095,506 61.93%
CMN hiEBE RN 2,071,095,506 61.93%
Album Enterprises B 2,071,095,506 61.93%
Minmetals HK BEAE 2,071,095,506 61.93%
June Glory June Glory 2,071,095,506 61.93%
Note: June Glory is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Minmetals HK, which in turn is owned ~ M3 : June Glory 5B B RAB 22 EWMB AR MEBA

as to approximately 39.04%, 38.95% and 22.01% by CMCL, Album Enterprises
and Top Create Resources Limited respectively. Album Enterprises and Top Create
Resources Limited are wholly owned by CMN, which in turn is owned as to
approximately 99.999% and 0.001% by CMNH and CMCL respectively. CMCL
is owned as to approximately 88.4% by China Minmetals. Accordingly, each of
China Minmetals, CMCL, CMNH, CMN, Album Enterprises and Minmetals HK was
deemed as interested in the 2,071,095,506 Shares held by June Glory.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The following contract of significance was entered into or subsisted
between the Company or its subsidiaries and the Company’s
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2016:

Minmetals Land Beijing and Minmetals Zhidi (both are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company), and Minmetals Futures (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Minmetals) entered into a construction project
management agreement on 24 February 2014 for the provision of
construction project management services for the project involving the
construction of a commercial complex and certain ancillary facilities
for the use by Minmetals Futures as its southern headquarter in
the PRC. Details of the transaction are contained in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance were entered
into or subsisted between the Company or its subsidiaries and the
Company’s controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, or any of their subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers combined and the percentage of
revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to
the Group's five largest customers combined were less than 30% of
the total purchases and total revenue of the Group respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

88

A conditional construction contracting agreement dated 4
November 2013 was entered into between the Company and
23rd Metallurgical (@ non wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Minmetals) whereby the Company may from time to time
invite 23rd Metallurgical or its subsidiaries to tender and award
construction contracts, subject to successful tender, in respect
of the existing and future real estate development projects of
the Group in the PRC for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

No construction contract was awarded by the Group to 23rd
Metallurgical and any of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2016.

A tenancy agreement dated 29 May 2014 was entered into
between Minmetals Capital (@ non wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as the landlord (“Tenancy Agreement
|"), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 9th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period : two years commencing from 1 June 2014 to
31 May 2016 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$139,032 per calendar month (exclusive of

government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$27,227.10 per calendar month (being the
tenant’s share of service, management and air-
conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Capital under
Tenancy Agreement | for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
HK$695,160.
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A tenancy agreement dated 29 May 2014 was entered into
between Minmetals Cheerglory (@ non wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion as the landlord
(“Tenancy Agreement I1”), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 11th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2014 to 31
May 2016 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$139,032 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$27,227.10 per calendar month (being the
tenant's share of service, management and air-
conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Cheerglory
under Tenancy Agreement Il for the year ended 31 December
2016 was HK$695,160.

A tenancy agreement dated 29 May 2014 was entered into
between Minmetals HK (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion as the landlord (“Tenancy
Agreement IlI”), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 19th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2014 to 31
May 2016 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$139,032 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$27,227.10 per calendar month (being the
tenant’s share of service, management and air-
conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals HK under
Tenancy Agreement Il for the year ended 31 December 2016
was HK$695,160.
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A framework agreement dated 30 December 2014 was entered
into between Boluo Bihua (previously a 80%-owned subsidiary
of the Company and currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) and Shenzhen Pan-China (a company previously
holding 20% equity interest in Boluo Bihua) whereby Boluo
Bihua may from time to time invite Shenzhen Pan-China to
tender and award construction contracts, subject to successful
tender, in respect of Hallstatt See for the period from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2017.

No construction contract was awarded by Boluo Bihua to
Shenzhen Pan-China for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Boluo Bihua became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
upon completion of the acquisition of 20% interest in Boluo
Bihua by Shengshi Guangye (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) from Shenzen Pan-China, details of which are
contained in the Company’s announcement dated 27 May 2016.

A property management service contract dated 5 January 2015
was entered into between lJiahe Risheng (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and lJiasheng Properties (a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals) whereby Jiasheng
Properties provides property management services to the
sales office, show flats and unsold residential units of LOHAS
International Community for the period from 1 January 2015 to
31 December 2016.

The aggregate sum of service fee paid by lJiahe Risheng to
Jiasheng Properties for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB3,684,429.

A property management service contract dated 22 December
2016 was entered into between Jiahe Risheng and lJiasheng
Properties whereby the said property management services
provided by Jiasheng Properties will be continued for the period
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018, details of which are
contained in the Company’s announcement dated 22 December
20176.
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A property management service contract dated 5 January 2015
was entered into between Zhongrun Chengzhen (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and lJiasheng Properties
whereby Jiasheng Properties provides property management
services to the unsold residential units of Scotland Town for the
period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2016.

The aggregate sum of service fee paid by Zhongrun Chengzhen
to Jiasheng Properties for the year ended 31 December 2016
was RMB487,754.

A property management service contract dated 22 December
2016 was entered into between Zhongrun Chengzhen and
Jiasheng Properties whereby the said property management
services provided by Jiasheng Properties will be continued for
the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018, details
of which are contained in the Company’s announcement dated
22 December 2016.

A loan framework agreement dated 30 March 2015 was entered
into between Beijing Wanhu (a 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company), MLIML (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Beijing Vanke (a company holding 49% equity interest in
Beijing Wanhu) (the “Wanhu Framework Agreement”) whereby
Beijing Wanhu may from time to time provide loans by way of
entrustment loans to MLIML (or its designated wholly-owned
subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing Vanke for the period from 1
May 2015 to 30 April 2018.

A supplemental agreement to the Wanhu Framework Agreement
dated 4 August 2015 was entered into between Beijing Wanhu,
MLIML and Beijing Vanke whereby Beijing Wanhu would charge
interest on loans granted to MLIML (or its designated wholly-
owned subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing Vanke for the period
from 4 August 2015 to 30 April 2018 with reference to the
benchmark interest rate to be announced by the People’s Bank
of China from time to time.
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The aggregate amount of entrustment loans provided by Beijing
Wanhu to Beijing Vanke and the aggregate amount of interest
received from Beijing Vanke for the year ended 31 December
2016 were RMB2,205,000,000 and RMB58,016,991 respectively.

A second supplemental agreement to the Wanhu Framework
Agreement dated 6 December 2016 was entered into between
Beijing Wanhu, MLIML and Beijing Vanke whereby (i) the term
of the Wanhu Framework Agreement was extended to 31
December 2019, and (ii) the cap on the total amount of loans
to be provided by Beijing Wanhu by way of entrustment loans
to MLIML (or its designated wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC)
and Beijing Vanke, and the cap amount of interest receivable
by Beijing Wanhu for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019 will be increased, details of which are contained
in the Company’s announcement dated 6 December 2016.

A financial services framework agreement dated 3 November
2015 was entered into between the Company and Minmetals
Finance (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals)
whereby Minmetals Finance would provide the Company and its
PRC subsidiaries with deposit, loan and settlement services for
the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no fixed deposit was

placed by the Company and its PRC subsidiaries with Minmetals
Finance.
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10.

A tenancy agreement dated 29 December 2015 was entered
into between Fifth Plaza Co (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Minmetals) as the landlord, and Minmetals Land Beijing
and Condo Shanghai (both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company) as the tenants (“Tenancy Agreement IV"), details of
which are set out below:

Premises . 7th Floor and part of BM and B1 Floors, Tower
A, Minmetals Plaza, 3 Chaoyangmen North
Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC

Car Parking : Seven car parking spaces at Minmetals Plaza

Spaces

Period . three years commencing from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2018 (both dates inclusive)

Rental . the rent for the Premises (exclusive of

management, electricity and public facility
charges) was RMB1,220,128.24 per calendar
month, of which approximately RMB1,203,461.57
was borne by Minmetals Land Beijing and
approximately RMB16,666.67 was borne by
Condo Shanghai

the rent for the Car Parking Spaces (exclusive of
management fees) was RMB8,400 per calendar
month and was borne by Minmetals Land
Beijing

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Land Beijing
and Condo Shanghai under Tenancy Agreement IV for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB14,133,077.

A supplemental agreement to Tenancy Agreement IV dated
30 December 2016 was entered into between Fifth Plaza Co,
Minmetals Land Beijing and Condo Shanghai whereby Condo
Shanghai would terminate its portion of the lease under Tenancy
Agreement IV with effect from 1 January 2017 and Minmetals
Land Beijing will assume all the obligations of Condo Shanghai
under Tenancy Agreement IV with effect from 1 January 2017,
details of which are contained in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 December 2016.

10.

R-ZFE-RAF+-A-+TNB FHES
RA(RTERBZIF2EMBRADIER
FTEABBERIERERMN LB AR
RElZE2EMBARERBERLFILEE
whaE((HEm#ELD)  F1EoT:

IES FET 4 TR R F RS PTL
A= ABRESAELE

K E 1D BM K BB
CRARES ZEEEFEEN

B-ZE—RF—HA—HER
—E2-NF+ZA=+—H
F=F(BEEEMX)

e MEBRES(TBEEDE
ERE - g REMAHREE
R &) 51,220,128.247T A
R ® . H 1 %91,203,461.57
TARERABERIERX
F+ #916,666.67 T A REEHR
I A0 B A

FEUBAES(TEEY
XEEE)RBA00TT AR
B oAAomEKRIERxfM

REE-_ZT—RE+-_A=+—HIEE -
AEERIERAEEM ESREREDZ
WM 2H &858 R14133,077T AR
nlqg °

FRESAFNEABEBRRIERLHME
AR _E-RFETA=+RHIZEER
AOZERBE Bl R-2E—EF—
A—HAE HMEBRIEHEEEREER
IR Tz o MERl - Mk E R
AERMEBEHRERAMBTNEE
B AEXZHABIARARREHRS =
E-—RFTZA=TRHZAER -

EWMEBRAT —T—AGFEH | 93



Report of the Directors
EEERE

1.

12.

94

An entrusted management services agreement dated 18 March
2016 was entered into between the Company, China Minmetals
and CMCL (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals)
whereby the Company would provide management services to
China Minmetals and CMCL in relation to the entrusted assets
for the period from 18 March 2016 to 17 March 2018.

The aggregate sum of management service fee paid by China
Minmetals and CMCL to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB24,508,197.

A tenancy agreement dated 31 May 2016 was entered into
between Minmetals Capital as the tenant and Texion as the
landlord (“Tenancy Agreement V"), details of which are set out

below:

Premises : 9th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2016 to 31
May 2018 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$173,790 per calendar month (exclusive of

government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$28,385.70 per calendar month (being the
tenant’s share of service, management and air-
conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Capital under
Tenancy Agreement V for the year ended 31 December 2016
was HK$1,042,740.

Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2016

RZFE-ARF=ZATN\B  AREEFEH
IBEFAERD(RTERRERZIEZEN
BAR)RILEREEERBEHZE - Bt -
RARZE-—RF=ZA+N\RRE_T—
NE=ZA+LBILHE XEAPEERE
EABEROMEEEERMHEERY -

REBE-_Z—XRNF+_A=+—HIFE
FEAENABEROINTFTARA ZER
R %% & 4858 /24,508,197 A R ¥ o

RZE—X"FRA=+—8 AEERE
REPEMTIEAETITVAE K (H
EWmERl BT

S BEENBEAPBERRMER
TAETRAEAENE

F 5 B-E—AFENA—HEZRE
—E-NFHEA=+—HI
WE(BIEEREMRAR)

e & A173,7908 T (T B iE =
AR RY  EEREH
&)

EME A & H28,385.70/8 T (A P

ProE RS - BB RZEH
%)

REBE_ZE—RNE+_A=+—HILEE -
TEEAREREHG EAMIN2HE B
%8 51,042,740 7T ©



13.

14.

A tenancy agreement dated 31 May 2016 was entered into
between Minmetals Cheerglory as the tenant and Texion as the
landlord (“Tenancy Agreement VI“), details of which are set out
below:

Premises . 11th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham
Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2016 to 31
May 2018 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$173,790 per calendar month (exclusive of

government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$28,385.70 per calendar month (being the
tenant’s share of service, management and air-
conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Cheerglory
under Tenancy Agreement VI for the year ended 31 December
2016 was HK$1,042,740.

A tenancy agreement dated 31 May 2016 was entered into
between Minmetals HK as the tenant and Texion as the landlord
("Tenancy Agreement VII"), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 19th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79
Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2016 to 31
May 2018 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$173,790 per calendar month (exclusive of

government rates and service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$28,385.70 per calendar month (being the
tenant’s share of service, management and air-
conditioning charges)

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals HK under
Tenancy Agreement VII for the year ended 31 December 2016
was HK$1,042,740.
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above continuing
connected transactions (“Continuing Connected Transactions”) have
been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were carried
out:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s independent auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, was
engaged to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 88 to 95 of this Annual
Report in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18

AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

1. OFL (a wholly-owned subsidiary) as the borrower, the Company
and MLI (a wholly-owned subsidiary) as the guarantors and
certain banks as the lenders (the “Lenders”) entered into a term
loan facility agreement for a 5-year term loan facility (“Facility 1)
in the principal amount of HK$5,300,000,000 on 20 December
2013 (“Facility Agreement 1").

96 Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2016
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Pursuant to Facility Agreement I, China Minmetals, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, shall beneficially
(directly or indirectly) own not less than 31% of the issued
Shares of the Company as well as remain the single largest
beneficial Shareholder of the Company and has control over the
management of the Company. A breach of any of the aforesaid
conditions would constitute an event of default and the Lenders
may (i) cancel all commitments under Facility Agreement I
and/or (ii) demand that all or part of the loans together with
accrued interest and all other amounts accrued under Facility |
be immediately due and payable; and/or (iii) demand that all or
part of the loans be payable on demand.

Condo Hong Kong (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
as the borrower and the Company as the guarantor, accepted the
offer from a bank (the “Bank”) for the grant of general banking
facility in an aggregate amount of HK$100,000,000 (“Facility 11")
on 9 April 2015. Facility Il has no fixed term and is subject to
periodic review of the Bank.

As one of the conditions of Facility Il, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall remain
the single largest Shareholder of the Company maintaining at
least 31% of the beneficiary interest of and have management
control over the Company. Upon a breach of the aforesaid
condition, the Bank may suspend, withdraw or make demand
for repayment of the whole or any part of Facility Il offered to
Condo Hong Kong.

Condo Macau (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
the borrower and the Company as the guarantor, accepted the
offer from a bank (the “Bank”) for the grant of general banking
facility in an aggregate amount of HK$200,000,000 (“Facility ")
on 27 April 2015. Facility Ill has no fixed term and is subject to
periodic review of the Bank.
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As one of the conditions of Facility lll, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall remain
the single largest Shareholder of the Company maintaining at
least 31% of the beneficiary interest of and have management
control over the Company. Upon a breach of the aforesaid
condition, the Bank may demand for immediate repayment of
all sums of moneys granted to Condo Macau and the interest
accrued.

Condo Hong Kong as the borrower and the Company as the
guarantor, accepted the offer from a bank (the “Bank”) for the
grant of general banking facility in an aggregate amount of
HK$100,000,000 (“Facility IV") on 27 November 2015. Facility
IV is subject to annual review of the Bank.

As one of the conditions of Facility 1V, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall remain
the single largest Shareholder of the Company and have
management control over the Company. Upon a breach of any
of the aforesaid conditions, Facility IV is repayable in full amount
on demand by the Bank.

OFL as the borrower, the Company and MLI as the guarantors
and certain banks as the lenders (the “Lenders”) entered into
a facility agreement for a 4-year term loan facility (“Facility V")
in the principal amount of HK$6,000,000,000 on 8 June 2016
(“Facility Agreement V").

Pursuant to Facility Agreement V, China Minmetals, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, shall own beneficially
(directly or indirectly) at least 31% of the entire issued share
capital in the Company as well as remain the single largest
Shareholder (directly or indirectly) of the Company and has
management control over the Company. A breach of any of the
aforesaid conditions would constitute an event of default and
the Lenders may (i) cancel all or any part of the commitments
under Facility Agreement V; and/or (ii) declare that all or part of
the loans together with accrued interest and all other amounts
accrued under Facility V be immediately due and payable; and/or
(iii) declare that all or part of the loans be payable on demand.
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6. OFL as the borrower, the Company and MLI as the guarantors
and a bank as the lender (the “Lender”) entered into a term
loan facility agreement for a 4-year term loan facility (“Facility
VI”) in the principal amount of HK$1,800,000,000 on 28 June
2016 (“Facility Agreement VI").

Pursuant to Facility Agreement VI, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall own
beneficially (directly or indirectly) not less than 31% of the issued
Shares of the Company as well as remain the single largest
beneficial Shareholder of the Company and has control over the
management of the Company. A breach of any of the aforesaid
conditions would constitute an event of default and the Lender
may (i) cancel all commitments under Facility Agreement VI;
and/or (i) demand that all or part of the loans together with
accrued interest and all other amounts accrued under Facility VI
be immediately due and payable; and/or (iii) demand that all or
part of the loans be payable on demand.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure
obligations under Rules 13.18 and 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the notices submitted to the Company pursuant to the SFO,
the Directors are of the view that sufficient public float exists for the
issued Shares as at the date of this report.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed with the
independent auditor the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and has also discussed auditing,
risk management and internal control, and financial reporting matters
including the review of the accounting practices and principles adopted
by the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements as contained in this Annual
Report have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will retire
at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the AGM.

By order of the Board
He Jianbo
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3 A% BAD 3 S

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MINMETALS LAND LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Minmetals
Land Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 108 to 235 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

HEEZSEE

Valuation of investment properties

REAMEME

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter because the valuation process is based on
an estimation of future results, a set of assumptions and a
determination of key inputs, which are judgemental. Any
changes to these inputs may have a significant impact on
the fair value. Management determined the fair value of the
Group's investment properties at 31 December 2016 with the
assistance of an independent external valuer.
BHABREMELERNREREREE  RERMGES
BIONAARAKRREZEET  —ERKXKNETZEITERAR
BRAER AHRZEBRAEGMLE - ZFBWABBZE
MEHOARH AR BEENEATE - EBEEBLING
HEMZBHT B ESEEREVER-_Z-—RFT
—HA=t—BzAanfE-

Details of the investment properties and the related key
estimation uncertainty are set out in notes 15 and 5,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
EAREMERBEFEEMFTIAAEEZEZFHBED R
AR & B 5 #R &R Bt 7E 15 %5 ©
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ERNAHAREXSHEETEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:
BMREREYREDELERTZIEFZIZEREMA
TEERRF:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
management.
BMTEEREEMEZENIINSEEM ER - B
IREEM -

o Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared by

the external valuer and discussing with the external
valuer to understand the basis of determination of
valuation.

BMIEG RN EER RO EERS - W E
EfEEMEE THRETHENEE -

o Challenging the external valuer the methodologies
and judgements used in valuing the investment
properties and obtaining the market evidence that
the external valuer used to support the key inputs.
BRIMBEEMEGEREMERARAN X
RAE  WHEINSEERMANZFEZH ALK
BRI TS RE °

o Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures of the
fair value measurement of investment properties
including the fair value measurement hierarchy, the
valuation technique and significant unobservable
inputs in the consolidated financial statements.
EEEMBEREANEAREMELZAREHNE
ZEREBEEH BRARBEAEER  HMEAER
BANAERE A SR -



Key audit matter

REZSEE

Revenue from sales of properties

HEMERA

We identified the revenue from sales of properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the amount and
volume of sales transactions recognised during the year.
BFREEMERABINRERERZETE  RASF AR
RHNEHEXFEERBEE K

Details of revenue from sales of properties are set out in note
6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEREENEBRAFBHNGA M RERHM E6

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ERNAHAREXSHEETEE

Our procedures in relation to revenue from sales of
properties included:

BAREEMERABTZEFEERRE:

o Testing key internal controls over revenue
recognition on a sampling basis.

B8 R A B AR AR R RO E B R EBAE I o

o Selecting property sales transactions on a sampling
basis and:
BAMERKEVREERS L H:

— reading the signed sales and purchase
agreements to understand the relevant terms
of the timing of property delivery and title
transfer.

FECEZEEEME  ATEDEINR
FREENRBENBBEER -

— obtaining evidence regarding the property
delivery and title transfer.

BENERINREZRERNRE -

— reconciling the monetary amounts of
recorded transactions and related payments
to the signed sales and purchase agreements.
RELHIXFINEE B LEBNRED
REEEHAYEER -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

ZHMMERGSUBERRRIEN
B

RFM BT RIBECEREDRE)FE0K Y
AR HREER ST N7 IEm Ao i
EMEHMEAERRLRGARRE - LfE
W MTUFARE)HARERMEROER
MR Btz AWERMEAME M o K
REBETEHAREZ ABHEMEMAL
BEFARAAEL - ARRBLEKEHR
# ATERERB(EEBHEETOE
BER-BAERMAGESBERR - #
RER AT R MBI MRA R
EMEBRELERTENEFAVHREE
I RIBAR A BT TS SRR PR (R 1 0 R - A
B E BRI RRIES A -

ERB(REBEMEADETEZABED - K
PMERTEXRHE RETHEXRREE - &
fFI 75 :

if

e RAEFGEENRFRERMEBLES
MBBRRFEEAERBANRER - &
AEBTEZEFARSELRR UK
ERGRMEENEZRE FRHEM
BERMER - ARMEFAIEESRER - B
& BRER ERERA - SOXERABR
22 £ - B oK BE 3 3R I EREE M & B
BERHBRERR AR B SR K e %R A B
RMEBMEXNFRRANVER -

o  THREZRZMEBNONES  URFEE
MEZERF -  BEMLIFYE BERERI

s HEEFMRASFERRNRBEMNERE
SEtEFAEBRENS RN -
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
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we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report &S EBFEHARMAREFEEEESEERKNEAR
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably % RiBiBELENATRAZE » F AR E T EER
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such &SR BRZEE °

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent & & Itk 28 1% T B & 85 3 A B 7 1% BRI ) &5 /U 2§

auditor’s report is Mok Sau Fan. RIEBEEBARESS °
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EE e BEPR S EATRITT
Certified Public Accountants HEDEED

Hong Kong BB

17 March 2017 —E—tHF=H++AH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZT—AF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FE T
Revenue [N 6 11,576,345 7,253,266
Cost of sales Ei=l= )N (9,316,033) (5,661,879)
Gross profit EA 2,260,312 1,591,387
Other gains, net Hib iz - 558 8 81,644 67,502
Fair value changes on investment properties #% & ¥ % A 1 E & F) 15 123,977 195,563
Selling and marketing expenses HENKEHE R (218,096) (291,198)
Administrative and other expenses THREEMAS (423,903) (511,593)
Finance income B 7% 1 A 10 241,362 162,809
Finance costs B 7% A AN 10 (55,669) (57,511)
Share of results of associates DB L AR EE 18 (12,135) 16,442
Profit before tax B %t A & F 1,997,492 1,173,401
Income tax expense FTiS % 5 X 11 (1,000,313) (553,794)
Profit for the year KEERF 7 997,179 619,607
Profit for the year attributable to: AEFEBAEBER:
Equity holders of the Company RAFRIREFBA 512,058 278,156
Non-controlling interests I ¥ {% i% A 25 485,121 341,451
997,179 619,607
Earnings per share for profit attributable &2 5] ##%H A Bt F
to equity holders of the Company, ZBEREF - EWN
in HK cents
Basic BN 12 15.31 8.32
Diluted e 12 15.30 8.31
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBaRkHEMEEW S

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—-—FE—NF+=-H=+—HIFE
2016 2015
“EB—RE _—_T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Profit for the year ANE [ A 997,179 619,607
Other comprehensive (expense)/income: MBREERGEZE(ZH) WA
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to Kt EN 72 B 2 HA -
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences e H =58 (1,045,516) (1,147,803)
Fair value gain on hedging instruments in RERmE PN ERTEZ
cash flow hedges AR B = 115,637 —
Share of other comprehensive expense of DIEEE AR At 2 ERX
associates (78,151) (83,519)
(1,008,030) (1,231,322)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to EETEEH »EEEws 2 HH -
profit or loss:
Gain on revaluation of owner-occupied properties HBRMEBEBREREMER ~
upon transfer to investment properties E 3,045 —
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value i i@ E fth 2 E W 25 2 A 72 B &1
through other comprehensive income ECHMBEEEREAZ
(B8R),/ = (129,063) 99,102
(126,018) 99,102
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEHMEETH (1.134,048) (1,132,220)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEERBEZEIHES (136,869) (512,613)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the AEERBEDE(ZH) WA
year attributable to: EEEBR:
Equity holders of the Company AAalRERAE A (363,145) (602,190)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR AR WA &= 226,276 89,577
(136,869) (512,613)

IRMERRAR —%F—

NEER | 109



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a5 B 85 5RO 3R

As at 31 December 2016 R=F—NF+=H=4+—H

2016 2015
—E—-REFE —ZT—AF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WMEREZME 14 186,661 129,353
Investment properties wKEME 15 1,662,326 1,599,234
Goodwill B 16 8,879 9,483
Interests in associates REEERA 2D 18(a) 1,141,052 1,352,198
Financial assets at fair value through other F@HEMEEWFIRALE
comprehensive income FrECHBEE 22 481,682 610,745
Other financial assets HEM s & E 23 115,637 —
Deferred tax assets EER I & B 29 560,757 395,354
4,156,994 4,096,367
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 18,919,140 20,720,464
Amounts due from customers for EWEFPZEHNIEFRIEA
contract work 20 347,537 433,277
Prepayments, trade and other receivables  FBfTRUIE - B 5 K H b fE UL
FE] 21 11,764,690 3,404,857
Cash and bank deposits, restricted XRHIR e METER 24 242,201 293,551
Cash and bank deposits, unrestricted TXEBEHIRE MFEITER 25 5,431,519 10,672,861
36,705,087 35,525,010
Total assets SE®ESE 40,862,081 39,621,377
EQUITY i
Share capital &% 7 26 334,444 334,428
Reserves & 1 27 6,247,680 7,022,793
Equity attributable to equity holders AATREFBEAEGZER
of the Company 6,582,124 7,357,221
Non-controlling interests R RELRS 1,967,748 4,289,672
Total equity EREE 8,549,872 11,646,893
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2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E F#T FHE T
LIABILITIES Bf&
Non-current liabilities EFRTERE
Borrowings B ;K 28 11,314,859 8,126,450
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEHEE 29 131,080 96,126
Other liabilities HEfatE 386 386
11,446,325 8,222,962
Current liabilities RENEE
Borrowings EE N 28 299,564 4,452,038
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M IR 30 7,753,209 5,230,077
Deferred revenue iR & 4 A 31 12,419,623 9,705,417
Taxation payable JE 151 75 18 393,488 363,990
20,865,884 19,751,522
Total liabilities BEEE 32,312,209 27,974,484
Total equity and liabilities EXZRkBEEER 40,862,081 39,621,377
Net current assets RENEEFE 15,839,203 15,773,488
Total assets less current liabilities EEBFERRHER 19,996,197 19,869,855

The consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 235 were Z108E F235B MGG BEHERENR T —+
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 17 F=AF+tHEESSH ETHFENZE - I Hh
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: THATREKESE:

He Xiaoli fa/\E&g
DIRECTOR &=

He Jianbo {d &l i
DIRECTOR &=

ARMESRAT —T—ANEEH | (11



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARRBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #f % =% —

NEFZA=+—HIFFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

FATREREAREN

Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
IE = B%
B & & WwE REHEZ #5488
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHIT FHET
(Note 27)
(B 5 27)
As at 1 January 2015 R=F—HF—HA—H 334,051 7,668,732 8,002,783 4,017,680 12,020,463
Profit for the year F A 5 F — 278,156 278,156 341,451 619,607
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMEZEAX — (880,346) (880,346) (251,874)  (1,132,220)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the ARNFEKRHE2E(FIX),/
year, net of tax U A 4258 — (602,190)  (602,190) 89,577 (512,613)
Issue of shares BT AD 377 1,319 1,696 — 1,696
Contributions from non-controlling FEBRBREZEE
shareholders — — — 265,949 265,949
Employee share option benefits EEBERERA — 5,094 5,094 — 5,094
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company A A2 & B 8 3 1+ 2 i% B — (50,162) (50,162) — (50,162)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder 6 — 2% Mf B 2 & — % JE 42 %
of a subsidiary REXZFZRKRE — — — (83,534) (83,534)
377 (43,749) (43,372) 182,415 139,043
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—hAF+=A=+—H 334,428 7,022,793 7,357,221 4,289,672 11,646,893
Profit for the year F R A — 512,058 512,058 485,121 997,179
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMEZEAX — (875,203) (875,203) (258,845)  (1,134,048)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the AFEKRF%2E (%),
year, net of tax U ONX — (363,145) (363,145) 226,276 (136,869)
Issue of shares BT 16 56 72 — 72
Acquisition of the equity interests of 1) I 428 AR AR B Uk B B B
subsidiaries from non-controlling f 1
shareholders — (343,088) (343,088) (2,275,483) (2,618,571)
Reversal of employee share option benefits B O EEBRERT — (2,050) (2,050) = (2,050)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company [A A2 & B% B 3 1+ 2 f% B — (66,886) (66,886) — (66,886)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders [AHf{/@ A EFEIER B R ZF 2
of subsidiaries % 2 — — — (272,717) (272,717)
16 (411,968) (411,952) (2,548,200) (2,960,152)
As at 31 December 2016 R-E—AE+=-A=+—~H 334,444 6,247,680 6,582,124 1,967,748 8,549,872
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EREMER

an\

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—-—FE—NF+=-H=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RF —ARF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B % THET FHET
Operating activities BEEY
Cash (used in)/generated from operations — #£ & 27 (BT A),FrE £
Re 33 (584,430) 6,504,731
Income tax paid ERAER (1,255,742) (762,047)
Interest paid EAAE (462,855) (510,609)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEH (A MELRS
operating activities B (2,303,027) 5,232,075
Investing activities ‘’EEH
Addition of investment properties REREME — (1,816)
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BERZE
equipment (3,084) (5,427)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEME - BERZBEME
and equipment KIE 664 452
Advance to an associate m—KEE AR BRE (88,062) —
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder of EXF—RHERAA z—%&
a subsidiary FEPERR IR R (1,412,307) (1,052,757)
Repayment from a non-controlling MEBAR —ZIFERRKRER
shareholder of a subsidiary B — 26,100
Dividends from an associate RE—FKBEE QA Z IR E 120,860 —
Interest received 2 W F B 241,362 162,809
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEHFMARSEE (1,140,567) (870,639)
AWMMEERAR —T—AEER | 13



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GRHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

2016 2015
“EB—RE _—T—AHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % TFHET FHET
Financing activities MEEE
Net proceeds from issue of shares BT DTS A F 58 72 1,696
Contributions from non-controlling EEBRBRZEE
shareholders = 265,949
New borrowings ¥TIEfE R 4,708,833 1,235,320
Repayment of borrowings BEER (5,672,898) (298,305)
Advance from a fellow subsidiary RKE—RRARWBRF 2
BE 2,124,419 —
Dividends paid to the shareholders KA FARRRRE 2R E
of the Company (66,886) (50,162)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling KT —RMBAR—F
shareholder of a subsidiary JEERBER 2K E (272,717) (83,534)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WEEME AR 2 IEIE R
of subsidiaries (2,618,571) —
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (A, BHRE
financing activities B (1,797,748) 1,070,964
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash G/ 1EmiRE& RIBLE
equivalents B (5,241,342) 5,432,400
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNzREeRESEEY
of year 10,672,861 5,240,461
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZIHERIREEEY 25 5,431,519 10,672,861
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B A R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—-—FE—NF+=-H=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Minmetals Land Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) is principally engaged in real estate
development, specialised construction, property investment and
securities investment. Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (other than Hong Kong) (the “PRC") are the major markets
for the Group’s businesses.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding
company is June Glory International Limited (incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands) and its ultimate holding company is China
Minmetals Corporation (incorporated in the PRC).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HK dollar(s)”), unless otherwise stated,
which is also the functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

116

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
amendments’

Leases?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)
f Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, except

for the 2010 version of HKFRS 9, which the Group early adopted on 1
January 2011.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are applicable to the Group
are:

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets. HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

o the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
guantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Group (the “Directors”) are of the view
that the expected credit loss model may result in early provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred for the Group’s
financial assets measured at amortised costs. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect from
using an expected credit loss model until a detailed review has
been completed.

The Directors anticipate that the application of new hedging
requirements may not have a material impact on the Group’s
current hedge designation and hedge accounting.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective. The core principle of HKFRS 15 is
that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may affect the amounts reported and related disclosures.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

introduces a comprehensive model

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31
operating lease commitments of HK$61,618,000 as disclosed

December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable

in note 35. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors of
the Company complete a detailed review.

Other than described above, the Directors anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the fair value of
investment properties and certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as below:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control

is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of the
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases

to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributable to the equity holders of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to ensure conformity with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that s,
as transactions with the equity holders in their capacity as equity
holders. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid or received and the relevant share of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary adjusted is recorded in equity and
attributed to equity holders of the Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interests and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on the initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investments in associates. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value on
the date it lost significant influence over the investee and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of such interest (or partial interest) in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to the associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by the associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the Group lost
significant influence over the investee.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional
currency”).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of respective entities of the Group using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

—  Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings; and

—  Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's interests.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the end of
the reporting period;

— income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss
are translated at average exchange rates (unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, attributable
to non-controlling interests as appropriate. Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposal of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

3.

FEEBERGE)

o5 BE R (48

SERQF

D EKEIEER TRz MEEEER
(EFHEBRERRERIZZERYK
ARETIN T EBRERINRER

— MENSDUBRARRZEERE

BREEAHAIKMERRE

BFEHEERAZKARIHIRFHE
KB - BRI E X R IR KRR
B EUBERLT WARIHER
ZFRHZERBZE : K&

PREAELZR (A REM 2K i
RENEE R (REABADEEIE
)  BREREZEENHEBIER
HR B R -

s - BRIER O & B BN K RO I B
NAE AT EEHARARKYNEAF]
BOEHIRERS - REELZRLOIDBRER
ETASEZERES AT NIER TR o HME
PHEEIFIHERZELQR  ATEE
HARRIREREATEN) RAERLE
BUPIMOEF D EERZ -

WESBIEBELCHERAAERAE
BRZBIBBZEERARRE ¥R
WhEXBRE FFEEAZELEZENE
it 2 T U a5 HE R o

EWMEBARAT —T—AEE®H | 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—-FE—NF+=-H=+—HIFE

130

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the Group and specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities as described below.

Sales of completed properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised when
the properties are delivered and titles are transferred, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o The Group has transferred to the purchasers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

o The Group retains neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

o The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to
meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are recognised
as deferred revenue under current liabilities.

Contract revenue
The accounting policy for contract revenue recognition is set out
under construction contracts.

Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised when services are
provided.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
the related costs as expenses for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences

amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost to the
residual values over the estimated useful lives with annual rates
as follows:

2%-5%
Over the remaining period

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

of the lease
Machinery 5%—-25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%-25%
Motor vehicles 20%-30%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.
Gain and loss on disposals are determined by comparing the

proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties, comprise land held under operating leases
and buildings, are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, and are not occupied by the companies comprising the
Group.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from fair value changes on investment properties are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is carried at fair value. Where fair value
is not reliably measurable, such investment property under
construction is measured at cost until the fair value becomes
reliably measurable or construction is completed (whichever is
earlier). Investment properties that are being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment properties continue to be measured
at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset's carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are expensed in the profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied as evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation, it is reclassified as
property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
transfer becomes its deemed cost for accounting purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has been changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any differences between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment in accordance with HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment. However, to the extent that a fair value
gain reverses a previous impairment loss for that property, the
gain is recognised in the profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposals.
Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises from the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets and liabilities assumed. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: those to be measured subsequently at fair value,
and those to be measured at amortised cost. Regular purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
the trade date basis, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant periods. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

A debt investment is classified as financial assets at amortised
cost only if both of the following criteria are met: the objective
of the Group’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows; and the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding. The nature of any
derivatives embedded in the debt investment are considered in
determining whether the cash flows of the investment are solely
payment of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
and are not accounted for separately. The Group's financial
assets at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables
and cash and bank deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when
the financial asset is derecognised or impaired.

The Group is required to reclassify all affected debt investments
when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Equity investments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity
investments that are held for trading are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, the
Group can make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
recognise changes in fair value through other comprehensive
rather than profit or loss. The Group's equity
investments comprise financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

income

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has irrevocably elected
to present unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent recycling of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as long as they represent a return on investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
measured at amortised cost is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.

The amount of impairment loss is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credit to profit of loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including borrowings and trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a derivative financial instrument to
manage its exposure to interest rate risk. Further details of
derivative financial instrument are disclosed in Note 23.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments
for cash flow hedges.

At the
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument

inception of the hedging relationship the Group
and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is
highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve are reclassified
to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss, in the same line of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or
loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Hedge accounting (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories represent properties under development and

completed properties held for sales.

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sales are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs and borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, the Group uses the “percentage of completion method”
to determine the appropriate amount to be recognised in a
given period. The stage of completion is measured by reference
to cost incurred to date as a percentage of total contract cost.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably
and its receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable to be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period when
incurred. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amounts due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by
customers and retentions are included within trade and other
receivables.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amounts due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting periods and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting periods, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
Investment Property, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity
leaves are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in various defined contribution
pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through
payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense in the profit or loss. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted at the grant date. The total amount
expensed is recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied and based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot

be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the Group’s financial statements unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

4. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow interest-rate risk, fair value interest-rate risk and
equity securities price risk for financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income), credit risk and
liquidity risk. These risks are managed by the Group's
financial management policies and practices as described
below to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's

financial performance.

(i) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities.
Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates
in the PRC, with most of their transactions
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), functional
currency of the respective group entities. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
the exposure of RMB against United State dollars
(“US$"). It has not hedged its foreign exchange rate

risk.
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4,

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

In addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the exchange rate, and
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2016, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against US$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$10,000 (2015: HK$34,000)
higher/lower mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is different from the
functional currency of the Group’s entities.

Cash flow interest-rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest-rate risk arises from
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on restricted and unrestricted bank deposits, loan
to/from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
and borrowings issued at variable rates. Other than
the concentration of interest rate risk related to the
movements in Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
and the loan interest published by the People’s Bank
of China, the Group has no significant concentration
of interest rate risk.

The Group maintains a close relationship and
communicates regularly with its finance providers
to explore financing alternatives to monitor and
mitigate interest-rate risk. The Group has entered
into interest rate swaps to hedge against its
exposures to changes in cash flows of its certain
interest payments of borrowings (see Note 23).
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4,

152

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow interest-rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. No sensitivity analysis has been presented
for bank balances as the Directors consider that
the fluctuation in interest rates on bank balances is
minimal.

If interest rates on HK dollar-denominated
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, (i) post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
be HK$5,678,000 (2015: HK$14,649,000)
higher in respect of the finance cost charged to the

lower/

profit or loss; and (ii) properties under development
would be increased/decreased by approximately
HK$36,907,000 (2015: HK$61,336,000) for finance
cost capitalised into properties under development.

If interest rates on RMB-denominated borrowings
and loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, (i) post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
be HK$2,247,000 (2015: HK$627,000) lower/higher
in respect of the finance cost charged to the profit
or loss; and (ii) properties under development would
be increased/decreased by approximately Nil (2015:
HK$5,828,000) for finance cost capitalised into
properties under development.

Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2016
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4,

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow interest-rate risk (Continued)
If interest rates on loan to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary had been 100 basis
and all other variables

points higher/lower

were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
would be increased/decreased by approximately
HK$18,488,000 (2015: HK$7,896,000) for the year

ended 31 December 2016.

Fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to fixed deposits placed in a fellow
subsidiary, guaranteed bonds and other borrowings

issued at fixed rate.

Equity securities price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of investments held by the Group and
carried at fair value on the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group’s equity securities price
risk is concentrated on equity instruments operating
in property development industry sector quoted in
the Stock Exchange. The Group will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

If the market value of the equity securities held
by the Group increased or decreased by 10% and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
equity would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$48,168,000 (2015: HK$61,075,000) as at 31
December 2016.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk primarily arises from deposits
with banks,
guarantees provided in respect of mortgage facilities
(Note 34).

trade and other receivables and

The credit risk on deposits with banks is limited
because the counterparties are banks with sound
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s financial position, past history of making
payments and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers. Monitoring procedures
have been implemented to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables at the end of
the reporting period to ensure adequate provision
for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

amounts.

The Group has arranged bank financing for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers
for repayments. If a purchaser defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the term of the
guarantee, the Group is able to retain the property
sales proceeds received from the purchasers and sell
the property to recover any amounts paid by the
Group to the bank. The management considers the
credit risk exposure to financial guarantees provided
to property purchasers is limited because the facilities
are secured by the properties and the market price
of the properties is higher than the guaranteed
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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4,

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on loans
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
but the exposure is considered limited as the

counterparties are at a good financial position.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk on trade and other receivables, with exposure
spread over a number of customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks, which
are mainly State-owned banks and with high credit
ratings in the PRC.

Liquidity risk
Prudent
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of

liquidity risk management implies
funding through an adequate amount of credit
facilities. Management aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping credit lines available.
Management monitors the rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn
borrowing facilities (Note 28(a)) and cash and bank
balances (Note 25) on the basis of expected cash

flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities at amortised cost into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the end
of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including both
principal and interest). To the extent that interest
flows are at variable-rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate at the end of each
reporting period.
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4.
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FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT 4. HMHREBEEREE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a MBREBERE(E)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) HENE 2 E ()
In addition, the following table details the AN FRAFMAEBE G EST
Group’s liquidity analysis for its derivative financial AR T ESERE DN %
instruments. The tables have been drawn up based RIOBBAFHEERELEENIT
on the undiscounted contractual net cash (inflows) ETERFTBEEDESREA)
and outflows on derivative instruments that settle Kom F G E o IR E R
on a net basis. When the amount payable is not Nef  AIRReHES2ER
fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined HHIRIE B 2 W a dh 47 FTRE R
by reference to the projected interest rates as TEEIAEETE - AN BEEER
illustrated by the vyield curves existing at the end REDBREEEITETAR
of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis for eREZKEMmMSBMNAE -
the Group’s derivative financial instruments are AU AEBZITEMBITAEZ
prepared based on the contractual maturities as the MBI DN IIIRIE S L EIR 4R
management consider that the contractual maturities gl
are essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of derivatives.
Weighted
average Between Between Total
interest Within 1 and 2 and Over undiscounted  Carrying
rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows ~ amount
MEEY REREE
BRAE —§¥h -—-EZWE WERLE LEWNLE REEH AR {E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FEE FER TR TER FEE T
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZF—R
+=A=+-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities ETEMB AR
Borrowings &3 3.87% 752,05 6,303,575 4,881,165 1,057,953 12,994,798 11,614,423
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b FE 308 — 4,372,994 — — — 4,372,994 4,372,994
Amounts due to non-controlling JE A BT B 1 R FEHE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries A% 3R I8 — 172,600 = = = 172,600 172,600
Amounts due to associates J& {51 Bt 2 X R SRIE — 1,066,438 = = = 1,066,438 1,066,438
Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary — F&~ — 5 A & If &
UNGIE/ @ — 2,124,419 — — — 2,124,419 2,124,419
Financial guarantee contracts MISERER — 13,688,767 - - — 13,688,767 -
22,177,323 6,303,575 4,881,165 1,057,953 34,420,016 19,350,874
Derivatives — net settlement PETHR — F&E
Interest rate swaps F %= 4= HR (2172)  (24,257)  (100,552) - (126,981) 115,637
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT 4. MBREBEEREEE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a MBRMBERE(E)
(ifii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) HEE 2 E S ()
Weighted
average Between  Between Total
interest Within 1 and 2 and Over  undiscounted  Carrying
rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
TS RERRE
EBF= —EX —-ZWE MERE "ENULE mEERE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET THT T FHET FET FHT
As at 31 December 2015 RZB-3F
+=A=t+-8H
Borrowings &= 3.69% 4,876,983 1,123,898 6,577,898 983,151 13,561,930 12,578,488
Trade and other payables BH5REMEMFKIE — 3,820,363 — — — 3,820,363 3,820,363
Amounts due to non-controlling B AR EERERR
shareholders of subsidiaries FE — 154,822 — — — 154,822 154,822
Amounts due to associates BB E AR A — 1,235,113 = - - 1,235,113 1,235,113
Financial guarantee contracts RBERELH — 7,742,351 — — — 7,742,351 —
17,829,632 1,123,898 6,577,898 983,151 26,514,579 17,788,786

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount
is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.
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4.
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FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The total equity and borrowings of the Group represents
the capital structure of the Group. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and bank deposits.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were
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as follows: +—HZEAREBELRAT :
2016 2015
—¥-R"E _"—T—IF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT TH T
Total borrowings ER G 11,614,423 12,578,488
Less: Cash and bank deposits IR e RIEBTER (5,673,720) (10,966,412)
Net debt (EW -] 5,940,703 1,612,076
Total equity EmiaTa 8,549,872 11,646,893
Gearing ratio BARBENE 69% 14%
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4,

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value estimation
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised costs approximate their fair values. The fair
values are estimated using generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flows.

The financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income represent equity securities listed in
Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2016, equity securities
amounting to HK$481,682,000 (2015: HK$610,745,000)
are measured at fair value and based on quoted market
prices of an active market (Level 1) at the end of the
reporting period.
Other financial assets interest

represent rate swap

contracts designated as highly effective hedging
instruments in order to manage the Group’s interest rate
exposure in relation to the bank borrowings on a floating
interest rate basis. As at 31 December 2016, fair value of
interest rate swap contracts amounting to HK$115,637,000
(2015: Nil) are measured at the present value of future
cash flows estimated based on the applicable yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates at the end of the
reporting period and contracted interest rate discounted at
a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties

and categorised in Level 2.

4,

MEREEREREE(R)

(c)

LB EERAR

A {EME
EEARBEBHEKATENMBEE
EXMHBAENREEEERAE
BE - 2RENERAREEER
REBEBRBSIRMAE

FREMEEKRSEAABENEZ
MBEEXTERERES LM 2R
AEH RZEBE—XF+=-—A=+
—H  BRARE#481,682,00058 7T (—
T — A 610,745,000 70) T A A
REERBREHERBERMS (BE—E)
LTS METE °

HtwUBEEREEAREANX
HHRTAMAMREHAEL  HBH
REBAEBIZHFERRITH/RZ
MERE R-_TE—RNE+-A=
+—B MEREHEHNZAREAR
115,637,000/ T (ZE— R F : &)
HNmERERRERMBR(BHRE
HAROABRANESE) RIEIIRBRS
ZHFHAEERBRMTHE XA
BHRNR(HEASF-_B)BENR
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical accounting judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group's deferred taxation on investment properties located in
Hong Kong, the Directors have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties located in
Hong Kong are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.
As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on
changes in fair value of investment properties located in Hong
Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on the
fair value changes of the investment properties on disposal.

With regards to the Group’s investment properties located
in Mainland China, the Directors considered that they are
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in these
investment properties over time. Therefore, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties located in Mainland China are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
Group's investment properties located in Mainland China on the
basis that the entire carrying amounts of these properties are
recovered through use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing uncertainty to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities are discussed below:

Investment properties

Independent external valuer was engaged to carry out an
independent valuation of the Group’s investment property
portfolio as at 31 December 2016. The fair value of each
investment property is individually determined at the end of
the reporting period based on market value assessment, on
an existing use basis. The valuer has relied on the income
capitalisation approach as its primary method, supported by
the direct comparison method. These methodologies are based
on an estimation of future results, a set of assumptions and a
determination of relevant key inputs specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy and cashflow profile. Changes to these
estimation, assumptions and key inputs would result in changes
in the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss would
be recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$1,662,326,000 (31
December 2015: HK$1,599,234,000). More details are set out in
Note 15.

5.

ARSI R ERMGETAGE
E B & ()
FEGATHREERR

7SR R A B R RO 1 SRR AR o
HWEERABBEEERTREEED
B KRR M i SRR T XA -

REME
AEEZRBRBEYEEANR_FT—RF+=
A=t - BAEAKENREMEEAETT
BIUEE - EREVENAABDINRSE
HRRREAERETEFEBLETE
BEMARABRAMOERETENE - &
ZABEREBOE - ZFENEATIRERK
RERGGAREDEBEORRAEAS UK
MEBEERBESRNAR - ZFBRERME
2y TREFAKENREVEALE
HE) O WARNEaHERAREXEESR
FY AE e o

MR-ZB—RE+-_A=1+—8 REVED
BR ™ B /& #91,662,326,000/8 T (=2 —H
F+—-A=+—H:1,599,234,0005 7T) °
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Construction contracts

The Group recognised profits and losses from construction
contracts, which were derived from the latest available
budgets of the construction contracts with reference to the
overall performance of each construction contract and the
management’s best estimates and judgements. Estimated
construction income is determined in accordance with the
terms set out in the relevant contracts. Estimated construction
costs which mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and
costs of materials are estimated by the management on the
basis of quotations from time to time provided by the major
contractors/suppliers/vendors involved and the experience of the
management. Because of the nature of the construction industry,
the management regularly reviews the progress of the contracts
and the estimated construction income and costs.

When the actual costs incurred are significantly more or less than
expected, or changes in circumstances which result in revision of
management’s estimates on the percentage of completion, the
effect of such change is recognised prospectively in the profit
or loss in the period of the change.

Deferred taxes

As at 31 December 2016, deferred tax assets of
HK$560,757,000 (2015: HK$395,354,000) have been recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
as set out in Note 29. The realisability of the deferred tax
assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
The Directors determine the profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred tax assets are expected
to be utilised. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are more or less than expected, an additional recognition or
a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
recognition or reversal takes place.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence on
impairment loss of trade and other receivables, the management
considers the estimation of future cash flows to be recovered
from these receivables. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. The amount of the impairment of
receivables is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flow. When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables was HK$3,279,844,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$2,045,988,000). Further details are set out in Note 21.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue (represents turnover) comprised the following:

5.

RS B R EE G TE
E B & ()
FEMGHTHEERR(E)
BHRHMERRERE

BB A B B R MO 2 R R T M
B2 R A E S R E i OR E
EWRE - RFEREEUR SRR 2K
B FHBEESEEBA ZEEL
REBERKLCHEZ EEEE o BKK
BRCEAAERAERRERBAE
BRZEHRRBSRBREMERNZ
2 - HEBRARRSRORNES - Al
REESARERSE -

BHRHEMEWREBEBR=2E—X~"F+=A=
+— B ®ER T {E 53,279,844,00058 7T (—
T—HAF+ZA=+—H:2,045988,000
BIT) o HMFFEH A M 21 -

W\ B 53 BB #
WA (BN £ 8) B ATIRE -

2016 2015

“E—-RE _—_ZT—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET THE T

Sales of properties Yl SHE 10,557,010 6,501,484

Revenue from specialised construction contracts FEHEZEZE A LU A 954,791 681,881
Rental and management fee income from KEMEZHEREEBRA

investment properties 64,544 69,901

11,576,345 7,253,266
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Operating segments

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
executive directors. The executive directors review the Group’s
internal financial reports in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The executive directors have determined the
operating segments based on these reports as follows:

Real estate Development and sales of residential and

development: commercial properties
Specialised Design, installation and selling of curtain walls
construction: and aluminum windows, doors and other

materials

Property Holding of properties to generate rental
investment: income and/or to gain from the
appreciation in properties’ values in the
long-term
Securities Investment of securities
investment:

No operating segments identified by the executive directors have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. WA RS EB&EF (4E)

Operating segments (Continued) EENE(E)
Segment revenue and results DEBMAREE
Real estate development Specialised construction ~ Property investment Securities investment Total
BHERR EES F nERE EHRE ag
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—¥-R"E ZZ-1F Z¥-"E ZZ-1F Z¥-7E ZZ-1F Z¥-7E ZZF-1f Z¥-"E —E-1f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THT TERT FHL TERL FHL TEL THT TER THL
Revenue KA
Total segment revenue BHHBA 10,557,010 6,501,484 1,009,145 787,553 67,080 72,261 - — 11,633,235 7,361,298
Inter-segment revenue A EEKA = — (54,354)  (105,672) (2,536) (2,360) = — (56,890)  (108,032)
Sales to external customers HNEFHE 10,557,010 6,501,484 954,791 681,881 64,544 69,901 = — 11576345 7,253,266
Results E3
Segment results R 3 1,746,040 953,737 48,219 2,651 180,532 259,462 18,410 26478 1,993,201 1,242,328
Unallocated corporate RAEEERR
expenses, net FE (169,267)  (190,667)
1,823,934 1,051,661
Finance income BB MA 241,362 162,809
Finance costs B A (55,669) (57,511)
Share of results of associates A {EBE R A EE (12,135) 16,442
Profit before tax BB &R 1,997,492 1,173,401

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating

RED B2 G BUR K 3 A M AN &

segments are the same as the Group’s accounting polices EetRE—B HBLBEIREHIPE

described in Note 3. Segment results represent the profit before
tax without allocation of unallocated corporate expenses, finance

WESEEEMS - HHEEA - BBEAR
Ko EHE RBIZEEN B A E

income, finance costs and share of results of associates.

Inter-segment revenue are charged at prevailing market rates.

Finance income, finance costs and share of results of associates
are not included in the measure of segment results.

DEZEOWATIRRITH G ERTE

HHEEA - BBER AR DEBERRESR
ETBREDBRENGTES -
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. WA RS EIPEH (88)
Operating segments (Continued) BERE(E)
Segment assets and liabilities THEEREE
Real estate development Specialised construction  Property investment Securities investment Total
RHERR Higg NERE BHRE k]
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZF-"E -“T-1fF ZB-"& _T-1f ZF-"& _FT-1f ZF-"E _T-1nf ZB-"E§ _T-1f
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEL FHT TERT THL TERL FHL TEL FHT TER THL
Assets &E
Segment assets DB E 33,520,084 32478365 1123835 1219268 1768600 1610324 481682 610745 36,894,201 35918,702
Unallocated corporate assets 7k 2 Fid 1 3
BE 3,967,880 3,702,675
Total assets BEME 40,862,081 39,621,377
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities HEBEE 30,562,088 26250493 617,534 768,689 20,340 24,040 - — 31,199,962 27,043222
Unallocated corporate liabilities 7 2 Fid 1 3¢
=N 1,112,247 931,262
Total liabilities aEResE 32,312,209 27,974,484
paNgvi

Segment assets consist primarily of interests in associates,

property, plant and equipment, investment properties, goodwill,

inventories, receivables and operating cash but exclude items

such as bank deposits for corporate use and deferred tax assets.

Segment liabilities comprise all operating liabilities but exclude
item such as taxation.

Operating cash and interests in associates have been allocated

into the segment assets and borrowings have been allocated

into the segment liabilities.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. My A\ R4 ZB& ¥l (48)
Operating segments (Continued) BERE(E)
Other segment information Hfth 7 EB & &
Real estate Specialised
development construction Property i Securities i Segment total Unallocated Total
RHERR LES ES NERE EHRE HBPAE FHE Ed:]
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-3E —T-1%F ZB-%E -ZT-1F Z¥-RF -2-RF ZB-RF -2-RfF Z%-7E “3-%4 “B-RE -3-1%F -B-nE -3-§%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
F#x FEr TER FExr  FEx TRz TR fEx TEn Tz FER  TEr  TEn  TEx
Amounts included in the measure of Bzt A5 B 43l
seqment profit or loss or seqment D BEE:
assets:
Interests in associates REENAER 1,141,052 1,352,198 - - - - - — 1,141,052 1,352,198 - — 1,141,052 1,352,198
Capital expenditures ARAY 1,333 3,166 1,295 2,075 369 1,880 - — 2,997 7121 87 122 3,084 7,203
Depreciation recognised in the REARRZPED
consolidated statement of aif 1
profit or loss 3,958 4,50 2,036 3,645 430 462 = - 6,424 8,627 898 1,305 1322 9,932
Fair value changes on investment  REMELAEEY
properties = - = — 1391 195,563 = — 123977 195,563 = - 139m 195,563
(Reversal of )fprovision for impairment 75 & & (K E) /&t
of inventories (2,921) 1,827 = — = — = - (2,921) 1,827 = — (2,921) 1,827
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment &5 & £ {t JE W 508
of trade and other receivables AERE/ (BE) 1839 15845 23) 8493 = - = - 1816 24338 = - 1816 24338

Geographical information
The Group operates its businesses in two main geographical

areas:

Hong Kong: Real estate development, specialised construction,
property investment and securities investment
The PRC: Real

estate development and specialised

construction

ih & & #
AEEZEBTEE IR MEMRLL

BE: FE#R FXREE X
RERBHFRE
FE: FEZERIBERRZE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. WA X% & F (48)
Operating segments (Continued) BERE(E)
Geographical information (Continued) @& R (E)
In presenting geographical information, sales are presented REFIMBRERE  HEZ 2 ERER
based on the geographical locations of the customers. Total CHBUBREE - FRHEETBEE
non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred SRMITARELEHIBEEE °
tax assets.
Hong Kong The PRC Total
& hE @
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZT—RE T hF ZFB—RE —T—1F ZT—REFE ZT—hF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
THET FET TET FHExT FTHET FHET
External sales HHNHE 443,271 245,166 11,133,074 7,008,100 11,576,345 7,253,266
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 1,802,434 1,675,611 1,196,484 1,414,657 2,998,918 3,090,268
Information about major customer ERETEEE2ER

No revenue from transaction with single external customer is
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for both
years.
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

7. AEE@A

2016 2015

ZE—-RE —"ZT—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#T FHET

Advertising and other promotional costs [& 5 K EAth 4 B A AR 218,096 291,198

Cost of properties sold (Note (i) B 9 3 A A (BT 5 G) 8,465,395 5,034,087

Cost of specialised construction EEFEERKAR 838,262 615,406

Depreciation e 7,322 9,932

Auditor’s remuneration % & AN B & 4,330 4,150
Direct out-goings arising from investment HMEESWAZEEMEZE

properties that generated rental income B 12,376 12,386
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ EE®FIFAZ (RIEEEME)

emoluments) (Note 9) (Bt 5£9) 151,745 150,983

Legal and professional fees FERBEEER 16,313 14,149
Operating lease charges — minimum lease EEMEER — ALt R

payment in respect of land and buildings BFzxEHEENK 26,106 29,744
Provision for impairment of trade and other B 5 I H b & WK I8 R (B B R

receivables 1,816 24,338

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of GFEREER), #E
inventories (2,921) 71,827
Net exchange loss PE X & F5 3,427 16,802
B 5

Note:

(i) Included in cost of properties sold are interest expenses of
HK$729,546,000 (2015: HK$392,015,000).

(i) B W) 3 A N R £2$5729,546,0008 7T (=2

— R4 :392,015,000% 7T) 2 Fl B i ©
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OTHER GAINS, NET

8. Hithlrzs  FH#H

2016 2015
—E—REFE _—ZT—FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Government subsidies BT & B 5,440 17,614
Dividend income i B = 18,438 26,504
Management fee income from an intermediate WER— % /& M IE R A 7 R & 42
holding company and ultimate holding ERARIZEBERA
company 27,579 =
Others HAb 30,187 23,384
81,644 67,502
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9. EEEAZH
2016 2015
—F—R"E Z—EZ—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Wages, salaries and bonus IE - #Fe KEA 234,607 250,983
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BREHRAN — EHEMEKEE
(Note 32) (M 7£32) 22,161 20,238
(Reversal)/charge of share option benefits cost (B [@1) /F0 [ & A% #E 43 A 5k 2K (2,050) 5,094
254,718 276,315
Less: amount capitalised as properties under B ABRE TR BEABESY
development Edc | (43,643) (45,596)
Less: amount included in cost of sales W AHER AN 2 &8 (40,337) (63,912)
Less: amount included in advertising and other & : 5F A J& & & E b #E & Ak A
promotional costs N2 &5 (18,993) (15,824)
151,745 150,983
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9.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31

(a)

December 2016 is set out below:

18 & & 7 32 th (48)

(a) EEME

 E—E - NFE+-A=+—HI&E
B SEZFzMes5 0T :

Employer’s
Salaries contribution Share
and Discretionary to pension option
Name of directors Fees allowances bonuses scheme benefits Total
FER BAEstal i B 1
EEng we =11 By 1% 7 4L R EEAN (R e
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT FER FERT
Non-executive directors  HRTES
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong RITER ST E — = = = = —
Mr. Cui Hushan (note (vii)) ERILEE
(3 (vi)) — — — — — —
Executive directors BITES
Mr. He Jianbo* o 881 ) 55 £ * = 3,492 1,000 123 66 4,681
Mr. Yin Liang FREE — 2,882 850 105 50 3,887
Ms. He Xiaoli il /NBZ L = 2,557 800 90 48 3,495
Mr. Liu Zeping (note (vi)) 218k 4£
(B 3 (vi)) — = = = 33 33
Independent non-executive BILEHMITEE
directors
Mr. Selwyn Mar BRETE 360 = = = = 360
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria EERRATLT 360 = = = = 360
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy R S A 350 — — — — 350
1,070 8,931 2,650 318 197 13,166
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9.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out below:

& & & # 32 i (48)
(a) EFEWE(E)

HEZZ—RAFt+-A=+—HLHF
B SEFZMEHIMT:

Employer’s
Salaries contribution
and Discretionary to pension Share option
Name of directors Fees allowances bonuses scheme benefits Total
Fek RIR2 53 iedibgi
EEns we b=l B 15 TE AT EEMHN =R #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FHET FHE T FHET FAEIT F#E T
Non-executive directors F HRTES
Mr. Sun Xiaomin (note (i)) RBER LA
(B 3EG)) — — — — 54 54
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong (note (i) 5 7T &8 % &
(Bt 5 (i) = = = = = =
Mr. Tian Jinggi (note (ii)) HREEE
(& Gii)) — — — — 47 47
Mr. Liu Zeping 281 F A& — — — — 40 40
Executive directors BITESE
Mr. He Jianbo* Al 88 % 55 A * — 3,434 900 129 80 4,543
Mr. Yin Liang FrfE = 2,816 750 110 61 3,737
Ms. He Xiaoli fl/NEB Rt = 2,502 700 94 58 3,354
Independent non-executive BILFEHRITEE

directors
Mr. Lam Chun, Daniel MBS &

(note (iv)) (Bft #E (iv)) 175 — — — — 175
Mr. Selwyn Mar BRETE 360 — — — — 360
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria EERLZ L 360 — — — — 360
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy il e

(note (v)) (B 5 (v) 117 — — — — 117

1,012 8,752 2,350 333 340 12,787

\S]

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for

their services as directors of the Company.
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Discretionary bonuses were determined by the

management having regard to the performance of the
directors of the Company and the Group’s operating
results.

During the year, no directors of the Company waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments (2015: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or as compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil).

The executive director marked “*” above is also considered
as chief executive of the Group and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him
as the Chief Executive.

Notes:

(i) Resigned on 18 March 2015

(ii) Appointed on 18 March 2015
(iii) Resigned on 20 August 2015
(iv) Resigned on 11 June 2015

(v) Appointed on 1 September 2015

(vi) Re-designated from a non-executive director to an executive
director on 18 March 2016

(vii)  Appointed on 25 August 2016

9. EEEAZH(E)

(a)

LB EERAR

EENE (&)
HBETEAREREEMREFRAR
AEBEEBEBXEREE -

FA UEEFHAEXFBMEL
e (ZE—0F: &)

FA - AEEBERAETRESEXN
MEERBEIMARNEE 2 R K
EABBHECT—AF &) -

BEMZATESTTRESAEH
ZITBBHE ERNEXHENME

BEAEEETRARREHRRBH
Mz -

B &

(i) R=ZZ—AF=A+/\B&HEE
(ii) R=ZZ—AF=A+/\BEZHF
(i) RZEB-—REFNAZTHEE
vy RZZE-—RFAA+—HEE
v) R-ZT-—HENLA—BEZ#E

vi)y RZE-—AR"F=A+/\BHINTES
HERWTES

(Vi) RIE-—RFNA-THBEEZ{E

—E-NEER | 17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. EEEFZHE)
(b) Five highest-paid individuals ) ABRESHMAL
In 2016, five highest-paid individuals in the Group include RZZ—RF XEBRh A& M
three (2015: three) directors. These directors’ emoluments ALTHFBHE=ZF(CE—HF =F)
are disclosed in (a) above. Details of the emoluments of ARAEE - EFME K EX@E
the remaining two (2015: two) individuals are as follows: FRE - HBmEZ(CE—RAF W
FONTZENESFEBOT
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#ET THE T
Salaries and allowances e MER 3,268 3,186
Discretionary bonuses 15 12 AT 2,402 2,905
Employer’s contributions to pension schemes E K& 5t 2|18 EH A 89 54
Share option benefits HE I 7 4 7 111 85
5,870 6,230
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B & & E T
2016 2015

—F—REF —ET—hF

HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T &
3,000,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T =
3,500,000 7T - -
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ T &=
4,000,000/ 7T — 1
2 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FA AEEHEMZFALIAM
to these individuals as an inducement to join or as B S ERRSIMAREE 2 EE)=K
compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil). EABBmE(CE—HFE &)
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10. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 10. BAFZUC N\ R Rk &

2016 2015
—¥-R"E _T—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FHET
Finance income B R U A
Interest income from bank deposits RITF RF B A 176,502 148,600
Interest income from loans to non-controlling  YXEXKI B A G JEILAE IR R E
shareholders of subsidiaries 2 A BHA 64,860 14,209
241,362 162,809
Finance costs B 75 B AR
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within ARAFABHERE 2RI
five years & & 288,196 333,418
Other borrowings wholly repayable within ARAFABHEERE 2 HAM
five years B 111,550 114,176
Other borrowings not wholly repayable within ~ T~ZERAFABHEE 2 H
five years i B 5K 63,109 63,015
462,855 510,609
Less: Amount capitalised as properties under W AEBERME TN BEARESY
development (Note (i) ¥ 2 &8 (M EE) (407,186) (453,098)
55,669 57,511
Note: B 5%
0) Borrowing costs were capitalised at rates ranging from 2.85% to 6.50% (i) & KA AR FF EH2.85586.50EB(=ZF— A
(2015: 2.72% to 6.50%) per annum. F:272E650F) FIAE AL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
profit for the year or has sufficient tax losses brought forward to
offset current year’s assessable profit (2015: Nil). PRC enterprise
income tax has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year derived in the PRC at the rate of 25% (2015:
25%).

Land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including costs of land and development and construction
expenditures.

FriEHEX

F A AN 55 B RA N 4 [ 3F 4 B AR Bt 0 ) ok A
AR EEBRUAREERBERN K
BRGAMBEREARBEENSHIED
BECE—AF &) hECEMSERH
TYARFZIRE BB 24 5T R B m FlR
25% (ZZT—FF :25%) ZTHRFHE -

THIEERBIR T HEE 2SR BIEE
Y TS RIBINBR TR X (B i
BRA BEREREEIH)NEZRERTXH
30% £60% &L °

2016 2015
—E—RE Z—ZZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Current tax — PRC BIHARE I — R
Enterprise income tax TEMESH 841,600 595,599
Land appreciation tax T IR E 308,947 159,249
1,150,547 754,848
Deferred tax (Note 29) i 3E 56 18 (P 7529) (150,234) (201,054)
1,000,313 553,794
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11. FRiiE B X (E)

Tax charge on the Group's profit before tax differs from the REEFBRB AN 2B IER - BEA
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average BRARGEER Z&F 2 inkEFH 5=
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as AE SRR EENT
follows:
2016 2015
—¥—-R"E C"—T—4fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Profit before tax B B A g A 1,997,492 1,173,401
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to % i F A48 B8 B 5% 5% FIl 2 &
profits in the respective countries MEFE BB 449,632 250,085
Land appreciation tax T 3 3 E T 308,947 159,249
Deferred tax on undistributed profits R Ik 4 F) 2 38 3E B IR 175,362 42,877
Tax effect of land appreciation tax T IR ER 2 B & (69,543) (33,940)
Tax effect of share of results of associates DIEBE AR ERB BB E 3,033 (4,111)
Income not subject to tax BARN ZBA (29,598) (32,109)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 2 174,168 101,179
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ) F T Al & # 32 2 Fi 75 &5 48 (43,634) (848)
Unrecognised tax losses RERHEEE 31,946 50,812
Reversal of deferred tax asset arising from expiry # = — % /F B Bt B A 7] 7 &)
of unutilised tax loss of a PRC subsidiary BgEEafEE 2 BER
HEE — 20,600
Tax charge 7t 18 7 52 1,000,313 553,794
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22.5% (2015: BRZMEFHRER225% (ZF—1
21.3%). The year-on-year change is primarily caused by a change F:213%)  c MEBRNEFTIHRAE
in the relative profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the B BB 2 B P AE B 3[R 2 48 R B T B ek
respective regions. BRTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE — BASIC AND DILUTED
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company divided by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
exercise of share options granted under the Company’s share
option schemes.

12.

BB -EXREEF

I E A B T A A 7R AR A A
RN A NE BT AR 2 M TR
Bt E -

SRBEEFNDBEOETEERNE
TR BUA R BB S A T AR BT
5 i 2 B 5 A B VE 7 % 5B R T
HE -

2016 2015
—E—RE _—ZT—HE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in B 2517 38 % 0 # F 15 i% £k
issue (thousands shares) (FB%) 3,344,301 3,343,125
Adjustment for share options (thousands shares) B A% # 38 2 (F %) 2,146 2,815
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for BRI ESFREERF 2 L@
diluted earnings per share (thousands shares) % hn 42 39 B% B (F %) 3,346,447 3,345,940
Profit attributable to equity holders of the RNRRRAER B A AL & A
Company (HK$'000) (FHET) 512,058 278,156
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRREKRBEFCE) 15.31 8.32
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FBREERF BW) 15.30 8.31

13. DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK4.0 cents (2015: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share with total
amount of HK$133,777,000 (2015: HK$66,886,000). Such
dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 31 May 2017.
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

Final dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015
of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share totaling HK$66,886,000
(2015: final dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014 of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share totaling HK$50,162,000)
was recognised as distribution during the year.
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i B
EFERENKREREGREAR
40BM(ZE —RF:2081) Ha
¥ /133,777,000 (= T — A F:
66,886,000/ 70) ° % IR B AR R AR
AREIR—ZE—tFRA=ZF+—BETZEK
REFAGLEME - WEKEVBFRENA
RERMULEMARE -

REERNEBRDEREE-_T—HF+=
A=+—BLEFEZRBREEREER
2.0l - 42%866,886,0008 L (ZF—H
FEREZE—NFT_A=+T—HILEF
EzREBREGREARISHEN - 2%
50,162,000 7T) °



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - B E &R

Movements in property, plant and equipment are as follows: ME - BELRZBEZEZHWT:
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor

buildings improvements Machinery equipment vehicles Total
HE RE KB

T RiEF HEMERE B EE R&iE B @

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F#& T F#& T FHET TF#& T F#& T FE T

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE—F—<&§

+=A=+—H
IEEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 109,376 1,794 5,255 7,424 5,504 129,353
Exchange differences & =58 2) (100) (253) (480) (260) (1,095)
Additions NE — 672 33 2,326 53 3,084
Transfer from investment properties 5% & W% 66,070 — — — — 66,070
Transfer to investment properties BEEREWE
(Note i) (Bt &) (2,765) E C e E (2,765)
Disposals & — — (340) (177) (147) (664)
Depreciation e (1,147) (180) (374) (3.744) (1,877) (7,322)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 171,532 2,186 4,321 5,349 3,273 186,661
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=A=+—H
Cost B 7R 178,699 9,744 8,232 24,976 17,302 238,953
Accumulated depreciation and REMERRE
impairment (7,167) (7,558) (3,911) (19,627) (14,029) (52,292)
Net book amount iR EF B 171,532 2,186 4,321 5,349 3,273 186,661

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-—E-—-3%

+=RA=+—H
WEEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 125,163 3,077 5,047 10,586 6,912 150,785
Exchange differences & W =58 (482) (88) (266) (510) (353) (1,699)
Additions NE 496 26 1,776 1,682 1,447 5,427
Transfer to investment properties BREREREME
(Note i) (B 5£1) (14,776) — — — — (14,776)
Disposals k= — — — (344) (108) (452)
Depreciation e (1,025) (1,221) (1,302) (3,990) (2,394) (9,932)
Closing net book amount FREETFE 109,376 1,794 5,255 7,424 5,504 129,353
At 31 December 2015 R=ZF—HF
+=A=+—H
Cost BN 115,981 9,357 11,716 26,166 19,177 182,397
Accumulated depreciation and 2 ERRE
impairment (6,605) (7,563) (6,461) (18,742) (13,673) (53,044)
Net book amount BREFE 109,376 1,794 5,255 7,424 5,504 129,353
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

14.

15.

180

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) The amount transferred from property, plant and equipment upon the end
of owner occupation included the carrying value of the property, plant and
equipment amounted to HK$2,765,000 (2015: HK$14,776,000) with fair
value change recognised in other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$3,045,000 (2015: Nil) during the year ended 31 December 2016.

(i) At the end of both reporting periods, the Group’s buildings are erected
on land under medium-terms and long-terms in Hong Kong and long-
terms lease in the PRC respectively.

(iii) As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not pledge any land and buildings
as collaterals for bank borrowings (2015: Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. W% - B ERREGR)

M EE

(@)

(i)

(iii)

BE-T—RNE+-_A=+—HALFEE &
FEANGEREAAEREYE  BERRKH
MEeBEHFERENE BERXEOERDE
2,765,000% JT(= T — F £ :14,776,0005%
) RREMEERATERN AL BEE
&) 493,045,000 T (ZE—AF : &) -

RMERSHRE  AEEZFORNEB
RAERETHAREAREHAEE i &
7 o

R-ZE—RF+-A=+—RH AEEHEL
WEEFEERER/RTER2ERR(ZF
—hE 8-

15. IEME

2016 2015

—¥-R"E _"—ZT—IF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

At beginning of the year F 1) 1,599,234 1,387,079
Transfer from owner-occupied land and buildings % 5 & B £+ i M EF 5,810 14,776
Transfer to owner-occupied land and buildings ¥ Z= g A i R EF (66,070) —
Additions NE — 1,816
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R 18z N FER Z A 72 E A 123,977 195,563
Exchange differences E H ERE (625) —
At end of the year FE 1,662,326 1,599,234

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not pledge any
investment properties as collaterals for bank borrowings (2015:
Nil).
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15.

The investment properties were fair valued at 31 December 2016

by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent valuers.

The valuation for completed investment properties was arrived

at by considering the income capitalisation of the properties

or, where appropriate, by reference to market evidence of

transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations

and conditions as direct comparison.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information

REMEE)

BREMER_ZT-—R"RF+-_A=1+—8B2
7 B R 98 LG (B B AR B B E AT AR

FMAERARERGE

cBERTIREWEN

BEDZERNE ZRBZENM 2 E R
BUHBYMEHAMVERRE LHEUNER
MERS  ERERLER -

ERAMERIAER -

NE&ERRE -

BRAGIER

Tt

RBEHRE  AEREREVER2AE

about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting BREHNMT :
period are as follows:
Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31.12.2016
ARIE
R-ZF—RE
E—4 B8R ®=% +-—A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTET FET FTERT
In Hong Kong L& = 36,070 1,617,000 1,653,070
In PRC iz 7 7 — — 9,256 9,256
Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31.12.2015
ANRfE
R-ZE—HF
E— E_H =K +=—A=+—H
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T T F#E T T T
In Hong Kong BB — 36,999 1,552,400 1,589,399
In PRC i 7 7 — — 9,835 9,835

There were no transfers into or out of Levels 2 to 3 during both

years.

RREFEREEREAERAF _EF

=

LB EERAR
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e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 2 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

15.

REWME(E)
TREHMABTRAMEAREZ AR
(1 B2 B 62 FR ) i (B TS R 4 A B
DURIR IR A B A A B BT B
=R EHEAA B BEAAL BERTY
DR(E_REE=4) -

Relationship of

consolidated statement  Fair value unobservable inputs for
of financial position hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) fair value
GEMBRARTARE ARE FOBREHABIRE
FRAZRENE =R HERHRARE A\ LR EXTUREZHAYRE BREZHE

Property 1in Hong Kong  Level 3 Direct comparison method and income method Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit The higher the reversionary
BEME F=H HEELBERBKANE market rental income and unit market value of the yield, the lower the fair

The key inputs are:
BREABER:

1. Reversionary yield; and

1. EHkER:R

2. Market unit rent of individual unit

2. BREMHTSEMEE

comparable properties of 5% (2015: 5%).
EHEkER  ZRUALEBYE FEENTSES EENEEES
WARERTI5EE25% (ZB—R%F :5%) °

value

AR ERE

Market unit rent, using direct market comparables and  The higher the market unit

182

taking into account of similar character, location rent, the higher the fair

and sizes, from HK$41/sq.ft./month to HK$94/ value
sq.ft./month (2015: from HK$39/sq.ft./month to  WHEMBEEHE

HK$100/sq.ft./month). AREHE
mHEENEE  REEETSLBRYEL BEER

UEE - NERAE - HEAFTHRNBLTE

UEL(ZE—0F: BAGTARIETE00

BIT) °
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement  Fair value

15. IEME(E)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs for

of financial position hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) fair value

GEMBRARTARE ARE FOBREEHABIRE

FRAEZRENE =L HERHRARE A\ YR EXTUREZHAYRE BREZHE

Property 2 in Hong Kong ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method and Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit The higher the reversionary

ERCLIEY) E= income method market rental income and unit market value of the yield, the lower the fair
BEREBZERRANZE comparable properties of 5% (2015: 5%). value

The key inputs are:
BREAUER:

1. Reversionary yield; and
1. BEEREE R

2. Market unit rent of individual unit

2. BREMAHTZEMRE

Other properties in Level 2 Direct comparison method based on market
Hong Kong £ observable transactions of similar
BREMYEF properties and adjust to reflect the
conditions and locations of the subject
property.

BEERLBEENAUNE LT RAERERS
YEBBARRANE 2GR E -

ERRER  ZRAALBNEZFRENTSEE ARRERER
WARBATIHBEEZ% (ZE—HF :5%) ° DS ERE

Market unit rent, using direct market comparables and  The higher the market unit

taking into account of similar character, location rent, the higher the fair
and sizes, from HK$20/sq.ft./month to HK$40/ value

sq.ft./month (2015: from HK$20/sq.ft/month to  TiHEMAEHS
HK$40/50.ft./month). N ES A=)

mHEENEE  REEETSLBYETLEZER
UEH NERAE BEASTFAR0ELE
AWBT(ZZ—RE : BAGFHR20ETEL0E
) °

N/A N/A
T TiE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. IEME(E)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the Relationship of
consolidated statement of Fair value unobservable inputs for
financial position hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) fair value
GEMBRARPEARERE ALE FOBEZEHABIRE
HZREWE E& HERHRARE A\ YR EXTIREZHAYRE AREZHE
Property 3 in PRC Level 3 Direct comparison method and Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit The higher the reversionary
RE %3 E=5 income method market rental income and unit market value of the yield, the lower the fair
BEREBERRANZE comparable properties of 7% (2015: 6%). value
EEkER  ZRUALEBYE FREENTSES EENEEES
The key inputs are: WARBMTISEEZI% (ZT—RF :6%) AREHE
BRENBER:

1. Reversionary yield; and
1 EEREE R

2. Market unit rent of individual unit

2. BRIEMMTZEMRE

Market unit rent, using direct market comparables and The higher the market unit

taking into account of similar character, location rent, the higher the fair
and sizes, being HK$55/sq.m./month (2015: HK$55/ value
sq.m./month). mEENREHE

mHEENEE  REEETSLBRYEL BEER AREHE
WEH - NERRE - SBAFEARASHEL(Z
Z-1E:GREFHRSET)

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the EEREMENRAAER KEEEA
Group uses market observable data to the extent it is available. RREAMBABREE AEENERRE
The management of the Group works closely with the valuers BHEMEEASIE U EBEEMNHER
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to i Rz oy N B o

the model.
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16. GOODWILL

Goodwill arising from acquisitions of subsidiaries are as follows:

(R

BURBHEBARMSEHENT :

2016 2015

—E—-RE _—ZT—AfF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAET

At beginning of the year F 1) 9,483 10,073
Exchange differences PE X =% (604) (590)
At end of the year F R 8,879 9,483

Impairment test for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU")
identified as follows:

2 i B A

BENOEEABERZASESLEM (R

SELBEM]) FBWT:

2016 2015
—¥—-R"E C"—T—IfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
CGU: ReELBM:
Specialised construction EEEER 8,879 9,483

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a one-year
period and extrapolated for the remaining operating period
based on the following information with reference to past
performance and expectation for market development.

ReELBMNZAKROcRIREEAE
BB - AESAFNBRERERA - 2
N—FHBRBERKE  MAREEF

HAERATERELES

RARHMBER HEHFE -

2016 2015

—T—-R"E Z—ZT—8F

% %

Estimated growth rate HErE R = 5.00 5.00
Discount rate A IR & 4.35 5.03

The estimated growth rates disclosed above applied to the five-
year cash flow projections and no growth was assumed when
extrapolating to later periods. The estimated growth rate of
5.00% used represents the general growth in the market.

EXHWBZEFERXEARAFRER
EREA MRREAEEERDRRKRL
BIER o JRA5.00% MM IERERBTRM S

BEEE -

1E
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e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 17. FEMBATIFIE

(a) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016: (a) RZZE—R"F+-—A=+—8 FZ
LN NCIETIE
Percentage of equity interest
RERBE R
2016 2015
—E-R% —Z-1F
Place of Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
incorporation/ Particulars of issued share held by the held by the  held by the  held by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital/ paid up capital (note (i)) Company Company Company Company Principal activity
B3 EETRE/ EE® Gk =E 3 WS
HEASEH BEBE SR SR A (M E ) AATHF F2EARKF AREARKE ARAHE  EEEE
IREBEHERRAERAR PRC RMB2,338,120,000 — 51 — 51 Real estate development
(Beijing Wanhu Property Development
Co., Ltd.) ("Beijing Wanhu") (notes (iii))
TRENFHREREARAR hE AR %2,338,120,0007C FiEER
(T2 & 3 1) (Bt i)
Best Pearl Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 — 100 = 100 Property investment
1,000 shares with no par value
BHRBERARLA EE 1,000 7T MERE
1,000/ & E
BREGEERMEREERLA PRC RMB778,013,150 — 100 — 80  Real estate development
(Boluo County Bihua Property
Development Company Limited)
("Boluo County Bihua")
(note (iii) & (v))
BREGEERHERRERAR il AR%778,013,1507 FHEZR
(18 B2 %)) (B 22 (i) & (v)
Bright Circle Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 — 100 Property investment
10,000 shares with no par value
BhERAR B 10,000 7 NERA
10,0008 & &
REMEREXERAA PRC US$6,600,000 - 7 - 71 Real estate development
(Dragon Construction (Nanjing)
Properties Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))
EEER)EE£FRAA (i) hE 6,600,000 7T FHERR
Eastrend (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 — 100 Property investment
2 shares with no par value
RE(BR)BERARA B 2B NERE
MR EREE
Full Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 — 100 Property investment
2 shares with no par value
ENBEBRAR B 2B NERE
MR EREE
Great Way Properties Limited Hong Kong/PRC HK$2 = 100 — 100 Property investment
2 shares with no par value
BREEERAR B/ HE 2B NERE
R EEE
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17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016:

(Continued)

17. FEMBLABFRE)

(a) RZZE—R"FE+ZA=1+—8 xZ
MEARSIR: (&)

Percentage of equity interest

REEZER I
2016 2015
—¥-"% —¥-1f
Place of Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
incorporation/ Particulars of issued share held by the held by the  held by the  held by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital/ paid up capital (note (i)) Company Company Company Company Principal activity
M EEfTRE/ =§:3::] il BEEA Bk
MEADEH BEBE MR SR R AR (M EG) AATHE FAERRFE  ARABE ARARE  XEEB
HEPEREERERAR PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100 - 100 Real estate development
(Hunan Zhongrun Chengzhen Real
Estate Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))
HEPERERRERAR(MEGE) + A K #10,000,0007T FHERR
BHBEtEERMEREERAA PRC US$55,000,000 - 50 — 50  Real estate development
(Langfang Kuangshi Jiye Property
Development Co., Ltd.)
("Kuangshi Jiye") (notes (iii) & (iv))
Byt EXEERBFARAR FE 55,000,0005 70 FHERR
(W 236 1) (B G R )
Linkcheer Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 = 100 Property investment
2 shares with no par value
EREBAR BiE 2B NERE
R ERE
Luck Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands/  US$2 = 100 — 100 Securities Investment
Hong Kong 2 shares of US$1 each
EFREARAA REERER/BE X% EHRE
AEERERIZT
Massive Leader Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100 = 100 Real estate development
1 share with no par value
ERERAR ) BT EHEERE
REEE
Minmetals Condo (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 = 100 Design and installation
Engineering Company Limited 1 share with no par value of curtain walls
BRHEN(BE) IRERAA Bk 18T RARLEKRERE
RERE
Minmetals Land Capital Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$10 100 — 100 = Fund raising
10 shares of US$1 each
AERREAERAR ERERHS 10T &%
10 S REEIRT
Minmetals Land (China) Limited Hong Kong/ HK$2 = 100 — 100 Provision of
Hong Kong and PRC 2 shares with no par value management service
ABEER(PE)EBRAR BB/ BERTHE 2B REERRS
MR EEE
Minmetals Land Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/  US$1,000 100 — 100 = Investment holding
Hong Kong 100 shares of US$10 each
Minmetals Land Investments Limited HMAKEE/EE 1000FT REBRR
100/ Bk @ E10 T

IBHWEERAR —%

[
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e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016:

(Continued)

17. S EMBASIHIE(E)

(@) R=Z=ZT—A"F+=—A=+—H FZ

MEAm L (B)

Percentage of equity interest

REEZES I
2016 2015
—¥-RE —Z-1F
Place of Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
incorporation/ Particulars of issued share held by the held by the  held by the  held by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital/ paid up capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company Principal activity
MR EEfTRE/ =g ::3::] Gik:3::] =8 4: Bk
MEASEH B¥DY R R G EA)] AATRKE FAARKE ARARKE  ALRARE TEEH
IREROIE)ENERFHMERES PRC RMB380,000,000 — 100 — 100 Real estate development
A7) (Minmetals Land (Hunan) Jiahe
Risheng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.) (“Jiahe Risheng”) (note (i))
ABER(AmENAREHERE B A K #380,000,0007C EHERR
AR AR (32708 8% 1) (B & (i)
TREEL(EN)EEBEERAA PRC Us$100,000,000 - 100 — 100 Real estate development
(Minmetals Land (Yingkou) Hengfu
Properties Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))
IBEER(ENEEEXERAR HE 100,000,000 & FHEZR
(WD)
IEHEMRERAR PRC RMB894,800,000 — 98.88 — 98.88  Real estate development
(Minmetals Property Development
Nanjing Co., Ltd.) (note (i)
DB ER R AR AR (K i) il A K %894,800,0007C FHEZRE
TREX(RB)ESHEARD PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 — 100 Real estate development
&) (Minmetals Real Estate (Tianjin)
Binhaixinqu Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))
IBEX(RR)EEFEERAA HE A R %10,000,0007C FiEER
(WD)
BB E (B R)ERAE (Kuangji PRC RMB5,400,000,000 — 100 — 66.67  Real estate development
Properties (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. “Kuangji
Properties”) (note (iii) & (vi))
BEREBR)BRAR(WELE]) + A K %5,400,000,0007C FEHEZR
(B 2 i) B (vi))
Bt B (B =) AR A A (Kuangshi PRC RMB1,200,000,000 - 100 — 100 Real estate development
Properties (Nanjing) Co., Ltd.)
(note (ii)
Bt i 2 (R R) B R AR (M (i) HE A R #1,200,000,0007T EHEZRE
MEBEREHEREERAAT) PRC RMB300,000,000 — 100 — 100 Real estate development
(Hunan Kuangdai Property
Development Co., Ltd) (note (ii)
HEBRRELERBERAR WM + AR #300,000,0007 FEHEZRE
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17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 17. FEMBASIFIB(E)

(CONTINUED)

(a) (a) R=ZBE—R"F+-_A=+—HH £ZE

List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016:

(Continued)

MEBARNRK: (B)

Percentage of equity interest

REEZES I
2016 2015
—¥-"% —¥-1f
Place of Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
incorporation/ Particulars of issued share held by the held by the  held by the  held by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital/ paid up capital (note (i)) Company Company Company Company Principal activity
M EEfTRE/ b=§:3:] il =E 3: Bk

MEADEH R MR GR R AR (M EG) AATHE FAERRFE  ARABE ARARE  XEEB

BEMERRERAA PRC RMB100,000,000 — 100 — 100 Real estate development
(Kuangqi Property Development
Nanjing Co., Ltd) (note (ii))

B EHRAR AR () R E A K #100,000,00070 FHERR

ONFEM Finance Limited British Virgin Islands/  US$1,000 100 = 100 — Provision of financing for

Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each group companies

ONFEM Finance Limited HBAKEE/EE 1000%T REBATREME

1,000/ & B E 15X T
Oriental Dragon Construction Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 — n = 7 Investment holding
Hong Kong and PRC 10,000 shares with no par value

REBRERAR BE/EERRE  10000%T RARR

10,000f% & E &
LERM(LE)RRERAR PRC US$4,270,000 = 100 — 100 Design and installation
(Minmetals Condo (Shanghai) of curtain walls and
Construction Co., Ltd. (note (ii)) aluminum windows
ABERA (LB ERERAR (HWEH) HE 4,270,000% 7 RARRERBREE
Texion Development Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 - 100 = 100 Property investment
50,000,000 shares with no
par value

CRBERERADF B 50,000,000 7T MERE
50,000,000/ £ E {6

Tinnex Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 = 100 Property management
2 shares with no par value

Tinnex Management Limited EE 2B MEER
AR EEE

Top Gain Properties Limited Hong Kong/PRC HK$2 = 100 — 100 Property investment
2 shares with no par value

HREZERAR &%/ HH 2B NERE
R EEE

Virtyre Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 = 100 Property investment
2 shares with no par value

Virtyre Limited EE 2B mERE
R EEE

KBRABREZARAF PRC RMB44,000,000 = 100 — 100 Real estate development
(Zhuhai (Oriental) Blue Horrison
Properties Company Limited)

(note (ii))
KERHBREZERAA M EG) FE AR #44,000,0007 FHEZR
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17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
(a) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016:
(Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(i) The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. None
of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

(ii) These are foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC

with operating periods ranging from 15 years to 40 years.

(iii) These are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the PRC

with operating periods ranging from 20 years to 30 years.

(iv) Although the Group owns 50% equity interest in Kuangshi Jiye, it
has control over Kuangshi Jiye by holding 60% of the voting power
over the board of directors of Kuangshi Jiye, which require simple
majority votes of the directors on making decision on relevant

activities.

(v) The acquisition of the 20% equity interest in Boluo County Bihua
by the Group, as announced on 27 May 2016, has completed in
July 2016. Upon the completion, Boluo County Bihua became a

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

(vi) The acquisition of the 33.33% equity interest in Kuangji Properties
by the Group, as announced on 6 December 2016, has completed
in December 2016. Upon the completion, Kuangji Properties

became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
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17. EEMBATFE(E)

(a)

R-T—AE+-A=+-B =2
HBARIIE: ()

EERA/BLRITZAEERER
AEEZEFEREEANEBREE -
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HEBRNITE -

o &E

(i) BERAZRN AR ODEHNEEE
B -BE_T-RF+_A=+—H
L FEAREMER - X0 B AR E
BITEMERERA -

(i) ZERRPBERILZINE B
HEBISFERL0F RS -

(ii) ERNPEKLZPIINEEEED

EEHR0FEI0FENE -

e Xy

(ivy BEXAEEERELEE0%KE
HEBRABRUAXESETE60% 2R
EREEEREGE  DAREHH
REFBEBFLBESERE -

(v) BR=ZE—R"ERA=-+LHEM -
AEBEWEHREEE20%RED R
T-RELATEK - A EEBEER
ERAEBER2EHRS -

W) HEEmR-T—AFEt+-AABEMH A
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17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

Place of
incorporation
and principal

17. S ERBASIFHE(E)

AREXEENERNESR
EMBATZHTE
TREJINASEAEBERIFZH 2
BZHEEEMBRRZFHE:

(b)

Proportion of equity

place of interests held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
= AR 3L R FiERESAERE T JE 2 1 #E 2
MEBASEE TEEEBE HamESEE 5 B 2 it Rt FEEHES
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—RE —E—HF ZT—FRE —T—HF ZFT—FRE —T—AHF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TFET T T FET F#& T
Boluo County Bihua (Note 17(a)(v)) PRC = 20% (1,863) (22,221) — 109,710
82 2 = (M 217@)(v) il
Kuangshi Jiye PRC 50% 50% 69,677 (7,257) 261,689 208,183
B EE H
Beijing Wanhu PRC 49% 49% 341,781 255,391 1,648,305 1,675,609
b & H
Kuangji Properties (Note 17(a)(vi)) PRC — 33.33% 72,445 105,976 — 2,223,075
TR 0 2 (M 52 17(a)(vi) A
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 3,081 9,562 57,754 73,095
AR FERERNMEREERNE
NE]|
485,121 341,451 1,967,748 4,289,672

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intra-group

eliminations.

Ng

FaN

ARASESEAEAIFEH#
ZHWBAR 2 HBEEMBERI M
T-UTHHEEHNRERTEER
BRI 2R -
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17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

17. FEMBABFRE)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have by BEEXFEHEEZNIES
material non-controlling interests (Continued) EMBATIZEIE(E)
Boluo County Bihua MEEE

2015

—E—RF

HK$'000

FAET

Current assets mE B E 2,302,052
Non-current assets FERBEE 9,050
Current liabilities mEAE 1,762,551
Non-current liabilities B BEE =
Total equity = R 548,551
Year ended

31 December

2015

BHE—_ZT—AF

+=—A=+—H

IEFE

HK$'000

FAET

Revenue WA 98,829
Expenses -3 (209,936)
Loss for the year NEEE 18 (111,107)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AREEEMEEHE X (35,952)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEE2ERXRE (147,059)
Net cash outflow from operating activities KEFHELER ML FE (114,285)
Net cash inflow from investing activities REEDEER KA FE 107
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEHELR S ML FE (20,279)
Net cash outflow & L5 (134,457)
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17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

17. FEMBELEFTRE)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have () EFEEXFIEHERNES
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BEMBATIZHIE(E)
Kuangshi Jiye 0 2 2

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-—hEF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current assets mEBEE 1,878,885 1,792,974
Non-current assets FEMEE E 19,822 42,695
Current liabilities mEER 1,375,330 1,419,303
Total equity B 523,377 416,366
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-BLEE
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Revenue N 908,088 1,705
Expenses 2 (768,733) (16,219)
Profit/(loss) for the year REFERF,(EB) 139,355 (14,514)
Other comprehensive expense AEEEMEERX
for the year (32,344) (26,083)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AFE 2mEU s (FIx)
for the year k) 107,011 (40,597)
Net cash inflow from operating activities &% EBE LR &R A FEE 287,377 551,254
Net cash outflow from investing KEEHEARS RHFHE
activities (681,350) (6)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be(RE)/ RAFHE (393,973) 551,248
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—-F—NF+-HA=

+— AR

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests (Continued)

17. FEMBABFRE)

() BREXFEHFHERMIESR
BB AT Z5#1E (&)

Beijing Wanhu tmEH
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Current assets mB & E 9,630,027 7,775,603
Non-current assets ERBEE 220,942 169,179
Current liabilities mEAE 6,487,080 4,525,171
Total equity s R 3,363,889 3,419,611
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-BLER
2016 2015
—B-REF —T—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THE T
Revenue A 2,719,384 1,835,101
Expenses S (2,021,872) (1,313,894)
Profit for the year N4 5 s A 697,512 521,207
Other comprehensive expense RNEFEEMEERX
for the year (225,380) (194,948)
Total comprehensive income for the year AN € 2 U z5 2458 472,132 326,259
Dividends paid to non-controlling BRI REREERER 2
interests of Beijing Wanhu f% 2 258,653 —
Net cash inflow from operating activities &% BB E LR & R A F 58 3,286,168 2,837,867
Net cash outflow from investing REFRHELERSRL FRE
activities (3,009,602) (39)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BEEFHELEBEESRAS
financing activities (7 H) F # 153,439 (2,903,349)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BemA/CRE) FHE 430,005 (65,521)
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17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(b)

material non-controlling interests (Continued)

17. S ERBASIFHE(E)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have by BEEXFEHEZNIES
EMBATIZIE(E)

Kuangji Properties 1R b

2015

—E—RF

HK$'000

T

Current assets mE B E 10,739,612
Non-current assets EREBEE 88,117
Current liabilities mEAE 4,158,505
Total equity HEm e 6,669,224
Year ended

31 December

2015

HE—_ZT—A1F

+=—A=+—H

IEFE

HK$'000

T T

Revenue WA 2,440,360
Expenses -3 (2,122,401)
Profit for the year NEE 5 A 317,959
Other comprehensive expense for the year REEEAM2EFX (429,764)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ANEE2EF X @5 (111,805)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEHELRESR 2,502,174
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEREAR SR (23)

Net cash inflow TR A FRE 2,502,151
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #t

18.

196

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

E-FR

NFE+=ZA=1+—HIFEZF

18. REiE AT Z2Hm

(a) Investments (a) H®™E
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—HHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#ET THE T
At beginning of the year F 1) 1,352,198 1,419,275
Exchange differences & & =% (78,151) (83,519)
Dividends received B U B (120,860) —
Share of (loss)/profit D16 (E8),/% 5 (12,135) 16,442
At end of the year F 1,141,052 1,352,198

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2016

and 2015 are as follow:

Name of entity

Principle activities

RZE—ARFEF+_A=+—HE=ZF
—HFE+ZHA=1+—8 AEE &
EARBEMT

Proportion of Proportion of

Place of equity interest voting rights
incorporation held by the held by the
and operation Group Group

& it % *EEHH *EEHH

Z TEEH EEME REEZILH RERELL B
BhBERERMERERR QA Real estate PRC 50% 40%
(Langfang Wanheng Shengye Property development
Development Co., Ltd) (“Langfang
Wanheng”) (note i)
B BERXFEHERZERERAA FEiEERE A B
(TEz 47 & 18 1) (B =E0)
TRABEENEXFRAA Real estate PRC 51% 40%
(Beijing Minmetals Vanke Real Estate Co., development
Ltd) (“Beijing Minmetals Vanke”) (note i)
TRABEENEXFRAA P b EE 3 R Y
(e T & B ) (B 72D
Note: B 5%
(i) The companies are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in (i) ZERARNFBEKLZHIINEERL
the PRC with operating periods of 30 years. The Group accounts BhE EEHANF AREEE
for its investment in these companies as associates as it only HRZREZEBARAESTSLERK

exercises significant influence over the investment by minority

representation in the board of directors. Pursuant to shareholder

agreements, the Company has the right to cast 40% of the votes

at shareholder meetings of Langfang Wanheng, and 40% of the

votes at shareholder meetings of Beijing Minmetals Vanke.
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Summarised financial information of associates
Summarised financial information in respect of each

associate of the Group is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts shown in

the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance

with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.

18.

REEAE 2= (8)

(b)

HEQTIMBENME
AEEEHEATNYBER BRI
BT - THHBENHEEELT
REEAROMBRRAZLET
REEEMHEREEANEH -

Langfang Wanheng B35 & 1B
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#IT FAT
Current assets mE)E E 376,593 402,029
Non-current assets EREEE 3 3
Current liabilities mE AR 23,381 24,963

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2016 2015

—E—-R¥ —T-AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Profit/(loss) for the year ANEEmF,(EE) 50 (26)
Other comprehensive expense AEEEMEERX

for the year (23,904) (23,373)
Total comprehensive expense REETHEMX L

for the year (23,854) (23,399)
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18. REFZEATI 2R (&)
(b) Summarised financial information of associates (b) BIZEATUHBEEBME(E)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial EXHBERSEEBHSEERE
information to the carrying amount of the interest EMBHmRERANERREBE 2 K

in Langfang Wanheng recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2016 2015
—¥-R"E _—T—4fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net assets of the associate BE AR EEFE 353,215 377,069
Proportion of the Group's interest in AEERBHEER

Langfang Wanheng 1 25 b I 50% 50%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in 7 £ B 5 JBF 35 & 18 A% 48 # 25
Langfang Wanheng 2 BREE 176,608 188,535
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18. M E NS ZHELR(E)

(b) Summarised financial information of associates (b) BIZEATUHBERBME(E)
(Continued)

Beijing Minmetals Vanke tRAERER

2016 2015

—E—F —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHETT FE T

Current assets mB A E 2,077,228 2,656,864

Non-current assets ERBEE 886 22,399

Current liabilities mEAaE 187,047 397,571

Year ended 31 December

BE+—-A=+—HIL¥E

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&EXT FAT
Revenue WA 92,979 125,403
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER), & T (23,843) 32,265
Other comprehensive expense NFE A A 2R X
for the year (129,802) (140,269)
Total comprehensive expense REEZHERSRE
for the year (153,645) (108,004)
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18. REFZEATI 2R (&)
(b) Summarised financial information of associates (h) BMEATHBEHBESE)
(Continued)
Beijing Minmetals Vanke (Continued) tRAERSRE (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial EXHBERBEZERILLRARERSR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in NiFEMBmEANERREE Y
Beijing Minmetals Vanke recognised in the consolidated iR :

financial statements:

2016 2015
—T¥-R"E _"T—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Net assets of the associate Bt NF & EFHE 1,891,067 2,281,692
Proportion of the Group's interest in AEERIERAES B H
Beijing Minmetals Vanke T 5 LE A1 51% 51%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in 7N B 7 4t R F & & Rl A% A&
Beijing Minmetals Vanke iz 2 BREE 964,444 1,163,663
19. INVENTORIES 19. 8
2016 2015
—E—RE Z—T—A8F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Properties under development — located in BRAYE —
the PRC (a) iz A E (a) 12,031,127 15,317,171
Properties under development — located in BRBPYE —
Hong Kong (a) fRES (a) 4,026,103 —
16,057,230 15,317,171
Properties held for sale — located in the PRC  #H{EHEME — IR H 2,861,910 5,403,293

18,919,140 20,720,464
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19.

INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

. FE(&

Properties under development BERPUE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZT—AEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Land use rights 4+ Hb {5 A 11,928,062 11,858,706
Construction costs EERK A 4,129,168 3,458,465
16,057,230 15,317,171

As at 31 December 2016, no properties under
development have been pledged as collaterals for bank
borrowings (2015: HK$1,388,701,000) (Note 28(a)).

As at 31 December 2016, properties under development
with carrying amount of HK$9,563,420,000 (2015:
HK$7,317,414,000) are expected to be completed and
realised after twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Properties held for sale of approximately
HK$896,420,000 (2015: HK$2,923,597,000) as at 31
December 2016 are expected to be sold after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

LB EERAR

R-_ZE—XNE+-_HA=+—8" %
BERTVECERERRITER
Z AR R (K E28@)( =T —ARF
1,388,701,0007% 7T) °

R-BE—XRE+-A=+—8" §E
E1E 49,563,420,000/8 L (—ZZ—F
4 :7,317,414,00078 JT) K 3 B B ¥
ETEHRBR R EERE12EARET
RER - RZZE—XR"E+=ZA=+—
H - 896,420,000/ 0 (=& — R %F :
2,923,597,000% 7T ) By 5 1E H & ¥ 2
BRHREHREBREABRED -
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e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # % =%

20. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS

21.

202

~AEFASF AU EE

20 EEBITIEEY

2016 2015
—F—RHE —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits B E A 4B A 0 E # 723
less recognised losses B B T 7R B 18 3,792,992 3,675,221
Less: progress billings B TREERX (3,445,455) (3,241,944)
Gross amounts due from customers for BREFPZEHNIIZETE
contract work 347,537 433,277
PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21, ERRIE - B RHEMEWRER
]
2016 2015
—¥—-R"E C—T—IfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Trade and contract receivables, net (b) AHEWFRIE - FE(b) 499,839 795,379
Retention receivables (c) %Hﬁzﬁ%l(ﬁ(c) 107,483 85,578
Deposits & 48,175 66,263
Prepayments (d) T8 5 FIE(d) 1,219,047 1,038,620
Prepayments for land cost (e) FEAF £ 8 K AN (e) 7,265,799 320,249
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder of a ERT—RWEBRE 2—%
subsidiary (Note 36(b)) FE 12 A% Ak 2R (Fff 5 36(b)) 2,465,064 1,052,757
Amount due from an associate (Note 36(b)) FE U — R B & A B RIE
(Bt 5£36(b)) 88,062 —
Amounts due from an intermediate holding FEW —RE R A E R
company and ultimate holding company P2 A% A B 51 I8 (M 5E36(b))
(Note 36(b)) 27,579 —
Others Hh 43,642 46,011
11,764,690 3,404,857
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21. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a

The carrying amounts of prepayments, trade and other (a)
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

21. FEHRIE -BEHREMEBIR
I5(48)

BNRIE BZREMEBRRIEAZ
BREEATIEESIER

2016 2015
—E—-RE ZZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ T 189,145 111,967
RMB AR 11,543,748 3,288,926
Macao pataca (“MOP") SEPI R (RPIEED) 31,797 3,964
11,764,690 3,404,857
The aging analysis of trade and contract receivables based (b) REWBELINEHAE WELSNHTE
on due date for rental receivables, date of properties FHHHAMEREEEZRBEHEES

delivered to purchasers and billing date of construction

BHEID 2B RAHNEERARRZ

services certified is as follows: BB DT
2016 2015
—FT—-R"E C"—T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAT
0 to 90 days 0% 90H 181,979 454,752
91 to 180 days 91£180H 28,986 85,174
181 days to 1 year 181BE—F 88,641 103,002
1 year to 2 years —FEWMF 158,270 114,070
Over 2 years R F LA 71,148 66,968
529,024 823,966
Less: allowance for impairment R E B (29,185) (28,587)
499,839 795,379

[

IBHWEERAR —%
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e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FERRE B REMGEKR

(CONTINUED) IH(48)
(b)  (Continued) by (&)

In respect of trade and contract receivables, a credit period
of three to twelve months may be granted to customers
on a case-by-case basis.

Trade and contract receivables neither past due nor
impaired are with customers having good repayment
history and no default in the past.

Trade and contract receivables that are past due less
than two years are generally not considered impaired.
Trade and contract receivables of HK$332,690,000 (2015:
HK$526,840,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no history of default. The aging analysis of these

REZREQEYHIR  ZEHNE
MABETEFP==2+_BRAZEEH -

B 5 RE N EKFIEILE B H MR
B AEGFRER R M8 K
RBELEBENTRIEP

—BmE BHLARMEZES
REXERZTEBEBTEHERBE R
16332,690,000/% ;L (= T — A F :
526,840,000 7T) 2 B 5 K& UK
NECBEBEERE ZEHKRIBEH
SEEENCHRZBIRFEERA -

trade and contract receivables is as follows: ZEESRENRIRFIBZRE D

T
2016 2015
—¥—-R"E _"—T—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FET

Past due days 1 5 B 2

1 to 90 days 1290H 84,049 366,203
91 to 180 days 91£180H 29,798 24,694
181 days to 1 year 181 E—F 73,215 18,801
1 year to 2 years —FEME 105,188 79,309
Over 2 years M E 40,440 37,833
332,690 526,840
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21. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

Trade and contract receivables of HK$29,185,000
(2015: HK$28,587,000) were impaired and provision
for impairment was made. The individually impaired
receivables relate to customers, which are in unexpected
difficult financial situations. The aging of these receivables

21, ERRE BESREMGEKR

15 (#)
(b) ()

29,185,000% (= & — A F:
28,587,000/ 7T) 2 B 5 K& £ FE K
REBRE LEFLRERE -
18 51 2 7 1B FE U 5Kk I8 B 28 SR b A B
BRENEFHRE - 25 EKRE

is as follows: ZERBRONTAT
2016 2015
—FB—R"E "E—IOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T
Past due days i 2 B 2
Over 2 years W E A+ 29,185 28,587

Movements in the allowance for impairment of trade and

B REDEYKEEL ZHE

contract receivables are as follows: BE22EHIT:
2016 2015
—F—RE —"EZ—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET
At beginning of the year F 9] 28,587 8,360
Exchange differences fEH ZE5 (1,398) (2,721)
Allowance for impairment VEREREE] 1,996 22,948
At end of the year F R 29,185 28,587
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e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FERRE B REMGEKR
IH(4)

(CONTINUED)

(0 As at 31 December 2016, retention receivables
with carrying amount of HK$85,523,000 (2015:
HK$58,564,000) are expected to be recovered after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

(d) As at 31 December 2016, prepayments include
prepaid taxes and other charges of approximately
HK$1,130,838,000 (2015: HK$1,017,814,000).

(e) As at 31 December 2016, prepayments for land cost
represent payments to the PRC Bureau of Land and
Resources for the acquisition of lands in the PRC and the
amount will be recognised as inventory upon issuance of
Land Use Rights Certificates.

(f)  The other items within trade and other receivables do not
contain past due or impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting

period is the carrying amount of receivables mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 22.

(0)

RZBE—XRE+=-A=+—80 " A
FERIRE S Z BRTE{E £85,523,000/8
7L (== — A : 58,564,000/ ) °
TEHARERE T @A RTYE o

R-E—XRF+-_A=+—HH: F&
NREBEENREREME R
#91,130,838,000/8 L (ZF — A 4F :
1,017,814,00058 7T) °

RZZE—RF+-A=+—8 " &
o3 AR AR HE BL R P B £ AT S
Ny EBELERBZKIE Mt
CHEENERE L WERERRE
RBFE -

B5KEAMEYRIBEARZ HAIRE
YT ERBHAEREEE -

RBEEHRBZEREERRT LA E
WA 2 fREfE - NEBE Y EFAEME
W fEEA -

ZRAMEAWMERARER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BEZUBEE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REB LT ZRAFES
At beginning of the year F 7)) 610,745 511,643
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in other REMEZEBEER AR
comprehensive income BE(EE) WH (129,063) 99,102
At end of the year F R 481,682 610,745
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
The Group’s equity securities investment is measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period

ZRAEMEE K ®EARE
BEHBEEE)
AEERREHEEANREBSRERD
o EEHE -

22.

Fair value as at

RUTHHBM AR E

31 December

Valuation

31 December Fair value technique(s) and

Financial assets 2016 2015 hierarchy key input(s)
—F—-RE —HF ARE FEERAREE
MBEE +—A=+—H +ZA=+—H8 @&H i\ BB
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFERX FHETT
Financial assets at fair value through other 481,682 610,745 Level 1 Quoted prices
comprehensive income in an active
— Listed equity securities market
FREMETHKRRRAABSEZHB — &% RERmSHE R
BE — FMRAES BEAE

The equity securities investment has been designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income upon the Group's early
application of the 2010 version of HKFRS 9 in 2011, which, in
the opinion of the Directors, resulting more relevant information
for the Group’s financial instruments based on how the Group
manages its equity instruments. The financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income represents equity securities
listed in Hong Kong of HK$481,682,000 as at 31 December
2016 (31 December 2015: HK610,745,000).
recognised during the year related to those investments held at
the year end is HK$18,438,000 (2015: HK$26,504,000). There
is no disposal or transfer of the cumulative gain or loss within

Dividend income

equity during both years.

BAZBLHFREENAEEE-_T——FE
FREBE BV REENFIF T —F
FRE BEEAEZREMEZERERA
RNEFE MEERAEERAEEE
BEEEERATEANIN HEEZS
BMIAMEEAEN FREME2EKE
REARBEFECHBEEER=-_Z—X
F+ZA=+—B EHESLTHRAE
#481,682,000 T (ZE—hFE+=-HA=
+—H 610,745,000/ 70) - FREREF
KB BEHNZERETANREBAR
18,438,0007% JT (= & — F 4F 126,504,000
EIC) o RMEFE &= P E &Sk
ER RS EE -
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e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

23. HthBiFB&EE

2016 2015
ZE—-RE —"T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Other financial assets Hh Br 15 & &
Derivatives under hedge accounting HYEHATZHEIR
Cash flow hedges — Interest rate swap (a) ReREBE R — FEEH@Q) 115,637 =
(a) Cash flow hedges: (@ IREREEHH:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following interest rate swap contracts designated as highly
effective hedging instruments in order to manage the
Group’s interest rate exposure in relation to the bank
borrowings on a floating interest rate basis.

The terms of the interest rate swap contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the respective designated
hedged items. The major terms of these contracts are as
follows:

31 December 2016
—E—R"E+=-HA=+—H
Notional amount

EZREH

Maturity
FEA

Swaps

=1

R|ERR AEBEE TIEE
ERBEARE I ANF i H
AR BUEEEASERZTZHN
KR ZRITEEMEH N XE

B o

MEREMEONIRRTIEERETE
PABC & & 1R 15 € ¥ M IR B AV IRK ©
ZEAHNMTEZHROT:

HK$3,600,000,000
3,600,000,0007% 7T

Approximate 4 years

#45F

As at 31 December 2016, fair value gains of
HK$115,637,000 (31 December 2015: Nil)
recognised in other

have been
comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity.
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24. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED 24, ZTRHEBMERBITER
2016 2015
—EB—RE —ZT—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET T8t
Restricted cash SRR HIR & 242,201 293,551

25.

The carrying amounts of restricted cash are denominated in
RMB. As at 31 December 2016, the weighted average effective
interest rate was 0.35% (2015: 0.35%) per annum.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of cash and bank deposits.

The restricted cash represents (i) performance deposits for
construction projects; and (ii) guarantee deposits for the benefit
of mortgage loan facilities granted by banks to the purchasers
of the Group’s properties.

CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, UNRESTRICTED

25.

SXRHEIVBEIAAREIER - RZZT—XF
+—A=+—"8 MEFHEERFINERAE
0.35% (—ZF—F4 : 0.35%) °

RBEHRRBEAAX ZESEERRR
ReRBIHERZEEE -

XREIRSEOREBEZBORES

RBEERTRITERAKEEYE 28
REBESREMBEHRZERTR

FERFRERBP/ITHENR

2016 2015
—®—Xx% <—T-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FBT

Cash at banks RITHES
Short-term deposits SR RER
Cash on hand FHERS
Cash and bank deposits Re RIRITFR

Short-term deposits will be mature in approximately 16 days
(2015: 9 days) from the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2016, the weighted average effective interest rate
was 1.07% (2015: 1.24%) per annum.

4,590,342 4,366,436
840,827 6,306,140
350 285

5,431,519 10,672,861

RHFEREREHRALFN6ACCE
—RFE R - R=_FT—XFE+_-A
=t+—H MEFHEBRFEMNERIOI%
(ZZ—FF :11.24%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

25. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, UNRESTRICTED 25. AEPRFIIEE RRITHER(E)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of cash and bank deposits are RERBOHERZEAEBEDUATIEE
denominated in the following currencies: HI R
2016 2015
—E-RE —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHE T
HK$ T 495,513 778,091
RMB AR 4,859,400 9,742,839
uss$ X7 35,344 129,885
MOP R P 41,262 22,046
5,431,519 10,672,861
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting RBEEHRABAASR ZEaZERR A
period is the carrying amount of cash and bank deposits. ReRBITHFERZEEE -
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. &K
2016 2015
—E—REF —hF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
% & &8 fi% £k k-]
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
T Bz THET T iz FHT
Authorised: VETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each EREBEIETT
=3 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREH:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each iﬁxﬁﬁo 17 7T
LR
Balance at beginning F ) 4 #h
of the year 3,344,279 334,428 3,340,511 334,051
Exercise of share options 1718 B8 IR 159 16 3,768 377
Balance at end of the year FIR B 3,344,438 334,444 3,344,279 334,428
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26.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Share options

On 29 May 2003, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “2003 Share Option Scheme”) under which the Directors, at
their discretion, invited any person who has contributed or will
contribute to the Group to subscribe for shares of the Company
at nominal consideration of HK$10 for each lot of shares granted.
The exercise price was determined by the Directors, and would
not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotations sheet of Main Board of the
Stock Exchange; (i) the closing price of the shares quoted on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of the share
of the Company. The 2003 Share Option Scheme had expired
on 28 May 2013. On 7 June 2013, the Company adopted a
new share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”)
with the same terms under the 2003 Share Option Scheme.
Notwithstanding the expiry of the 2003 Share Option Scheme,
the share options which had been granted during the life of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and in all
other respects its provisions shall remain in full force and effect.
No share options have been granted by the Company pursuant
to the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

26.

I (48)

Rz 12

RZZFEZF=FAA-_TNLE AREKEMH
—EREEFE(—ZEZT=FBR#E
)it BEEARBEREFEAEEK
HEeEUAKEBEERMZALTREAR
BARARN 2 BIE  SHELERE
ZREBARERIOET - THREMHES
EEE AT2ERTI=8Fz2R"E
(VX EREBARERMBZERET
B ()R EZRFRLAERERER R AE
EEARMRBIAERTARERAER
ZHWHE: RGi)AB KD ZEE —FZ
=FBREFEER T —=FRA-+
NBER  -RZTB—=F"AtR &R
ﬁﬁé%—ﬁ%%%ﬁé%?ﬂ(ﬁ — =%
BR8] RRE T T =FRAES
IR - %E%_gg_iﬁﬂ&%?riw‘
B ER TR =FRERETINAR
MBS EEE R ARBEETR
KA TFITE MEMBEBTENEXE
BEATRBIRER - ARBY ERE
R FERESEREBRE -
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26.

212

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

AEFZA=4—AULEE

26. fix & (&)

Share options (Continued) HE R (48)
(i)  Details of the share options granted are as follows: () BHHEBEREFEOT:
Date of grant/exercisable period Number of share
Category of participants of share options Exercise price options
SEEHR RHAY ERETEY TERE BkEYE
2016 2015 2016 2015
Z¥—RE —T—hE ZF—RE —T—1HF
HK$ HK$ ‘000 ‘000
#E T BT Fix TR
Directors 1 December 2008/1 December 2010 to 0.45 0.45 = —
30 November 2018 (Note 1)
B=x —TZEN\F+=A—B/
—E-ZTHE+-A—HE
—ZE-N\F+—-A=+HHE)
30 November 2012/30 November 2014 1.20 1.20 8,670 8,670
to 29 November 2022 (Note 2)
—T——-F+—-A=+8/
“E-mE+-—A=+HE
—ZE-_—Ft+t—-A=thAHF2)
8,670 8,670
Employees and others 1 December 2008/1 December 2010 0.45 0.45 4114 4,386
to 30 November 2018 (Note 1)
EEREAM —EZNE+=A—RB/
—E-TE+-_A—HZ
—E-NF+-A=+HHE
30 November 2012/30 November 2014 1.20 1.20 37,100 38,200
to 29 November 2022 (Note 2)
—T——%+—-RA=+8/
—E-mET-AZ+BE
ZE-__Ft+t—-A=tAAHF2)
41,214 42,586
49,884 51,256
Notes: B -

The options are exercisable upo

n fulfillment of certain performance

targets achieved by the Group and grantees. These options

are exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage of
options of each tranche exercisable within the exercisable periods

commencing from 1 December
1 December 2011 to 30 Nove

2010 to 30 November 2018, from
mber 2018 and from 1 December

2012 to 30 November 2018 are 30%, 30% and 40% respectively.

The fair value of share options
per share. All share options a
2016 and 2015.

Minmetals Land Limited Annual Repo

in the three tranches is HK$0.3355
re exercisable as at 31 December

rt 2016

BEREVEARAEERARANERS
FTERRBEEERFATAE - ZZEER
EAS=#IE- AT —ZF+=A
—BARE-T-N\F+—A=+HILH
M -BZZ2——F+-A—HRBE=Z
—N\Ft+—A=t+HIHHARE=F—
—F+-_A—BRE-_FT-—N\F+—A8
=tTHILTERERATEZSIE
EiEREE DD B A30% - 30% &
40% - Z=HERECERAALES
03355 L - FTEBRETIR=-Z
—RNEERZE—AHAF+=-A=1+—H1T
ﬁ °



26. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Share options (Continued)
(i) Details of the share options granted are as follows:

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(2) The options are exercisable upon fulfillment of certain performance
targets achieved by the Group and grantees. These options
are exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage
of options of each tranche exercisable within the exercisable
periods commencing from 30 November 2014 to 29 November
2022, from 30 November 2015 to 29 November 2022 and 30
November 2016 to 29 November 2022 are 30%, 30% and 40%
respectively. The fair values of share options in the three tranches
are HK$0.6538, HK$0.6774 and HK$0.6912 per share respectively.
All share options are exercisable as at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: 28,122,000).

(i)  Movements in the above share options are as follows:

26. Hx*(ﬂﬁ
MBI HE(48)
REBREFEOT (&)

(i)

(ii)

fieE ()

)

BRENVERAEEREARAEBRSE
FRABBEBRAATITE © ILEHEARE
Ao =#IfE:- A= —mWF+—A=
+Eti_7__¢+fﬂ—+n5¢
W BT —AFt+—A=tARLZE
:2::¢+7H ThABRIEHREE
T AEt+—A=fRAEE=T=-Z
F+—AZ+ABILITE R ARITE
ZEHERESSAD LRI R30%
30%K40% ° Z=—HEREZERDA
8% Bl /0.65387% 7T+ 0.67743% 7t &
0.69128JL - R=ZFT—XRNF+=_A=+
—B - FEERESAFITECS—
AE+=A=+—H:28,122,00013) °

I 2 BT
2016 2015
—®-xE =T-IF
Number of Number of

share options share options

ikENE BRESE

‘000 000

T % T 1%

At beginning of the year F 7)) 51,256 59,294
Forfeited ERxA (1,213) (4,270)
Exercised 21T (159) (3,768)
At end of the year F R 49,884 51,256

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 159,000
(2015: 3,768,000) share options were exercised and
the weighted average share price was HK$0.96 (2015:
HK$1.11). The net share-based payment expense reversed
for the year ended 31 December 2016 due to employee
resignation amounted to HK$2,050,000 (2015: share-
based payment expense recognised of HK$5,094,000).

ARWMEARAT —T—ANEER |

B

EZT—R"FTZA=F+—HILHF
& B171£159,0000% (—F —FF :
3,768,000% ) & Mk #& - H 0 #& F 15
Hxﬁftzf,o 96T (ZE—HF 1115
cREE_E—RNFt+-_A=T

—BIEFEREE BRI E

2,050,000 L (ZE—FF : R K
3 £+ 2K B 25,094,000 7T) °
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e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 # %= —=ZF —

27. RESERVES

AEFZA=4—AULEE

27. &

Employee
Capital  share-based Investments Cash flow
Share Contributed redemption compensation revaluation hedging Revaluation Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Total
EXEE REERHE BREEHE BRER
RipEE HHERR Ghth BEEWMRGEE i HibbE  EEHE RMHE ERME KD e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET TR FET TR Tz Thx TET FEx FExT FEx TR
(note (a) (note (b)) (note (c))
(i 3% (a)) (B 5 (b)) (Kt 5 ()
Balance as at 1 January 2015 RZZE-RE—-A—-H
ZE® 4,268,629 515,336 769 32,440 (46,094) — 1,314 31,640 582,080 2,282,618 7,668,732
Issue of shares BIIRG 1,319 — — — — — — — — — 1,319
Employee share option benefits (& 8 B R 12 7 — — — 5,094 - — — — — — 5,094
Fair value gain of financial assets & 18 H it 2 B %
at fair value through other BROREIHEZ
comprehensive income HREEMEL L
DR ERE = = = = 99,102 = = = — — 99,102
Currency translation adjustments [ 5 3% — — — — — — — —  (979,448) —  (979,448)
2014 final dividend paid YHZT-WF
RER S — — — — — — — — — (50,162) (50,162)
Profit for the year FEEF — — - — — — — — 278,156 278,156
Balance as at 31 December 2015 Z-RF+=AR
=+-Bz#&H 4,269,948 515,336 769 37,534 53,008 = 1,314 31,640 (397,368) 2,510,612 7,022,793
Issue of shares BIRG 56 — — — — — — — — — 56
Reversal of employee share option {E 8 ¥ iR 212 %l & |
benefits — — = (2,050) — — — — — = (2,050)
Fair value loss of financial assets & H ft 2 B
at fair value through other BARBEFEZ
comprehensive income MBEERELL
RAEBR = — — — (129,063 — — — —  (129,063)
Gain on revaluation of owner- BRNEHEERE
occupied properties upon mEzEfKE
transfer to investment properties — — — — — — 3,045 — — — 3,045
Fair value gain on hedging RemE R
instruments in cash flow hedges T & 224 EKRZF — — — — — 115,637 — — — — 115,637
Acquisition of non-controlling g1 FNgl:i|
interest of subsidiaries FHE R & — — — — - — —  (343,088) — (343,088
Currency translation adjustments [ 5 3§ % — — — — — = = — (864,822 — (864,822
2015 final dividend paid XHZFE-1F
RER R — — — — — — — — —  (66,886) (66,886)
Profit for the year F 8 — — — — — — — — — 512,058 512,058
Balance as at 31 December 2016 W=-T—<F+=A
=+-Bz&H 4,270,004 515,336 769 35,484 (76,055) 115,637 4,359 (311,448) (1,262,190) 2,955,784 6,247,680

[\
N
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27. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Contributed surplus mainly represents the excess of the fair value of shares
in Minmetals Land Investments Limited acquired by the Company over the
nominal value of the new shares of the Company issued pursuant to the

share exchange agreement.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i)
it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities, issued share capital and share premium

account.

Other reserve represents the differences between the amount by which
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of consideration
paid or received when the Group acquired or disposed of partial interests

in existing subsidiaries.

During 2016, the Group completed acquisitions of additional interests
of two non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, at cash
considerations of approximately RMB2,327,589,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,618,571,000). The carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests on the dates of acquisitions are approximately
HK$2,275,483,000. As a result, the Group recognised a decrease in equity
attributable to equity holders of approximately HK$343,088,000.

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in the PRC are required to appropriate a portion
of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory
reserves, at rates determined by their respective boards of directors.
The appropriation as at 31 December 2016, amounting to approximately
HK$450,045,000 (2015: HK$312,885,000), was included in retained
earnings at 31 December 2016.

27. #E(E)

B 2

(@)

(b)

ABMEBRAT —T—AEEH |

B H R EEEARRARIEMinmetals Land
Investments Limited % 13 < 2 7t B #8 H AR &)
BERORXBBAEBITHROZRHEEZ

REBFREARE  BRBHKTHRDIK T K
R EBETIERTARR TS KR 3
BEHDIKEHBE : ()HAA B REHE
HA KB REINEHEE A RE
BEZUEZREESEMENEARE 2%
TRAR RO EERZ &M -

HttEEEFFERERBESHEALAEE K
BRHERAHBRARANSSEERE Mk
BEROKENARBEZRNER -

REZZ—RERN  AEEZKKEARARAIRR
F2BWBARZEINGE  HEREDBA
R %2,327,589,0007T (48 & 1 492,618,571,000
BL) RKERE  FREEERERZ
BR T {B %) /52,275,483,00058 7T » A It » &N &
ERAREEEABGZEZABERDD
343,088,0005% 7T °

FEBOARE  ARRAIRREKLREEZ
B ARZAGID BREE RN EREEF
BEBR)BALZTHE LEXHEARZE
EEEE R-ZT—R"E+=-A=+—8"
A BB R 4 /5450,045,00008 7T (=T — F4F ¢
312,885,000 ) EBEE T —~F+=
A=+—AMRBRBFIZA -

X
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

28. BORROWINGS 28. &
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Non-current ERB
Bank borrowings, secured (a) RITER - BEFQ) 8,618,418 5,435,772
Guaranteed bonds, unsecured (b) ERES @ EEE (D) 2,696,441 2,690,678
11,314,859 8,126,450
Current Vi)
Bank borrowings, secured (a) RITIER - BEE@Q) 75,975 4,407,817
Loan from a fellow subsidiary, unsecured —XARWMBARIZEX
(Note 36(b)) 2 98 (FF 5E36(b)) 223,589 —
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a ~—FXHWBAF Z2—%
subsidiary, unsecured (Note 36(b)) IR R RE R - EIKHE
(M 3E36(b)) — 44,221
299,564 4,452,038
11,614,423 12,578,488

(a)

Banking facilities

The Group’'s aggregate banking facilities, including
December 2016
amounted to approximately HK$12,240,570,000
(2015: HK$10,253,368,000), of which approximately
HK$3,464,595,000 (2015: HK$336,944,000) was
unutilised. As at 31 December 2016, the collaterals for the
banking facilities are as follows:

bank borrowings, as at 31

(i) 100% equity interest in a subsidiary; and

(i)  Corporate guarantees given by the Company.

As at 31 December 2016,
development have been pledged for the relevant banking
facilities granted to the group (2015: HK$1,388,701,000).

no properties under
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(a)

RITRLE
Ro-ZE—RE+=-A=+—R8 &&
BoR1TREBBBRERITENR
%9 512,240,570,000/8 T (ZE— A
4 :10,253,368,000/870) + EFR KRB
AR E #)753,464,595,0008 L (=
— A4 : 336,944,000/ 7T) c R &
—A"NF+-A=1+—8 A&EEHIE
HERRGRITHEERFARCEE
PUNNE

() — B R 2100% 0 1
iR

(i) ARBFAERBER -

R-E—XRNE+=-A=+—H,88
HEREPYEELEREEITRERKER
(== —F4F :1,388,701,0007 7T) ©



28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Guaranteed bonds

On 26 April 2013, the Group issued the Guaranteed
Bonds (“Guaranteed Bonds”) with a principal amount of
US$225,000,000 and US$125,000,000 bearing interest
at the coupon rate of 5.50% and 6.50%, per annum
respectively, which will be matured on 26 April 2018 and
26 April 2023 respectively. The Guaranteed Bonds were
guaranteed by the Company and have the benefit of a
keep well deed from China Minmetals Corporation, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. Upon
the occurrence of a change of control triggering event,
the bondholders will have the right, at the bondholders’
option, to require the Group to redeem all, but not some
only, of the outstanding Guaranteed Bonds at 101% of
their principal amounts, together with accrued interest. If
the Group would be obliged to pay additional tax amounts
in respect of Guaranteed Bonds as a result of any change
in, or amendment to, specified tax laws or regulations,
all outstanding Guaranteed Bonds may be redeemed at
the Group’s option, in whole but not in part, at their
principal amounts together with interest accrued up to but
excluding the redemption date.

The Group may at its option redeem the Guaranteed Bonds
at any time, in whole but not in part, at a Make Whole
Price as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
excluding), the redemption date.

“Make Whole Price” means with
Guaranteed Bonds at any redemption date, the greater

respect to the

of (1) the present value of the principal amount of the
Guaranteed Bond, plus all required remaining scheduled
interest payments due on such Guaranteed Bond from
the optional redemption date to the maturity date (but
excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the option
redemption date), computed using a discount rate, which
the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent
yield in maturity of the comparable treasury issue, plus
0.50 per cent., and (2) the principal amount of such
Guaranteed Bonds.

28. {BF(4E)

(b)

LB EERAR

BRESH
RZE—=ZFWA=-+"B &
BETmEREF(ERESD:
& % 5 5l £225,000,0003% T &
125,000,000 7T + & E F | & 5 3
A5.50% M6.50% Ut HLE H D
FR—E—NFONA -+ BE-F
—ZEMA-+ BRI - BERES
TTEARAER X EBEBRAAF
BREBBRETRAREEE QR R
HHORBRERZE - RARFEE
THIEZ BB EGR B
EAERRHEEEZRNASEE
Bl 2E(MIEBD)RKEENERE
H2101% A EREEFE o W&
BFEMBERSERE B IS -
BYRAEEARERES S
I 2H(TEMIFELD) REER
WERESFAIEAEE ZEEYE
Bl EEOSEALASERAEEZET
BIEEE AR 25 F 8 -

AEBABTEEEEMNEREAE
EmA=ED  UEREREDE
*RiEZ% - kB (ETEHE)EL B HH
At ERET R ARNEOFE(WA) -

[BREERIZERBREBESFNEME
EIHBAMNUATERENREESFD
AE&EBE BN ELEHBENERAR
HEINHAMERTHE(BTEE
HEEL AR ESRAGFRE)
FEHAMNMREAEHNERTER
HEFFFESENERNE L
BHZ0S0RQQEREFNLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

28.

218

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. B (4E)

(b) Guaranteed bonds (Continued)
Early redemption options are regarded as embedded
derivatives not closely related to the host debt instrument.
The Directors consider that the fair value of the above early
redemption options is insignificant on initial recognition
and as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The effective interest rates of the guaranteed bonds at
the end of the reporting period was 5.89% and 6.73%
for US$225,000,000 and US$125,000,000 respectively as
at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

(c) The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

(b) HREREHE)
R EEENR AREEETAY
EHYAENRARTAELA - 8
£RALRIREEERN LR
BRA-E—AER-F—HF=
A=+—BWARELTEX

RZE—RE+=-A=+—HERZ=
TE-—AFE+_A=+—8 ERE
#:225,000,000% 7t 125,000,000
ETHERMNESD 5 R5.89% &
6.73% °

() XEBEBRINBBERAT

2016 2015
—E—RE Z—T—A8F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Bank borrowings HRATE K

Within one year —&R 75,975 4,407,817

In more than one year but no more than —FEWE
two years 4,166,395 802,505

In more than two years but not exceeding H -—ZFERF

five years 4,452,023 4,633,267
8,694,393 9,843,589
Guaranteed bonds EIRE
In more than one year but no more than —FEMEF
two years 1,736,571 —
In the second to fifth year E_EZERTF — 1,732,778
In the sixth to tenth year EREFTF 959,870 957,900
2,696,441 2,690,678
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —ZXARMEAR ZERK
Within one year —&R 223,589 —
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a — XK i B A a2 — & JEHE %
subsidiary IR 2 B
Within one year —F R — 44,221
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28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(d) Bank borrowings, loans from a fellow subsidiary and a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of totaling
HK$8,917,982,000 (2015: HK$9,887,810,000) are on a
floating interest rate basis. The effective interest rates at
the end of the reporting period were as follows:

1E|a=)k(m§
(d) 8,917,982,000% (= T — H &:
9,887,810,0007% 7T) Z SRIT1E 5K
%H%WEQTZE%&—%W%
RElZ—BFERBRRE 2ERIEZ
A ERTE - RIEHAKBZER
F =T

2016 2015
—T-RE —E—hEF
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT AR BT AR
Non-current TR B
Bank borrowings RITE R 3.22% — 3.09% 5.09%
Current it &
Bank borrowings R AT 18 3K — 4.62% 2.72% 4.73%
Loan from a fellow —XERWE AR
subsidiary ZERK = 4.79% — —
Loan from a non-controling —XRWEBAR Z—
shareholder of a BIFERBREZ
subsidiary B3 = = — 5.23%

(e) The fair values of borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts. The fair values are determined based on
discounted cash flows.

(e) BRZAAEEREEEmERS - A
AREDNZERRVETEET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. fER(4E)
(f) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are REBERZEEEIATIEK
denominated in the following currencies: P Bk
2016 2015
—E—-RE _—_T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# T FBT
HK$ 7T 8,618,418 9,027,165
RMB AR 299,564 860,645
Us$ =P 2,696,441 2,690,678
11,614,423 12,578,488
29. DEFERRED TAX 29, IBEHIA
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#IT T T
Deferred tax assets IR AE 7 18 & = 560,757 395,354
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE (131,080) (96,126)
429,677 299,228

220 Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2016




29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

29.

3 3E B I (48)

FRARCEHBAEERABENESHIOT

Deferred tax assets BEHRIEEE
2016 2015
—T-R"E _"T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEX FAET
Tax losses 1t 18 /&5 18
At beginning of the year F 7)) 1,040 42,608
Exchange differences &5 =% (66) (834)
Recognised in the profit or loss 18 = 7 R — (40,734)
At end of the year FR 974 1,040
Temporary difference on cost recognition B 7S T 58 B B B = R
At beginning of the year F 7)) 394,314 184,086
Exchange differences & 5 =% (33,491) (20,091)
Recognised in the profit or loss 18 &5 1 R 198,960 230,319
At end of the year F R 559,783 394,314
AWMEGRAR —T-REFH | 22



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. BIEHIE(E)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE
2016 2015
—¥-R"E _"T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Fair value gain A EK=E
At beginning of the year F 1) 30,564 81,200
Exchange differences & & =% (13,772) (13,467)
Recognised in the profit or loss REZER (11,475) (37,169)
At end of the year F R 5,317 30,564
Accelerated tax depreciation MEB BT E
At beginning of the year F 7)) 17,863 15,917
Recognised in the profit or loss 18 &= TR 827 1,946
At end of the year FR 18,690 17,863
Undistributed retained earnings A BE AR B & R
At beginning of the year F 7)) 47,699 23,945
Recognised in the profit or loss RIEZER 59,374 23,754
At end of the year F 107,073 47,699

NS
\S]

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$10,314,000 (2015: HK$117,445,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary difference
associated with undistributed retained earnings of certain
subsidiaries, as the Directors currently intend not to distribute

the retained earnings outside the PRC in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through
future taxable profits is probable. Due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams, as at 31 December 2016, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$682,893,000 (2015: HK$593,477,000), which can be carried
forward against future taxable income and have no expiry
date, and unrecognised tax losses in the PRC of approximately
HK$389,530,000 (2015: HK$495,294,000) which will expire at
various dates up to and including 2021.
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IE T 7 E 8 1510,314,0008 T (—Z T —H
£ 117,445,000 7T) W B gt & THE A
AlZADRRBABANEAOEREEZ/EL
R THEE R EE RN AR KRR
TR B F 5k B RS -

MAEENEEERRCEER EEE
DUNEBH BN ZRETEEBARK
ERMEMNERZBERRR - AR XK
FOE R AA BB MR ZF —
NETZA=+—H AEBREFEA
HEEAEKERRERBT KA 2 KER
i 7% &5 18 4 5682,893,000% (= &
— F % : 593,477,000 jT)° B I & |
HE MEFPBEEE 2 RABRNBE
8 #) /389,530,000 (= T — A F:
495,294,000 70) - REE=ZZT=_—F (&
FBZE)IE2 T RBEARH -



30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. ESRHEMEMNIIE

2016 2015

ZE—-RE —"ZT—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#T FHET

Trade, bills and contract payables (b) B5 B NMEYENFRIHEAD) 715,232 528,240

Retention payables ERRES 40,214 25,310

Accruals and other payables FE 5T B A K& H M FE < 5k 18 3,617,548 3,266,813

Rental deposits received EWEEZE 16,758 19,779
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders & 1~ B /B 2 &) FF 22 % P& B2 5k 7B

of subsidiaries (Note 36(b)) (M 7£36(b)) 172,600 154,822

Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary (Note 36(b)) & — 5 [7 % Ff & A 7] ;X I&

(Bt 5236(b)) 2,124,419 —

Amounts due to associates (Note 36(b)) & < Bt = R /) 3038 (B 5E36(b)) 1,066,438 1,235,113

7,753,209 5,230,077
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 30. E5 R HMFEMARIE(E)
(@ The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are @ BISRHEMENKEZETETMN
denominated in the following currencies: T3 B 5 B
2016 2015
—E—RE Z—T—A8F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
HK$ BT 184,550 120,733
RMB AR 7,472,361 4,938,643
us$ e 29,278 29,278
MOP R 67,020 141,423
7,753,209 5,230,077
(b)  The aging analysis of trade, bills and contract payables of by AEEES FZFBREHENKIE
the Group based on invoice date is as follows: EREZHBMZERESTAOT
2016 2015
—E¥-R"E _"—ZT—IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
0 to 90 days 0£90H 357,298 226,444
91 to 180 days 91£180H 49,361 40,961
181 days to 1 year 181BE— & 104,442 44,360
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 50,817 51,729
Over 2 years LA 153,314 164,746
715,232 528,240
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31.

32.

DEFERRED REVENUE 31, IBEUW A

2016 2015
—E—REFE —ET—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FAETT
Receipt in advance from property sales V¥ E B FIE 12,407,608 9,687,031
Government grants T & B 12,015 18,386
12,419,623 9,705,417

PENSION OBLIGATIONS 32. BhE&EHE

The Group participates in a defined contribution pension scheme
and a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for the eligible
employees in Hong Kong. Before 1 December 2000, a defined
contribution pension scheme was provided to certain eligible
employees employed by the Group. The Group ceased the
contributions since 1 December 2000, upon introduction of the
MPF scheme.

Under the MPF scheme, the Company and each of the Hong
Kong subsidiaries of the Company make monthly contributions
to the MPF at 5% of the employees’ cash income as defined
under the MPF legislation. Contributions by both the Company/
Hong Kong subsidiaries and their employees are subject to a
maximum of HK$1,500 per month per employee and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. The Group’s contributions to the
pension scheme and MPF scheme are expensed as incurred.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its
employees in the PRC as determined by the local government.
The Group is required to contribute to the plan at a rate ranging
from 7% to 12% of the basic salary of the PRC employees
in addition to contributions by employees at a rate ranging
from 7% to 12% of the basic salary as specified by the local
government, and the Group has no further obligations for the
actual payment of the pensions or post-retirement benefits

beyond the annual contributions made.

AEBREREAEREERZSEERHER
BRAREFERREEAES (RES DA
Z -—TTTFF+-_A—HZA ' A&EH
RERAZETAERERRHE-BAER
HIFEAREETE - R ERBESF SR
AEBE_TETTEFE+_A—HEERFL
BRAMHEN -

REBEBESHE > ARRRARAEEFE
MEBARASARREERERERIANE
BZREBAZSRIEHBE S HK - K
RA/BENBRARAREEE 2FAHK
FRAF/FHLEELS008 T BiBILE
MeBIIMIRBEERMEE - A&EBZRIK
Tt R EEFEERNELRIIK

REBETFEZERATE AKERETERE
BREM BT R ERBZREBRKEEIE
HER - BREESRBH AT BN R ERE
EXFLERTI%EN%IN AEERR
FEEEB Z7%E12%E A H & MZaT 2
R RREEFHFI AEELEE
N ERERSIRAKRBHNZEME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33. Z SR &R ERM =
FLOWS

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash (used in)/generated BRERAG A EEEES (FTE) FTELR

from operations: ®ZHER:
2016 2015
—F—RE —EZ—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FAT
Profit before tax B 15 A& A 1,997,492 1,173,401
Interest income M B A (241,362) (162,809)
Interest expense B X H 55,669 57,511
Depreciation T E 7,322 9,932
Fair value changes on investment properties KREMERNREEF (123,977) (195,563)
(Reversal of share option benefits)/share option (¥ [@ B i% # 12 )
benefits i A #E 12 A (2,050) 5,094
Provision for impairment of trade and other B 5 & H e YR IE R (E
receivables B 1,816 24,338
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of FEREEER), EE
inventories (2,921) 71,827
Share of results of associates DIEEE AR R A 12,135 (16,442)
Operating profit before working capital changes & iE & & & &) 5 2 &£ & & 7 1,704,124 967,289
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERE L () 898,016 (1,450,611)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayment, trade and AR - B 5 Kk E s U K
other receivables BOE M) R (6,839,776) 704,610
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from EWEE 2 AN ITRRIERD
customers for contract work (3% 1n) 58,275 (88,026)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 & H b FE T 5RIEE N 711,761 226,820
Increase in deferred revenue IR FE U 7= 18 0 3,329,407 6,072,624
Decrease in cash and bank deposits, restricted =R &I £ & R 1717 7 B4 32,743 166,263
Exchange adjustments PE X 38 & (478,980) (94,238)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EEEKFR),/ MEARS (584,430) 6,504,731
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34.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES
As at 31
mortgage facilities granted to certain purchasers of the
Group's properties amounted to HK$13,688,767,000 (2015:
HK$7,742,351,000).
earlier of (i) the issuance of the property ownership certificate

December 2016, guarantees given to banks for

Such guarantees will terminate upon the

which will generally be available within one year after the
purchasers take the possession of the relevant properties; or (ii)
the repayment of mortgage loans by the purchasers. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantees, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with
accrued interest owed by the defaulted purchasers to the
banks and the Group is entitled to take possession of the
related properties upon default in mortgage payments by such
purchasers. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to
retain the property sales proceeds previously received from such
purchasers and sell the property to recover any amounts paid by
the Group to the banks. Therefore, after taking into account the
creditworthiness of the purchasers, the Directors consider that
no provision is required in the consolidated financial statements
for the guarantees.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts at initial recognition and subsequently at
the end of each reporting period is not significant as the default
rate is low.

34.

B %5 18 R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

35. COMMITMENTS 35. HKiE
(@ The Group had capital commitments as follows: @ AEEBERALEWNT:
2016 2015
ZE—RE —T—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Contracted but not provided for EETA B RE B
Expenditure in respect of acquisition of land 78 B8 & b {8 A AE U & 2
use rights i 2 924,492 90,076
Expenditure in respect of properties under HAEZERE R ER X
development 1,419,555 3,025,248
2,344,047 3,115,324
(b)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments by AEEHRBRBEBEENAZE 2T AHEE
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office EEHERNARREMzHERAEN
premises as follows: TRARFEINT
2016 2015
Z“E—-RE _—"T—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Not later than one year —F R 24,676 24,027
Later than one year but not later than —FRERFA
five years 35,207 41,268
Later than five years hE# 1,735 —
61,618 65,295
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35.

36.

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. & (4E)

(00 The Group leases out investment properties under © AEERBE—ROVPTRBP—ZE==4F
operating leases which generally run for initial periods of LEBHEREBHEEYZE - AW
one to three years. None of the leases includes contingent mEERENAES -
rentals.

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts REBRETAHEEERHER R
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: KW ZEHSEBOAT
2016 2015
“E—-RE _—T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Not later than one year —FR 63,274 54,658
Later than one year but not later than —FRERFRN
five years 61,201 72,062
124,475 126,720
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. FABtH X5

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
China Minmetals Corporation (“China Minmetals”), which is
controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions
with the parent company and its subsidiaries which have
been disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group also conducts businesses with entities
directly or indirectly owned or controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the PRC government (“government-
related entities”) in the ordinary course of business. The Directors
consider those entities other than the China Minmetals and its
subsidiaries are independent third parties as far as the Group's
business transactions with them are concerned. Apart from the
transactions in below (a), the Group also conducts business
with other government-related entities. In establishing its pricing
strategies and approval process for transactions with other
government related entities, the Group does not differentiate
whether the counter-party is a government-related entity or not.
The Group is of the opinion that it has provided, in the best of
its knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure of related
party transactions in the consolidated financial statements.

AEEASGTRTEABREE QR (FE
g D(Z AR AP EBFES)ET—K
HEBRARMEKED - BRiR G MR
REMMEMBBENEGRA R ENEBER
AETHNR S  ARETRRIER X558
RPEPBERFERKEZEES SIEH
AREHXZEAFZENER(HHAME
AR DETEHER -EFRR - BLA
SHEZZERBETNEBRSME © &%
FERB(KRTEABBNMENBARINAR

BUYE=T - R TX@ZXHH  A&E
MEEMBBRFHEBERETERS AR

R B AANCER Y XS E
BERELBRNLES WY HREAK
FHERG % - ARERA  BEFEM
B R &R A B & PO 9t BB 5 2 5 1F
R EE B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. FABtAXSZ(E)

The Group has entered into various transactions,

including $%l€%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ1ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%

sales, purchases, borrowings and other operating expenses with FIVZERG(BIEHEE B K
other government-related entities during the year in which the HMhEEBH) MEFR 7,% T E ¥ A
Directors are of the opinion that it is impracticable to ascertain E’J%’fﬂ&EZI’\%% Y /A B EL i BT AR 3
the identity of the counterparties and accordingly whether the ETDTYER -
counterparties are government-related entities.
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRERE B mREMM T EEIN - K
statements, the Group had the following material transactions SEHERABARAEBEEER —REZF
and balances with related parties, which were carried out in the EITZERRGRERIT :
ordinary and normal course of business of the Group:
(a) Transactions with related parties (a BB A ZRXS
2016 2015
—E—RF —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAET
Construction costs to fellow subsidiaries for 4 TR XMW B R A B =it
real estate development projects (note (i) EZEREIEE ZEEKAN
(B 5 (Gi)) 121,123 344,623
Construction costs to a non-controlling LT —XMBAR 2 —HAIE
shareholder of a subsidiary for a real estate 5 % % 32 A B B 1 £ 3 B
development project (note (ii)) T8 B 2 2 28 A (B 5 Gi)) 179,007 81,529
Rental expense to a fellow subsidiary BT —RARXWEBAF 2
(note (iii)) & 32 (Kt £ (i) 16,505 18,070
Rental and management fee income from AR X E A7 KEE: &
fellow subsidiaries (note (iii) LR ONCIEI) 6,236 5,593
Management fee income from an W B — %\EFEH‘ [ @/NCIDNE 5
intermediate holding company and ultimate &R AR 2 BB E W A
holding company (note (iv)) (Bt 3£ Gv) 27,579 —
Loan interest expense to a fellow subsidiary A — KB X B Q72
(note (v)) BB (M 5 (v) 341 —
Loan interest expense to a non-controlling #A F —XWE R Al z— &3k
shareholder of a subsidiary (note (vii)) ERRR 2 EHFE X H
(B 5E (vii)) 579 5,626
Loan interest income from a non-controlling WH— R B AT 2 — &Ik
shareholder of a subsidiary (note (viii)) R IR R 2 B R B A
(B 3 (viii)) — 592
Loan interest income from a non-controlling WH— KB AR Z2— R Ik
shareholder of a subsidiary (note (x)) R R 2 B35 F B A
(Kt 5 (x)) 64,860 13,617
Interest income from a fellow subsidiary WE— KR R M8 A a2 H
(note (xii)) A (B 2 (xii)) 1,601 2,500

99
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

. FAEBEH R

25 (48)

Balances with related parties (b) EREEEE A 24 6R
2016 2015
—E—RF —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Specialised construction costs payable to a BN —RERXWBEARZE
fellow subsidiary (note (i) EScE 3N EEA()) 81,553 84,488
Contract payable to fellow subsidiaries for real f& {5 [F %Ki B 2 &l 2 & 1 &
estate development projects (note (ii)) BRIEEAHNE
(B & Gii) 42,983 61,359
Contract payable to a non-controlling REMEREEAREMN—X
shareholder of a subsidiary for a real estate BB A 7] 2 — & IFE 2 B I&
development project (note (ii)) B2 A % E (M EEG) — 339,331
Management fee receivable from an e —KJERE R DR K&
intermediate holding company and ultimate & ER AR 2 EREE
holding company (note (iv)) (B 3£ Giv) 27,579 —
Loan from a fellow subsidiary (note (v)) BA—RRAZEZKBRRAZE
(B &£ (V) 223,589 —
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary (note (vi)) F&ft— 5 @ & ki B A 7 7 &
(B 5 (vi)) 2,124,419 —
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder of — KK B A&l 2z — & IEHERK
a subsidiary (note (vii) I& 3R 2 & R (B 5 (vii)) = 44,221
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders & 1< Bt /& /A &) JF % A% A% 3R 2
of subsidiaries (note (ix)) FIE (B 7E(ix) 172,600 154,822
Amounts due to associates (note (ix)) JE -1 Bk & R Bl 2 5RIE
(B 3£ (ix)) 1,066,438 1,235,113
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder of EXF—FKHWBE ARG 2—%
a subsidiary (note (x)) FE 4% A% AR =R (Bt 7 (x)) 2,465,064 1,052,757
Amount due from an associate (note (xi)) & U — KB 2 R B FRIE
(B &3 (i) 88,062 —
Fixed deposits placed in a fellow subsidiary TER —ZXEBEEKE QA Z
(note (xii)) E B 77 70 (B 5 (i) — 2,143,710
Current deposits placed in a fellow subsidiary FE R —KREZH B AR Z
(note (xiii) V& B 77 2B = (xiii)) 1,574,445 1,393
Notes: P & -
(i) Specialised construction costs to a fellow subsidiary of the () BRTIARR—RAZMBARZEE
Company were based on terms mutually agreed by both parties. §§?$B§%§E%EWEZ1'§ b
(ii) Construction costs to fellow subsidiaries and a non-controlling (i) HEMERREABS TR RKE AR

shareholder of a subsidiary for real estate development projects

were based on terms mutually agreed by both parties.

IBWEERAR —F

AR —RMERR 2 —BIFERABR
ZREERAT IR E T KR E Z &K
BE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Balances with related parties (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

Rental and management fee income/expense received or receivable
from/paid or payable to fellow subsidiaries of the Company were
based on the terms in the agreements entered into between the
parties involved. The operating lease commitments with fellow
subsidiaries has been included in Note 35(b) and (c).

Management fee income and receivable from an intermediate
holding company and ultimate holding company were based on
the terms in the agreements entered into between the parties
involved.

The loan from a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, bearing interest at
110% of the benchmark interest rate for a one year loan quoted
by the People’s Bank of China per annum and repayable within
one year.

The amount due to a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand.

The short-term loan from a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary was unsecured, bearing interest at 110% of the
benchmark interest rate for a one to three year loan quoted by
the People’s Bank of China per annum and repayable on demand
and was fully settled in 2016.

The loan to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, bearing interest at 6% per annum and repayable on
demand, and was fully settled in 2015.

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and associates are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

The loans to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, bearing interest at the benchmark interest rate for a
one to three year loan quoted by the People’s Bank of China per
annum and repayable on demand.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.

The fixed deposits placed in a fellow subsidiary was matured in
approximately 5 days from 31 December 2015 and the interest
rate was 1.35% per annum.

The interest rate of the current deposits placed in a fellow
subsidiary was 0.3% per annum.
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. BB X H(8)
BRI B S 2 & 8% (48)

(b)

o &E

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. FAEt A RS (E)

(c) Key management compensation c) EEEBASZHM

2016 2015

—E-RE —ZT—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH& T

Salaries and short-term employee benefits ¥ % & %5 Hi (&8 B 48 7 12,651 12,114
Pension costs — defined contribution plans iEK& Ak AN — & 58 5%

Bl 318 333

Share option benefits B X #E 43 7 197 340

13,166 12,787
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HMRM

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—F—NF+ A=+ —HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 37. XA TSI ZHBER A REH#HRE
OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) FATIZHMBHRAR
2016 2015
—F—RE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#EIT FABT
ASSETS =83
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZEKE 918,164 695,288
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i SN 14,982,219 15,313,270
Other receivables H & WX 5B 32,917 5,994
Cash and bank deposits, unrestricted TNZREIRE RBITF K 383,957 552,442

15,399,093 15,871,706

Total assets BEHESA 16,317,257 16,566,994
EQUITY i
Share capital [N 334,444 334,428
Reserves & 4,914,373 5,068,915
Total Equity EREHE 5,248,817 5,403,343
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities HENBE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B B A A 8 11,019,887 11,131,176
Accruals and other payables & 5T /I8 F B At fE 1~ 50 IE 48,553 32,475
Total liabilities BEEE 11,068,440 11,163,651
Total equity and liabilities ExkBEHEE 16,317,257 16,566,994
Net current assets REEEFE 4,330,653 4,708,055
Total assets less current liabilities BESBEBREBER 5,248,817 5,403,343
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 37.

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b)

Statement of reserves of the Company

KABZHBERARFERER

(%)

(b) AABZHERE

Employee
Capital share-based

Share Contributed redemption compensation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
EXEE REERHA
P& 153 it 18 BHAER fh EREERKE RIEBRA EL k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(note 27(a))
(P 3E27(a))
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE—RF
—A—Bz#&EH 4,268,629 491,773 769 32,440 321,917 5,115,528
Issue of shares BETRD 1,319 — — — — 1,319
Employee share option benefits & & 8 i% 1 13 7| — — — 5,094 — 5,094
2014 final dividend paid XN =T —WFERHA
% & = = = = (50,162) (50,162)
Loss for the year FAREIE — — — — (2,864) (2,864)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R—ZT—H&+_-A
=+ —HZ#&EH 4,269,948 491,773 769 37,534 268,891 5,068,915
Issue of shares BTG 56 — — — — 56
Reversal of employee share & B B8 % 4 12 F & 2]
option benefits — — — (2,050) — (2,050)
2015 final dividend paid TN =T —RFERH
& & = = = = (66,886) (66,886)
Loss for the year FAREIE — — — — (85,662) (85,662)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R_—ZF—/NF+= A
=+t —HZz#&EH 4,270,004 491,773 769 35,484 116,343 4,914,373
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Glossary of

Terms
i

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:
EAFRAN  BXESEMEN  THRABEEUTRE:

“2003 Share Option Scheme”
T =FEREE]

“2013 Share Option Scheme”
[—ZE—=FBRETS]

“23rd Metallurgical”
[AE_—+=)a]

"AGM"
ERBFRE]

“Album Enterprises”

(2 Bdx]

"ASP"
[FH&E]

“Beijing Vanke”
[t &%

“Beijing Wanhu”
M6 5 & ]

“Board”

EFg]

“Boluo Bihua”
[BEAR)

“Bye-laws”

RAVNCIE-R =

“CG Code”
[tEEARTAH

“China” or “PRC”
e B |

“China Minmetals”

[ B8 T %

236 Minmetals Land Limited

the share option scheme of Minmetals Land Limited adopted on 29 May 2003
IRMEGRARNR-_ZEZT=FAA -+t NBERNZ BRETE

the share option scheme of Minmetals Land Limited adopted on 7 June 2013

TRWEARARNR T —=F XA LHRMN 2 BRES

The 23rd Metallurgical Construction Group Co., Ltd. of Minmetals
IR - T=ZARREEARRAA

annual general meeting of Minmetals Land Limited for 2017

IRMEERARI TS —LtFERRBEFAE

Album Enterprises Limited
ERCEARAA

average selling price

FHEE

Beijing Vanke Enterprise Co., Ltd.
ERERMEERERAA

Beijing Wanhu Property Development Co., Ltd.
IR E8NEEREARAA

the board of directors of Minmetals Land Limited

IEMERRARZESRS

Boluo County Bihua Property Development Company Limited

BEZREEFHERERRAA

the Bye-laws of Minmetals Land Limited

hBEHERRARZERMAA

the Corporate Governance Code
hEERTHRTA

the People’s Republic of China
REARAM

China Minmetals Corporation
hEAOEEEAQF

Annual Report 2016



“CMCL"
[T 9 P 7

“CMN"
(AR ekH]

"CMNH"
[(hfRA K]

"Company” or
“Minmetals Land”

EAVNCIRE AR $: 8=

“Condo Hong Kong”
[T A& 7

“Condo Macau”
[ A0 8 P9 |

“Condo Shanghai”
[ A1 8

“Director(s)"”

[E %]

“Fifth Plaza Co”
EFA-t ol

"GFA"
[ 4812 E m A

“"Group”
[R&E

"HKS"
%72

“"Hong Kong"” or “"HKSAR”

[& 7%

“Huizhou Gracehome”
=N =/NS

“Jiahe Risheng”
[ 5 0B A%

China Minmetals Corporation Limited

B R s i AR A A

China Minmetals Non-Ferrous Metals Company Limited

TREECSBRMHARRAT

China Minmetals Non-Ferrous Holding Company Limited

hBEEEEBERERAR

Minmetals Land Limited

hEMERR AR

Minmetals Condo (Hong Kong) Engineering Company Limited

S (EE) IREERAF

Minmetals Condo (Macau) Engineering Company Limited

ERHMORP) TRBRAA

Minmetals Condo (Shanghai) Construction Co., Ltd.

ERHEM(LEB)ERERAT

director(s) of the Company

RRRZESF

Beijing Fifth Plaza Real Estate Co., Ltd.
ERERLESEXEARRAA

gross floor area
RAETH EE

Minmetals Land Limited and its subsidiaries

TRMWEARARLKENB AR

Hong Kong dollars
BT

FEE BRI TRE

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home Property Management Co., Ltd.

BMNABEBRENEEREERAA

Minmetals Land (Hunan) Jiahe Risheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

IRERCABM ZENMERFEHEREFR LA

LEWEBRAA
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“Jiasheng Properties”

E22E S

“June Glory”
[June Glory]

“Kuangshi Jiye”
[958t 2L 3£ |

“Listing Rules”
[ 7R Al

“Minmetals Capital”

) §- %N

“Minmetals Cheerglory”
[Eig: $-S

“Minmetals Finance”

[T 9 B 75

“Minmetals Futures”
(AEHE

“Minmetals HK”
EEER A

“Minmetals Land Beijing”

[ f 2 A 4

“Minmetals Real Estate”

ER =

“Minmetals Zhidi”
[ 7% & b

“MLI"
[MLIJ

“MLIML"
(hERESEE]

“Model Code”
(15 2= <F Al

Hunan lJiasheng Properties Service Co., Ltd.

M RERMERBER AR

June Glory International Limited
June Glory International Limited

Langfang Kuangshi Jiye Property Development Co., Ltd.
Byt XX EERMBERRAA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
EABARSMAERRARZES EMRA

Minmetals Capital (Hong Kong) Limited
TBEEA(ERB)BRAR

Minmetals Cheerglory Limited
hEREERAA

Minmetals Finance Company Limited

ITEEEMHEERAEET AR

Minmetals Futures Co., Limited

hEHERRAF

China Minmetals H.K. (Holdings) Limited
EAWE B RARA

Minmetals Land Investment Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
IRERREEREULR)BRAR

Minmetals Real Estate Co., Ltd.
hBEEEERAA

Minmetals Zhidi Corporate Management Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
hESHMEEEEZRNCORIDBRAA

Minmetals Land Investments Limited
Minmetals Land Investments Limited

Minmetals Land Investment Management Limited
IBERRREEERARAF

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
FHBETAEFETESFRINREST
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“Nanjing Gracehome”

(R ERE]

“NAV”
[Z A EFE]

“OFL”
[OFLJ

“RMB”
AR

“SFO"
(78 7 M HIE 5 1]

“Shareholder(s)"”
[ % 3R |

“Share(s)”
[ % 17 ]

“Shengshi Guangye”
[BR & %]

“Shenzhen Pan-China”
[DF=-/NCil

qu.m.u

7K

“Stock Exchange”
[Bst 22 PfT

“Texion"
[T

"USs”
ES

“Yingkou Industrial Park”

[EOEXE]

“Zhongrun Chengzhen”
[

nopn
[% ]

Nanjing Minmetals Grace Home Property Management Co.,

ERAEHENEEEERAF

Net Asset Value
FREEFE

ONFEM Finance Limited
ONFEM Finance Limited

Renminbi

AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance
BHEEBHEED

the shareholder(s) of Minmetals Land Limited

TRMWEARARZKER

the ordinary share(s) of par value HK$0.1 each of Minmetals Land Limited

IEMEARARESREEIETZEBK

Beijing Shengshi Guangye Investment Management Co., Ltd.

ERBEEXREEERRAF

Shenzhen Pan-China Engineering Co., Ltd.
AINZEIREERRAA

square metres

Tk

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERABMARIMARRLT

Texion Development Limited
T EERBR AR

United States dollars
ETT

Minmetals (Yingkou) Industrial Park Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

TE(EMDEXEZERERAA

Hunan Zhongrun Chengzhen Real Estate Co., Ltd.
MEPEREEEBERAA

per cent
Bkt

LEWEBRAA

Ltd.
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About China
Minmetals

Corporation

B R B B
E JEIPNG]

Projects under development of China Minmetals

PEARERPIEE

Attributable land area

Total gross floor area Usage
ELELYE3 1 -
(sq.m.) CGF75K)

Province/City P
s BisE R WR
(sq.m.) CGF75K)
Beijing 346,000
dt =
30,000,000
216,000
Shenyang City and 187,000
Jinzhou City,
Liaoning Province
BELERTREMS
Tianjin 2,404,000
E:
Changsha City, Xiangtan City and 667,100
Zhuzhou City, Hunan Province
HMEERDE  HEHTREME 23,100
Jiangyin City, Jiangsu Province 48,600
AHEILES
Shantou City, Guangdong Province 140,000
RR&EME S
Xining City, Qinghai Province 186,000
HBEAED
Taian City, Shandong Province 214,500

WREREH

491,000 Residential

T=
N/A Industrial and commercial

~EA TEREE

350,000 Residential
*=

908,000 Residential
F=E

3,764,000 Residential
F=E
1,893,000 Residential

F=E

259,400 Commercial
=)

112,000 Residential
F=

410,000 Complex
e RR

594,000 Residential

432,400 Residential
£

Founded in 1950, China Minmetals is one of the largest State-owned conglomerates
that operates globally with core business in exploration, mining, smelting,
processing and trading for metals and minerals, finance, real estate, and mining
and metallurgic technology. China Minmetals achieved the total revenue of
approximately RMB440.2 billion for 2016 and was ranked 323 among the US
Fortune world top 500 enterprises in 2016.

China Minmetals has, in recent years, actively participated in commercial estate
development, construction and installation business after it has a footing on the
residential development and industrial estate business. Accordingly, it has equipped
with considerable resources in this respect. Excluding real estate development
projects of Minmetals Land, China Minmetals has a total gross floor area of
approximately 9.21 million square metres for residential and industrial estate
development in the Pan Bohai Rim region and the eastern and central part of China.
Furthermore, it has an industrial site of 30 square kilometres in Yingkou City of
Liaoning Province.

China Minmetals through its Hong Kong subsidiary, Minmetals HK, holds
approximately 61.93% equity interest in Minmetals Land. Upon the approval of
inclusion of property development and operation to the core business of China
Minmetals by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council, China Minmetals announced its intention to transform
Minmetals Land into its sole listed real estate flagship. Through gradual asset
injection and consolidation of its real estate resources, China Minmetals aims at
the listing of its real estate business and turning Minmetals Land eventually into
a leading real estate development corporation which creates better returns to its
Shareholders, employees and the society.
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MY MINMETALS LAND LIMITED

BENERPBRMER T SHEREEAE T/ E
18th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

B 5 Tel 1 2613 6363

fEE Fax: 25819823

EE Email : info@minmetalsland.com

A1 Website : www.minmetalsland.com
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